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CORPORATE PROFILE
ANCILB

As a pioneer in the IT industry, Computer And Technologies Holdings
Limited and its subsidiaries (“C&T" or “the Group”) operate its business
on a vision to build a better world with Information Technology. Since
our establishment in 1991 and listing in the main board of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 00046) in 1998, C&T has committed
to providing best-of-breed software products and cloud services from
enterprise information management to human resources management,
procurement management, retail management and cyber intelligence to
enable organisations to run their businesses and operations better. Apart
from software products, the Group also has a long-standing track record in
delivering effective IT solutions and quality services, including IT solutions
design and implementation, software development, online e-Services
as well as business processing outsourcing services, to enhance the
competitive advantages of our clients.

C&T's software products and related services have been widely adopted
across multiple industries, from local conglomerates to multinational
corporations and government organisations. Leveraging C&T's products
and services, our customers are enhancing their business and operation
covering from the basic necessities of our daily life including clothing,
food, housing and transportation to the highly-specialised and professional
services.

With decades of successful track records in delivering innovative and
mission-critical IT solutions to enterprises and government organisations,
the Group has been providing professional IT services to most of the
bureaus and departments of the Hong Kong SAR Government for
improving their public services. Over 10,000 companies have adopted our
online platform for Government Electronic Trading Services (“GETS") to
process trade-related documents.

Our credentials include the award-winning electronic tendering system
running on premises and cloud platforms supporting procurements worth
billions of dollars, the customer care and billing system that facilitates water
supplies to more than two million households in Hong Kong SAR through
our managed IT services, and the flagship HRM software that processes
payroll every month for millions of employee accounts of our clients.
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CORPORATE PROFILE (CONTINUED)
NERIEN (&)

Our staff is the most important factor for our success. We recruit and
develop high caliber professionals who are both knowledgeable and
skillful in latest technology spectrums including web-based development,
cloud services, mobile applications and cyber security. Our people are
also experienced in large-scale software implementation ranging from
project management and technical design to system development and
maintenance. Our sustained accomplishment is also a reflection of our
committed practice of IT development standards and methods in relation to
resources and project management, quality control, system implementation
and support methodologies.

Stepping up the efforts through years, C&T has built solid corporate
governance and a robust risk and compliance framework. We play our part
to build a better world for current and future generations and encourage
our staff to contribute to the local communities. The Group'’s efforts to
develop a sustainable society is witnessed by various market recognitions
over the years.

Together with our extensive business domain knowledge in enterprise
information management, human resources management, procurement
management, retail management and cyber intelligence, C&T is committed
to providing all our clients with best-of-breed software products and high
quality system development and related services and, putting all these
together, to building a better world with Information Technology for all of
us.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
~EEH

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ng Cheung Shing (Chairman)
Cheung Wai Lam

Leung King San, Sunny

Ng Kwok Keung

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Chan Yuen Shan, Clara*
Ha Shu Tong

Lee Kwok On, Matthew
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ng Kwok Keung

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
27/F, One Taikoo Place

979 King's Road

Quarry Bay

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKER

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
1 Queen’s Road Central

Central

Hong Kong

REGISTRATION OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11
Bermuda

* Chan Yuen Shan, Clara was appointed as an independent non-executive director,
a member of each of the audit committee, remuneration committee, nomination
committee and risk management committee with effect from 28 January 2022.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

HITES
[EWH(EF)

RER
REF
RE®R

BYFHITES

PR 150 1 *
B
FER
TRE

DEME
[ER
B BREm

Eog = E=F a0
HEEIAT

AR o R ZEAT
G

7 £

HEEI79

Ko —E271E

FEEREIT

BELBESRITARRAR
BB

IR

ERKEFIHR

AR ER

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11
Bermuda

* ROME RS T ABIIENTES  ETES -
THEZEe REZESREAREREZESEA
WKE ITR-_E-—F—AF-+ N \B#EER-



CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
DEER(E)

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS

Level 10, Cyberport 2
100 Cyberport Road
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Codan Services Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11
Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Tengis Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong
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www.ctil.com
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

2

For the year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=1t-HLEE

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
—T—+F ZZT-N\F ZZT-NF ZTTF —B--F
HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million = HKS$ Million
BEBT BEBT BEET BEBT BEBT
Revenue WA 2539 2814 2759 2563 265.5
Profit attributable to shareholders A% 2R Al 4 [Z 3% A 543 68.0 559 60.1 53.8
HK cents HK cents HK cents HK cents HK cents
Il bl Al AL B4l
Basic earnings per share FREKREF
("EPS") ([BREAZEF]) 243 2785 2263 2431 21.76
Interim dividends HERR S 7.00 9.00 9.00 5.00 6.00
Final dividends REAR B 7.00 12,00 800 12,00 11.00
Special dividends 5 Bl % 8 8.00 - - - -
Dividends per share FREE
('DPS") (T8RRE]D) 22.00 21.00 17.00 17.00 17.00
Revenue Profit attributable to shareholders EPS vs DPS
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERBE

Dear Shareholders,

OVERVIEW

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Computer And
Technologies Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present
the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
"Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The development of the COVID-19 pandemic (the “Pandemic”) continued
hindering the recovery of the global economy. The gradually recovering
local economy in the second half of the year had sparked the demand from
the private sectors for the Group's software products and services, leading
to an 8.7% growth in revenue of the Group's Application Services business.
On the other hand, caused by the global shortage of software developers,
the delivery of solutions services to government and semi-government
organisations slowed down in the second half of 2021, resulting in a 5.1%
decrease in revenue of the Group’s Solutions and Integration Services
business. Accordingly, the Group’s overall turnover recorded a rise of HK$9.2
million, or 3.6% to HK$265.5 million (2020: HK$256.3 million).

As reported in the previous results announcement, the Group’s Solutions
Services business had adjourned the capitalisation of the development
costs for the Customer Care and Billing System (the “CCBS”) and was
charged HKS$8.5 million (2020: charged HK$3.3 million and capitalised
HK$4.8 million) in the profit or loss statement. Despite the increasing
charge, the Group's gross profit margin improved slightly to 57.4% (2020:
56.5%) while the absolute gross profit improved by HK$7.6 million, or 5.3%
to HKS152.4 million (2020: HKS$144.8 million).

The total non-operating incomes dropped drastically by HK$12.3 million,
or 68.7% to HKS5.6 million (2020: HK$18.0 million). The change was
primarily due to the absence of government subsidies granted under the
Employment Support Scheme (the “ESS”) in 2021. Overall expenses were
generally kept at the same level as compared with last year. The increase
in income tax expense was in line with the increase in assessable profits
generated in Hong Kong.

With the abovementioned, the Group’s consolidated net profit attributable
to shareholders reduced by 10.4% to HK$53.8 million (2020: HK$60.1
million). The basic earnings per share also dropped to 21.76 HK cents (2020:
24.31 HK cents). If the special one-off government subsidies under the ESS
in 2020 was not considered, the profit attributable to the owners of the
parent company in 2021 was in fact better than the normalised results of
2020 by around 18%.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EREHE (R

OVERVIEW (CONTINUED)

The Group has continuously been generating positive cash inflow from
operations and maintaining a sustained healthy financial position. The
Board declared the distribution of a final dividend of 11 HK cents (2020:
12 HK cents) per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 2021.
Counting the previously paid interim dividend of 6 HK cents (2020: 5 HK
cents) together with this proposed final dividend, the Group's full-year
dividend aggregated 17 HK cents (2020: 17 HK cents).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Application Software

The Group's Application Software™ business recorded a high single-digit
increase in revenue and a double-digit growth in its profit contributions to
the Group.

The performance of the Group’s Human Resources Management Software
("HRMS") business was improved in the second half of the reporting year.
The release of the accumulated demands from various industry sectors
drove new customers sales and add-on sales from existing customers who
are also contributing stable recurring maintenance income to the business.
During the reporting period, the HRMS business managed to conclude
new Software as a Service (“SaaS”") orders as well as software licence sales
from organisations of various sectors, including a large health care service
provider, financial service providers, property management and related
service providers, a rapidly expanding pharmaceutical company and non-
profit organisations. However, the new wave of the Pandemic may cause
potential new customers to defer their investment decisions or reduce their
investment budget again.

The Group's enterprise software business maintained a stable growth during
the reporting year. The Enterprise Procurement Management Software
("EPMS") business continued its growth momentum and increased profit
contributions. The Enterprise Information Management Software (“EIMS”)
business maintained healthy growth in profit contributions to the Group.
In the sluggish retail market, the Enterprise Retail Management Software
("ERMS") business still performed fairly and contributed stable profit to the
Group.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EEHE(H)

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Application Software (continued)
The Group's EPMS flagship product, ProSmart, remained a proven and

competitive solution for enterprises to uplift their procurement practices
in conforming to the corporate governance standard. During the reporting
year, the business managed to conclude contracts with one of the largest
non-profit organisations, a large payment organisation and a university in
Hong Kong. The strong and expanding installation base of ProSmart will
provide not only strong recurring SaaS and maintenance revenues to the
Group, but also strong reference for new prospects. The management is
expediting its effort to upgrade ProSmart to the next generation by taking
advantage of the Group’s proven foundation framework, aiming to enrich
its functionalities and improve its implementation efficiency. It is expected
that our next generation e-procurement solution will enable the Group to
capture the growing demand and streamline the product implementation
process.

The strong customer base continued to provide the Group's EIMS business
with stable recurring maintenance income and new opportunities. The
business continued to acquire new clients from the healthcare industry
and the financial service sector. The upgraded workflow engine and e-form
builder modules of VITOVA also generated promising market demands.
There are also increasing cross-selling opportunities for related products
among the HRMS and EPMS customers.

As mentioned, the Group's ERMS business faced difficult operating
environment due to the Pandemic. The business nevertheless managed to
maintain stable business performance and clients relations. By leveraging
the proven experience in serving large retailers and wholesale-distribution
companies, the management is actively exploring to expand our scope of
services and solutions to diversify the source of revenue.

With the Group'’s foundation framework being solidified to link up various
software products, the system architecture was reengineered to enhance
the business automation ability across the Group's software product suites.
In addition, improving project implementation efficiency and lowering
technical staff dependency, a low-code development platform (“LCDP")
was introduced to allow updates with time efficiency and formulating
various business automation solutions for clients. Together with the next
generation EPMS product, the Group capitalised the related development
costs of around HK$1.9 million during the reporting period.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EREHE (R

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Application Software (continued)
The involvement of our newly acquired subsidiary, CISC Limited, enriched

the Group's technology capability in data intelligence during the reporting
year. A revenue-driven model centring on domain-specific artificial
intelligence ("Al") has been under development, expected to drive the
Group’s software suites into a new market.

Solutions and Integration Services
The revenue of the Group’s Solutions and Integration Services? business

dropped by HK$5.2 million, or 5.1% to HK$97.5 million (2020: HK$102.7
million). The drop was in line with the decrease in service revenue
generated by the Development Services® under the Group's Solutions
Services business. The profit contribution also dropped by HKS$3.5 million,
or 12.6% to HK$24.5 million (2020: HK$28.0 million) as the Solutions Services
business charged all the development costs for the CCBS’s software
enhancements project of HK$8.5 million (2020: charged HK$3.3 million and
capitalised HK$4.8 million) to the profit or loss statement.

The revenue generated from the Managed Services? under the
Group's Solutions Services business was stably maintained. Besides, the
implementation schedule of the CCBS’s software enhancements project was
on track with planned completion in the first half of 2022. The management
will closely monitor the project progress and control possible impact
created by the fifth wave of the Pandemic in Hong Kong.

The global shortage in software developers created difficulties for the
Group to hire replacements and additional software development resources
timely during the reporting year. The cross border control during the
Pandemic also slowed down the expansion of the Group's resources centre
in Shenzhen. As a result, some of the project delivery schedules, especially
during the second half of the reporting year were deferred and impacted
the revenue booking of the Development Services? under the Group's
Solutions Services business.

The Group is actively consolidating some of its domain know how and
software codings accumulated throughout the years in order to transfer
them into customisable modules for specific applications. These modules
are expected to be implemented more effectively with less dependence on
skill of developers.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EEHE(H)

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Solutions and Integration Services (continued)
In early 2022, the business had been awarded contracts for three categories

of services under the Standing Offer Agreement for Quality Professional
Services 5 (“SOA-QPS5") by the HKSAR Government for a period of 48
months starting from January 2022. The three categories of services
included Category A Major Group: pre-implementation, program/project
management services, ongoing services, implementation and combined
system development services; Category B: information security, privacy
assessment and independent testing services; and Category C Major Group:
deployment and maintenance of common services. The management is
pleased to announce the Group is one of the few service providers awarded
in all the three major category groups.

The continuing engagement in the SOA-QPS framework and other multi-
year agreements with commercial enterprises is a key foundation for
the Group to secure long-term business from the related sectors and an
encouraging recognition of the Group’s market position in the local IT
industry.

Both revenue and profit contribution of the Group's Integration Services®?
business in the PRC were stable in 2021.

e-Service and related business
The Group’s GETS® business was in general benefitted from recovery of the

global trading environment throughout the reporting year and recorded
mild growth in revenue during the reporting year. Apart from the revenue
growth, the performance was further improved by the effective control of
various operating costs of the business.

Investments
The Group’s Investments segment experienced a turnaround and recorded

profit of HKS3.1 million (2020: loss of HK$0.2 million) during the reporting
year. The difference was made through increased rental income and
valuation gains from investment properties and financial assets from the
rebound of financial markets.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EREHE (R

PROSPECT

The fifth wave of the Pandemic in Hong Kong has been spread widely at
the time of compiling this report. Despite the recovery in 2021, the local
economy and the business environment of the Group are overwhelmed
by the outbreak of this wave of the Pandemic. In addition, the increasing
competition for IT talents and shortage in supply of IT human resources in
the local market had significantly inflated the staff costs and in turn created
pressures on the profitability of our businesses.

The prospects of the Group will hinge critically on how fast the Pandemic
can be fully contained. The Group will stay alert to the Pandemic and
impose necessary measures to minimise any negative impact to our
business and people. Focusing on the product research and development,
exploring business acquisition opportunities and expanding the Group’s
businesses as well as staff resources centre in the Greater Bay Area in the
post-Pandemic period will still be the key management directions in the
foreseeable future.

Footnotes:

o The Group's Application Services business engages in the provision of enterprise
applications software and e-business services for enterprises including (i) the
provision of enterprise applications software with implementation and ongoing
support services for Human Resource Management, Enterprise Procurement
Management, Enterprise Information Management and Enterprise Retail
Management (collectively the "Application Software”); and (i) the Government
Electronic Trading Services ("GETS"), cloud services and other related value-added
services (collectively the “e-Service and related business”).

@ The Group's Solutions and Integration Services business includes (i) Development
Services for the provision of IT solutions implementation and application software
development; (i) Managed Services for the provision of IT and related operation/
infrastructure outsourcing services; (i) business process outsourcing (“BPO")
services; and (iv) Integration Services for the provision of IT systems and network
infrastructure with related design, implementation and ongoing support services.

® Since 2004, the Group has been granted a licence (the "GETS Licence”) from the
HKSAR Government for the provision of front-end Government Electronic Trading
Services for processing certain official trade-related documents. The Group’s GETS
Licence was further renewed in early 2018 for operation of additional six years until
the end of 2024.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EEHE(H)

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue and gross profit
The Group's revenue increased by HK$9.2 million, or 3.6% to HK$265.5

million (2020: HK$256.3 million) during the reporting year.

The Group’s Application Software business kept its growth momentum
and delivered a high single-digit increase in its revenue. Conversely, the
revenue generated from Development Services under the Group’s Solutions
and Integration Services was set back substantially in the second half of the
reporting year primarily due to some hiccups in delivery progress caused by
shortage in software development resources.

The cost of sales and services rose by HK$1.6 million, or 1.4% to HK$113.1
million (2020: HK$111.5 million). The increase was primarily due to the
Group’s Solutions Services business stopped capitalising the development
costs incurred for the CCBS software enhancement project and charged
HK$8.5 million (2020: charged HK$3.3 million and capitalised HK$4.8 million)
to the profit or loss statement. The cost of the Group's Application Software
also went up following the increase in its R&D spending and the acquisition
of CISC Limited in July 2020. The gross profit increased by HK$7.6 million, or
5.3% to HK$152.4 million (2020: HK$144.8 million). The gross profit margin
improved slightly to 57.4% (2020: 56.5%).

Non-operating incomes and gains, net (included other
income and gains, net, foreign exchange differences,

net and fair value gains/(losses), net)
The total non-operating incomes dropped dramatically by HK$12.3 million,

or 68.7% to HKS$5.6 million (2020: HK$18.0 million). The change was largely
explained by the absence of the non-repeating government subsidies
granted under the ESS for an amount of HK$14.5 million; the absence of a
disposal gain from property of HK$2.0 million; decrease in the bank interest
income of HKS$0.9 million; and valuation gains from investment properties
and stocks which partially offset the reductions.

Expenses
Overall expenses were generally in line with the last year. The income tax

expense increased in view of the growth in assessable profits generated in
Hong Kong.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EREHE (R

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Non-current assets
The non-current assets slightly increased by 3.6% as more right-of-use

assets and non-current deposits were recognised after the renewal of
tenancy agreement of our Hong Kong head office but partially off-set by the
amortisation and depreciation of the other intangible assets and property,
plant and equipment, respectively.

Current assets
The current assets slightly increased by 1.1%. The change was mainly

attributed to the mixed effects of (i) the increase in trade receivables and
contract assets as there were more progress developments billed and
pending to be billed by end of 2021; (i) the decrease in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables in view of less prepayments made to the
suppliers; and (iii) the slight increase in cash and bank balances.

The Group maintains strict controls over its outstanding trade receivables
and considered that the trade receivables (net of loss allowance) were all
recoverable in the foreseeable future.

Current liabilities and non-current liabilities
The Group's current liabilities maintained at around HK$133.3 million (31

December 2020: HK$133.9 million). The change was due to the decrease in
trade payables and deferred maintenance services revenue under contract
liabilities which was offset by the increase in lease liabilities and tax payable.

Due to significant increase in lease liabilities as a result of the lease renewal,
the Group's non-current liabilities soared to HK$24.4 million (31 December
2020: HKS17.8 million).

Segment assets and liabilities
Segment assets of Applications Services business increased mainly due to

the increase in trade receivables while the segment liabilities of the business
remained the same level as last year.

Segment assets and segment liabilities of Solutions and Integration Services
dropped in line with the decrease in trade receivables, trade payables and
deposits received from customers.

Segment assets of Investments business increased as there were valuation
gains for both investment properties and financial assets.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EEHE(H)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Equity attributable to owners of the parent
Growth in retained profits primarily contributed to the increase in equity

as at 31 December 2021 by HK$8.9 million, or 1.7% to HK$522.1 million (31
December 2020: HK$513.2 million).

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a healthy liquidity position
throughout the period under review. The Group strives to reduce exposure
to credit risk by performing ongoing credit assessments and evaluations
of the financial status of its customers. To manage liquidity risk, the Board
closely monitors the Group’s liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity
structure of the Group's assets, liabilities and other commitments can meet
its funding requirements from time to time.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had pledged an investment property
with a fair value of HK$63.5 million (31 December 2020: HK$S63.0 million),
listed equity securities of HK$7.5 million (31 December 2020: HKS$7.3 million)
and bank balances of HK$1.2 million (31 December 2020: HK$0.7 million)
to secure certain general bank facilities including guarantee/performance
bonds facilities granted to the Group/subsidiaries of the Company in
aggregate of HK$112.1 million (31 December 2020: HK$112.0 million) of
which HK$21.8 million (31 December 2020: HK$21.6 million) have been
utilised as at 31 December 2021.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents were
HK$298.4 million (31 December 2020: HK$295.6 million).
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EREHE (R

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY
(CONTINUED)

All of the Group’s on hand fundings are in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi
and US dollars. The Group has not adopted any hedging policies, as these
currencies carry relatively low exchange fluctuation risks. Nevertheless, the
Group had been monitoring the foreign exchange exposures closely and
hedging any significant foreign currency exposure in order to minimise the
exchange risk should the needs arose.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no bank borrowings (31 December
2020: Nil). The Group's current ratio representing current assets divided by
current liabilities was 3.0 (31 December 2020: 2.9) and the gearing ratio,
representing total liabilities divided by total assets, was 23.1% (31 December
2020:22.7%).

REMUNERATION POLICY AND NUMBER OF
EMPLOYEES

The Group remunerates its employees based on their performance, working
experience and prevailing market conditions. Apart from basic salary,
discretionary bonus and other incentives are offered to employees of the
Group to reward their performance and contributions.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group employed 367 full time employees and
13 part time employees (31 December 2020: 373 full time employees and 6
part time employees).

As at 31 December 2021, the Company operates a share option scheme and
a share award scheme for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to the employees who contribute to the success of the Group'’s operations
as well as to retain them for the continual development of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

Save as disclosed in the report, the Group had no significant investments
held as at 31 December 2021.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

In January 2022, the Group completed the subscription of 10,000 new
shares issued by CISC Limited at a total consideration of HK$1,450,000 and
increased its shareholding from 40% to 80% accordingly.

Save as disclosed in the report, the Group did not have any material
acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries during the reporting year and up to
the date of this report.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EEHE(H)

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in the report, there was no specific plan for material
investments or capital assets as at 31 December 2021.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Save as disclosed in the report, the Group has no material contingent
liabilities as at 31 December 2021.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of 11 HK
cents (2020: a final dividend of 12 HK cents) per ordinary share for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Board has recommended a final dividend of 11 HK cents (2020: a final
dividend of 12 HK cents) per ordinary share payable to shareholders whose
names appear on the Register of Members of the Company on Thursday,
9 June 2022. The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from
Friday, 27 May 2022 to Wednesday, 1 June 2022 (both days inclusive) for
the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote
at the annual general meeting (the "AGM"). In order to be eligible to attend
and vote at the AGM to be held on Wednesday, 1 June 2022, all transfer
documents, accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis
Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 26 May 2022. In addition,
the Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday,
8 June 2022 to Thursday, 9 June 2022 (both days inclusive) for the purpose
of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to the proposed final dividend. In
order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all transfers, accompanied
by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited, for registration
not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 7 June 2022. During such periods, no
share transfer will be effected. The final dividend will be distributed on or
about Wednesday, 22 June 2022 to shareholders whose names appear on
the Register of Members of the Company on Thursday, 9 June 2022.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EREHE (R

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an Audit Committee which was established in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the purpose of reviewing
and providing supervision over the Group’s financial reporting process, risk
, the Audit
Committee comprises three independent non-executive directors of the

management and internal controls. As of 31 December 2021

Company. The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2021 and the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group,
and discussed risk management and internal controls and financial
reporting matters related to the preparation of the annual results for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

APPRECIATIONS

On behalf of the Board and the management, | would like to express our
sincere thanks to all employees, shareholders, customers and business
partners for their supports to the Group during the reporting year.

By Order of the Board

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
Ng Cheung Shing

Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 March 2022
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENENEEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ir. Ng Cheung Shing, aged 60, the founder and Chairman, is responsible
for the corporate strategies and business development of the Group. Ir.
Ng graduated with a Bachelor of Science (Honours) Degree in Computer
Science from the University of Manchester in the United Kingdom in 1984
and has over 30 years of experience in [T industry. Before establishing the
Company, Ir. Ng held executive positions in companies such as Hewlett-
Packard Asia Pacific Limited and Sun Hung Kai (China) Limited. Ir. Ng is
the Honorary Fellow of Vocational Training Council and the Professional
Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries and a fellow of the Hong Kong
Computer Society and the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers. Ir. Ng was
also the awardees of “Young Industrialist Awards of Hong Kong”, “Ten
Outstanding Young Persons Award of Hong Kong” and “Directors of the
Year Awards”.

Ir. Ng is the brother-in-law of Mr. Leung King San, Sunny.

Mr. Cheung Wai Lam, aged 58, was the Group's Chief Executive Officer
("CEQ") and is now responsible for overseas business development. Mr.
Cheung has over 30 years of experience in IT and consulting business
ranging from software development to enterprise solutions implementation
and is one of the founders of Y&A Professional Services Ltd. (the “Y&A"). Mr.
Cheung joined the Group in 2006 when Y&A became a subsidiary of the
Group. Before Y&A, he held various consulting positions in IBM in Hong
Kong and Australia. Mr. Cheung graduated from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong with a Bachelor Degree in Computer Science in 1985 and an
Executive Master Degree in Business Administration in 2011.

Mr. Leung King San, Sunny, aged 60, is responsible for finance and
administration strategies of the Group. Mr. Leung has over 30 years of
experience in finance, administration and planning in the IT industry. Before
joining the Group, Mr. Leung held senior management positions in IBM
and its associated company in Asia Pacific. Mr. Leung graduated from the
Simon Fraser University in Canada with a Bachelor's Degree in Business
Administration in 1983.

Mr. Leung is the brother-in-law of Ir. Ng Cheung Shing.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EEREREEE(A)

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Mr. Ng Kwok Keung, aged 48, is the Chief Financial Officer of the Group
and the Secretary of the Company. He has over 20 years of experience
in accounting, auditing, finance and business advisory. Before joining
the Group, he was a financial controller of a Hong Kong listed company
and worked as a manager of assurance and advisory business services
department of an international accounting firm. Mr. Ng graduated from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a Bachelor of Arts Degree
in Accountancy and is a Certified Public Accountant of The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Chan Yuen Shan, Clara, aged 50, joined the Board on 28 January
2022. She is the Vice-Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer and an executive
director of Lee Kee Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 637), responsible for
proposing strategies and ensuring the implementation of the strategies
and policies of the group. In 2018, Ms. Chan was awarded the Medal of
Honour by HKSAR Government. She is a member of the Listing Committee
of the Stock Exchange, a member of the Lead and Zinc Committee of the
London Metal Exchange and a member of the Board Risk Committee of LME
Clear Limited. She is also a member of the Hong Kong Housing Authority
and its Subsidised Housing Committee, a council member of Hong Kong
Productivity Council, the Executive Deputy Chairman of Federation of Hong
Kong Industries and a member of General Committee of the Chamber of
Hong Kong Listed Companies. Ms. Chan holds a Master of Social Science
Degree in Global Political Economy from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong and is an Industrial Fellow of WMG at the University of Warwick.

Mr. Ha Shu Tong, aged 73, joined the Board in 1998. Mr. Ha has involved
in the financial industry for over 40 years and has substantial experience in
corporate finance and corporate development.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EEREREEE(A)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew, aged 61, PhD, joined the Board in
1998. He is Vice-President (Development & External Relations) and Chair
Professor of Information Systems & E-Commerce at the City University of
Hong Kong. Professor Lee is Chairman of the Hong Kong Committee for
Pacific Economic Cooperation, and a member of the Hong Kong Deposit
Protection Board. He has substantial senior management experience and IT
related research expertise. Professor Lee is an independent non-executive
director of Glory Sun Financial Group Limited (Stock Code: 1282). He holds
the following U.K. university degrees: BEng (first-class honours) in electronic
engineering & MBA in business studies (University of Sheffield); MSc in
computation (University of Oxford); PhD in computer science (University
of Manchester); LLB and LLM in commercial & corporate law (University
of London). He is a charter engineer of the UK Engineering Council and a
professional member of the British Computer Society. Professor Lee has
been admitted as a barrister-at-law in Hong Kong and England & Wales.

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen, MH, FCCA, FCPA (Practising), ACA,
CTA(HK), FHKIoD, aged 68, joined the Board in 2004. Mr. Ting is an
accountant in public practice as a partner of Messrs. Ting Ho Kwan & Chan,
Certified Public Accountants since 1987. He is currently a non-executive
director of Chow Sang Sang Holdings International Limited (Stock Code:
116) and holds independent non-executive directorship in six other listed
companies namely, China SCE Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1966),
Dongyue Group Limited (Stock Code: 189), New Silkroad Culturaltainment
Limited (Stock Code: 472), Texhong Textile Group Limited (Stock Code:
2678), Tong Ren Tang Technologies Company Limited (Stock Code: 1666)
and Tongda Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 698).
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EEREREEE(A)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Poon Ka Chi, William, aged 56, the Group’s Deputy CEO, joined the
Group in 2018 and focuses on consolidating the Solutions & Integration
Services and driving further development of the business in Hong Kong and
the Greater China region. Mr. Poon has over 30 years of experience in the
IT industry and has held various leadership roles in renowned businesses
of technology solutions and outsourcing services across the region.
Graduating from the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Science
Degree in Computer Studies in 1988, Mr. Poon received an Executive Master
of Business Administration Degree from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong in 2001.

Mr. Yeung Sai Cheong, Steve, aged 56, the Group’s Senior Vice President,
is in charge of the corporate development as well as Application Software
business units of the Group. Mr. Yeung joined the Group in 1998 and has
over 30 years of IT experience in general management. He graduated from
the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Science Degree in Computer
Studies in 1988 and received a Master Degree in Business Administration
from the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in 1999.

Mr. Kwok Ka Chun, Erik, aged 43, the Group’s Chief Technology Officer,
joined the Group in 2018 and is in charge of the Research & Development
("R&D") division focusing on the Group's software products. Before
joining the Group, Mr. Kwok had worked in both Canada and Mainland
China where he led multiple R&D teams across Canada, China and India
working on cross-industry software products and vertical solutions. In
addition to building R&D teams and products, he was responsible for sales
development activities and project delivery for multinational corporations.
Mr. Kwok graduated from the Simon Fraser University in Canada with a
Bachelor's Degree in Computing Science.

Ms. Ng Ka Yan, Karen, aged 45, the Group’s General Manager of enterprise
software, leads the operations and growth of the Group's enterprise
software businesses. Joining the Group in 2019, Ms. Ng brought in 20 years
of extensive business experience from international software and solution
companies. Ms. Ng graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a
Bachelor Degree of Arts and a Master Degree of Science.

Mr. Poon Chi Shing, Anthony, aged 49, the Group’s Assistant Vice
President of Managed Services, joined the Group in 2003 and is in charge
of the Managed Services under the Group’s Solutions Services. Mr. Poon
graduated from the City University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor Degree in
Computing Science.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SEERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standard of corporate
governance within a sensible framework with an emphasis on the principles
of integrity, transparency and accountability. The board of directors of the
Company (the “Board”) believes that good corporate governance is essential
to the success of the Company and to the enhancement of shareholders’
value.

The Board opined that the Company has complied with the code provision
set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG code”) as stipulated in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) during the reporting
year except on the deviations noted below.

The CG code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer ("CEQ") should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. As disclosed in the announcement dated 30
December 2019, Mr. Cheung Wai Lam has been re-designated from an
executive director of the Company and the CEO to an executive director
effective 1 January 2020.

Mr. Poon Ka Chi, William has been appointed as the deputy CEO of the
Group with effect from 1 August 2018. Deputy CEO mainly focuses on
certain business operations and administrative functions of the Group,
assists the Board to formulate strategies for the Group and to make sure
they are implemented successfully. With the present board structure and
scope of business, the Board considers that there is no imminent need to
appoint a CEOQ. However, the Board will continue to review the effectiveness
of the Group's corporate governance structure and will consider whether
any changes, including the appointment of a CEQ, are necessary.

The Company considers that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure
that its corporate governance practices are similar to those provided in the
CG Code.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERERE (R)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at 31 December 2021, the Board comprises four executive directors and
three independent non-executive directors ("INEDs"):

Executive Directors:

Mr. Ng Cheung Shing (Chairman)
Mr. Cheung Wai Lam

Mr. Leung King San, Sunny

Mr. Ng Kwok Keung

INEDs:

Mr. Ha Shu Tong

Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew
Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen

INEDs constitute more than one-third of the Board. The Company has
received from each INED a confirmation of his independence pursuant to
the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
considers that all INEDs are independent. One of the INEDs is a professional
accountant, which is in compliance with the requirement of the Listing
Rules.

One-third of the directors shall retire from office at every annual general
meeting and all directors (including INEDs) are subject to retirement by
rotation once every three years in accordance with the bye-laws of the
Company (“Bye-laws”) as amended from time to time and the CG Code.
Retiring directors are eligible for re-election at the annual general meeting
at which they retire. Any director appointed to fill a causal vacancy is subject
to re-election at the next annual general meeting of the Company. Separate
resolutions have been proposed for the election of each director.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERRE (R)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Board nomination policy
The Nomination Committee shall endeavour to find individuals of high

integrity who have a solid record of accomplishment in their chosen
fields and who possess the qualifications, qualities and skills to effectively
represent the best interests of the Company and its shareholders.
Candidates will be selected for their ability to exercise good judgement, and
to provide practical insights and diverse perspectives. Candidates also will
be assessed in the context of the then-current composition in the Board,
the operating requirements of the Group. In conducting this assessment,
the Nomination Committee will, in connection with its assessment and
recommendation of candidates for director, consider diversity (including but
not limited to gender, age, ethnicity, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, industry knowledge and length of service)
and such other factors as it deems appropriate given the then-current and
anticipated future needs of the Board and the Company, and to maintain a
balance of perspectives, qualifications, qualities and skills on the Board.

The Company shall review and reassess the nomination policy and its
effectiveness on a regular basis or as required.

Nomination process
The Nomination Committee shall assess whether any vacancy on the Board

has been created or is expected on a regular basis or as required.

The Nomination Committee utilises various methods for identifying
director candidates, including recommendations from Board members,
management and professional search firms. All director candidates,
including incumbents and candidates nominated by the shareholders,
are evaluated by the Nomination Committee based upon the director
qualifications. While director candidates will be evaluated on the same
criteria through review of resume, personal interview and performance of
background checks.

The Nomination Committee retains the discretion to establish the relative
weighing of such criteria, which may vary based on the composition,
gender, age, knowledge, skills and experiences of the collective Board rather
than on the individual candidate for the purpose of diversity perspectives
appropriate to the requirement of the Group's business.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
DEERRE ()

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Selection criteria

The Nomination Committee considers the following qualifications at a
minimum to be required of any Board members in recommending to the
Board potential new board members, or the continued service of existing
members:

broad experience in business and the ability to provide insights and
practical wisdom based on their experience and expertise;

the highest professional and personal ethics and in compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements;

with sufficient time to carry out their duties effectively and to make
contributions to the Company’s success and such other factors
as it may deem are in the best interests of the Company and its
shareholders; and

ability to develop a good working relationship with other Board
members and to assist and support management of the Group.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company noted that that people from different backgrounds and with
different professional and life experience are likely to approach problems
in different ways and accordingly, members of the Board with diverse
backgrounds will bring different concerns and questions to the table, and
allow the Board to consider a wider range of options and solutions when
deciding on corporate issues and formulating policies for the Group.

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the
Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element
in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable
development. In designing the Board's composition, the Board diversity has
been considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. The Board appointments will
continue to be made on a merit basis and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board.

The composition of the Board is reviewed on an annual basis by the
Nomination Committee to ensure that the Board has the approximate
mix of expertise and experience, and collectively possesses the necessary
core competence for informed decision making and effective functioning.
The Company adopted its own Board Diversity Policy and recognises the
benefits of having diversity in the composition of the Board.
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TEER®ME (F)
BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED) Exg (A
Board Diversity Policy (continued) EETEZ TLBUR ()
The board composition was also evaluated by reference to, among other EEgUENRK2E(EPRBE)SES 2T
things, the gender, age, educational background, professional experience, AlFl HBEER BELR K2 BH
skills, knowledge and length of service of each director, against the MRBFE  URARAZEKEARFES
Company’s business model and specific needs. LIRRTE -
As at 31 December 2021, the Board comprises seven directors and is RZEZ—F+_A=+—H EEFgHtR
characterised by great diversity, whether considered in terms of age, length EEEK BEABTRTER RETFH BB
of service, educational background, professional experience, skills and R BELR BEMRAH-
knowledge.
Composition of the diversified Board Lt EEEWAER
Age group Length of service
FRER PR % 4 28
Less than 10 years
Name of director 40to 49 50 to 59 60 to 69 70t0 79 10 years or more
Exng 40495  50E59%  60E69m  70E79m  PR10F  10FHUL
Ng Cheung Shing KRB v v
Cheung Wai Lam RETR v v
Leung King San, Sunny REH v v
Ng Kwok Keung RE v v
Ha Shu Tong BHZ v v
Lee Kwok On, Matthew FHZ v v
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TRE v v
Educational background Professional experience
BEER EELR
Accounting
Name of director Accountancy Law IT/Others  and finance Law IT/Others
BEARH/ EANE
Espsg =6 EE Hit &fkem EE Hity
Ng Cheung Shing REB v v
Cheung Wai Lam RER v 4
Leung King San, Sunny 2 4 4
Ng Kwok Keung RE% 4 4
Ha Shu Tong BRE 4 v
Lee Kwok On, Matthew ZE%Z v v v v
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TRE v 4

MERGERERAR B —FFH
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Composition of the diversified Board (continued)
The Company believes diversity is important to enhance the Board'’s

effectiveness by encouraging a diversity of perspectives and to maintain
high standards of corporate governance. The Company will continue to
monitor and develop new objectives for implementing and achieving
improved diversity on the Board as and when it considers appropriate with
regard to the specific needs of the Company from time to time.

The directors’biographical information is set out in the “Directors and Senior
Management” section on pages 19 to 22. Two executive directors, Mr. Ng
Cheung Shing and Mr. Leung King San, Sunny, are brother-in-law. Save as
disclosed, there is no relationship between each of the Board members.

The Board has the ultimate decision on the Group's overall strategy, annual
budget, annual and interim results, appointment or retirement of directors,
significant contracts and transactions as well as other significant policies
and financial matters. The Board has delegated the daily operations and
administration to the Group’s management.

According to the division of responsibilities between the Chairman and
CEO approved by the Board, the Chairman is mainly responsible for long
term strategic development of the Group as well as the operation of the
Board, to make sure that the Board is run in the best interests of the Group
and all the Board meetings are effectively planned and carried out. CEO
mainly focuses on the business operations of the Group, assists the Board to
formulate strategies for the Group and to make sure they are implemented
successfully. CEO is fully responsible to the Board for overall business
operations of the Group.

Every director is entitled to have access to Board papers and related
materials and has access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary. In addition, every director has separate and independent access
to the Company'’s senior management to facilitate them to make informed
decisions. All directors, in the discharge of their duties, are allowed to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at a
reasonable cost to be borne by the Company.

The Company has not established any committee responsible for the
corporate governance function of the Group and the function has
been collectively performed by the Board. The Board acknowledges the
overseeing of the corporate governance function by the Board collectively.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERRE (R)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Composition of the diversified Board (continued)
During the year, the Board has reviewed and monitored the training and

continuous professional development of directors and senior management.
The Board has also reviewed and ensured compliance of the relevant legal
and regulatory requirements, the code of conducts, the CG Code and the
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Directors should participate in continuous professional development to
ensure their contributions to the Board remains informed and relevant.
Each newly appointed director is provided with necessary induction and
information to ensure that he has a proper understanding of the Company’s
operations and businesses as well as his responsibilities under the relevant
statutes, laws, rules and regulations.

Directors’ training is a continuing process. The Company updates directors
on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure compliance and
enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices. Directors
are encouraged to participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. In addition, all directors are
provided with monthly updates on the Group’s performance, position and
prospects to enable the Board as a whole to discharge their duties.

During the year, all directors, namely Mr. Ng Cheung Shing, Mr. Cheung
Wai Lam, Mr. Leung King San, Sunny, Mr. Ng Kwok Keung, Mr. Ha Shu Tong,
Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew and Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen, have
participated in appropriate continuous professional development, including
the training provided by the Company on 18 November 2021, to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
TEERHRE (K)

BOARD MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE

In order to achieve a high standard of corporate governance, the Directors (in
person or through electronic means of communication) held at least four
regularly meetings at approximately quarterly interval to discuss the overall
strategy as well as the operational matters and financial performance of the
Group. Attendance of each director at the Board meetings is set out below:

Executive directors:

Mr. Ng Cheung Shing (Chairman)
Mr. Cheung Wai Lam

Mr. Leung King San, Sunny

Mr. Ng Kwok Keung

INEDs:

Mr. Ha Shu Tong

Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew
Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen

The Chairman also met with the INEDs without the presence of other
directors on 16 August 2021.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To strengthen the functions of the Board, there are several Board
Committees namely, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee,
the Nomination Committee, the Investment Committee and the Risk
Management Committee formed under the Board, with each performing
different functions.
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ERERRE (R)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established on 24 April 1999. During the
reporting period, the Committee comprises of three INEDs, namely, Mr.
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen, Mr. Ha Shu Tong and Professor Lee Kwok On,
Matthew. Mr. Ting is currently the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include:

to be primarily responsible for making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the external
auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement
of the external auditor, and any questions of its resignation of
dismissal;

to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standards;

to develop and implement policy on engaging an external auditor to
supply non-audit services;

to act as the key representative body for overseeing the Company’s
relations with external auditor;

to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements and
annual report and accounts, half-year report and to review significant
financial reporting judgments contained in them;

to review the Company’s financial controls, risk management and
internal control systems;

to discuss the risk management and internal control systems with
management to ensure that management has performed its duty to
have an effective risk management and internal control systems;

to review the financial and accounting policies and practices of the
Group; and

to review the external auditor's management letter, any material
queries raised by the auditor to management about accounting
records, financial accounts or systems of control and management’s
responses.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
TEERHRE (K)

AUDIT COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The Audit Committee shall meet (in person or through electronic means of
communication) at least twice every year. Attendance of each director at
the meeting is set out below:

INEDs:

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen
Mr. Ha Shu Tong

Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew

During the year, the Audit Committee, among other matters, reviewed and
provided supervision over the Group’s financial reporting processes, risk
management and internal control systems, reviewed interim and annual
results of the Group and met with the internal and external auditors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 22 September 2004.
During the reporting period, the Committee comprises of three INEDs,
namely, Mr. Ha Shu Tong, Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew and Mr. Ting
Leung Huel, Stephen and two executive directors namely, Mr. Ng Cheung
Shing and Mr. Leung King San, Sunny. Mr. Ha is currently the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include:

to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for all directors and senior management remuneration
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy;

to review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board's corporate goals and objectives;

to determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior management
and the terms of their service contracts;
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

TEERRE(E)
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED) FHEESE (E)
to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non- . MIEMTEFZMEeRESSREER

executive directors;

to consider and approve the grant of shares and share options to . RIEAR DRI RENET 8 R BT S
eligible participants pursuant to the share award scheme and share ZREMEMEGEREERDERN RER
option scheme of the Company; 7
to review and approve compensation payable to executive directors . B RERRTEERSREEAER
and senior management for any loss or termination of office or HE RIS EEMASZ N ZEE -
appointment to ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms NRZEEERS BN -3 BREE
and is otherwise fair and not excessive; and HENER -3 BETFELATFERE T
Bia% Rk
to ensure that no director or any of its associates is involved in . BREWESFIEHAMBEATTELH
deciding his own remunerations. EEERNS 2 HHM -
The Remuneration Committee shall meet (in person or through electronic FTMEEERFARTEL—REgZ (FEHaL
means of communication) at least once every year. Attendance of each FBHEBEFBATRN) SEFHESH
director at the meeting is set out below: BERFHINAT -

Number of meetings
attended/eligible

to attend
HESBRE
] R E
Executive directors: HITEE:
Mr. Ng Cheung Shing REBAE 2/2
Mr. Leung King San, Sunny R2FEAE 2/2
INEDs: BYFHITES:
Mr. Ha Shu Tong EBREE 2/2
Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew TRETHE 2/2
Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TRESAE 2/2
During the year, the work performed by the Remuneration Committee FR FHEEGETZIEBERNAEE
included the review of the Group’s remuneration policy for its executive ZHTEEREREEBTHERE BEES
directors and senior management, determined their levels of remuneration, ZEMKTE mESSREEEBLIENTE
make recommendations to the Board on the INED's remuneration and =B A 22 5 DA R HE AR IR IR 1 SR D AT B W R
approved the purchase of shares pursuant to the share award scheme. [
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
TEERHRE (K)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management
Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG code, the remuneration of senior

management by band for the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out
below:

FMESES (&)
EERSREEE 2HMH

BREBEEEERTRIEBISHETRMG  BEZ
E_—F+ A=t -BULFESREEENK
B FMMBERHIIMT -

Number of Individuals
AB

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000

Further particulars in relation to directors'remuneration and the five highest
paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 to the
Listing Rules are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 22 September 2004. During
the reporting period, the Committee comprises of three INEDs, namely, Mr.
Ha Shu Tong, Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew, and Mr. Ting Leung Huel,
Stephen and two executive directors namely, Mr. Ng Cheung Shing and Mr.
Leung King San, Sunny. Mr. Ha is currently the chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include:

to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorships;

to review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate, and review the
measurable objectives that the Board has set for implementing the
Board Diversity Policy, and monitor the progress on achieving the
objectives, and make disclosure of its review results in the Corporate
Governance Report annually;
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERRE (R)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

to assess the independence of INEDs and to ensure at least one-third
of the Board should be INEDs; in that the Nomination Committee

should always have in mind the factors set out in the Listing Rules;

where the Board proposes a resolution to elect an individual as an
INED at the general meeting, the Nomination Committee shall set out
in the circular to shareholders of the Company and/or explanatory
statement accompanying the notice of the relevant general meeting:

the process used for identifying the individual and why the
Board believes the individual should be elected and the

reasons why it considers the individual to be independent;

ii. if the proposed INED will be holding their seventh (or more)
listed company directorship, why the Board believes the
individual would still be able to devote sufficient time to the

Board;

ii.  the perspectives, skills and experience that the individual can

bring to the Board; and

iv.  how the individual contributes to diversity of the Board;

to determine the policy for nomination of directors. The policy for
the nomination of directors of the Nomination Committee shall be

disclosed in the annual report of the Company; and

to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of directors and succession planning for directors, in

particular the Chairman and the CEO.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
TEERHRE (K)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The Nomination Committee shall meet (in person or through electronic
means of communication) at least once every year. Attendance of each
director at the meeting is set out below:

Executive directors:
Mr.Ng Cheung Shing
Mr. Leung King San, Sunny

INEDs:

Mr. Ha Shu Tong

Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew
Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen

During the year, the Nomination Committee reviewed the diversity,
structure, size and composition of the Board, assessed the independence of
INEDs and made recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
reappointment of directors and succession planning for chief executive of
the Company.

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

The Investment Committee was established on 17 May 2012 and comprises
of an executive director, Mr. Ng Cheung Shing and an INED, Mr. Ha Shu
Tong. Mr. Ng is currently the chairman of the Investment Committee.

The Committee is responsible for, inter alia, identifying investment
opportunities, reviewing investment proposals and making investment
decisions; monitoring the performance of investments; reviewing the
soundness of existing investment portfolio; devising investment guidelines
and strategies for approval of the Board; and executing investment
guidelines approved by the Board. The investment strategy of the Company
is to exercise prudent treasury investment and management involving
diversification of low to moderate risk investments with a view to counter
the depreciating value of cash and to generate stable income to support
existing business operations.

During the reporting period, the Investment Committee executed the
investment guidelines approved by the Board, reported the performance of
investments and reviewed the investment strategies with all directors in the
Board meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERRE (R)

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Risk Management Committee was established on 17 August 2016 and
comprises of three executive directors namely, Mr. Leung King San, Sunny,
Mr. Cheung Wai Lam and Mr. Ng Kwok Keung and one INED, namely, Mr.
Ha Shu Tong. Mr. Leung is currently the chairman of the Risk Management
Committee.

The principal duties of the Risk Management Committee include:

to review the Group's risk management (“RM”) and internal control
("IC") strategies, policies and guidelines and submit them to the Audit
Committee for approval;

to review the Group’s risk framework and approved risk policies,
standards and limits within the overall appetite and tolerance
approved by the Board;

to review the Group's processes for determining risk appetite
tolerance, monitoring compliance with approved risk tolerance levels
and policies and the resultant action in respect of policy breaches;

to review the Group's compliance policies and submit them to the
Board and/or Audit Committee for approval;

to review the Group’s key risks and submit to the Audit Committee
for approval half-yearly;

to report to the Audit Committee that, to the best of the Risk
Management Committee’s belief, the disclosures made in the annual
report on its activities, the risk governance and related sections are
fair, balanced and understandable;

to consider issues raised by external auditors, the Audit Committee
or any member of the Board who has lodged a request for a meeting;
and

to liaise with the chairman of the Audit Committee to determine
on a case by case basis which Risk Management Committee takes
responsibility for undertaking deep dive reviews and keeping the
Audit Committee updated on any relevant findings from reviews
requested.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
TEERHRE (K)

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The Risk Management Committee shall meet (in person or through
electronic means of communication) at least twice every year. Attendance
of each director at the meeting is set out below:

Executive directors:

Mr. Leung King San, Sunny
Mr. Cheung Wai Lam

Mr. Ng Kwok Keung

INED:
Mr. Ha Shu Tong

During the year, the Risk Management Committee reviewed the Group’s
risk framework and key risks, RM and IC reports and submitted them to the
Audit Committee for approval.

INEDs

During the year under review, the Board at all times met the requirements
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three INEDs with
one INED possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting
or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each INED of
his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on the
contents of such confirmation, the Company still considers all of the INEDs
to be independent.

The INEDs bring a wide range of business and financial expertise,
experiences and independent judgment to the Board. Through active
participation in Board meetings, taking the lead in managing issues
involving potential conflict of interests and serving on Board Committees, all
INEDs make various contributions to the effective direction of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERRE (R)

INED WHO HAS SERVED FOR MORE THAN NINE
YEARS

Mr. Ha Shu Tong, Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew and Mr. Ting Leung
Huel, Stephen have served as INEDs for more than nine years. The future
appointment of these three INEDs without the approval by way of passing
a separate resolution of the shareholders is regarded as a deviation from
Code Provision A4.3 of the CG Code.

To comply with this CG Code Provision, all these three INEDs had retired
at the previous annual general meeting of the Company and offered
themselves for re-election.

The Board is of the opinion that all these three directors remain
independent notwithstanding the length of their services and believes that
their valuable knowledge and experience in the Group's business and their
general business acumen continue to generate significant contribution to
the Board, the Company and the shareholders as a whole. The Company’s
circular to be despatched to shareholders of the Company in April 2022 will
contain the biographical information of Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew
and the detailed reasons behind the Board’s recommendation of his
continuing appointment as an INED.

INED WHO HAS SERVED AS DIRECTORS FOR
MORE THAN SEVEN LISTED COMPANIES

The CG code provision A.5.5(2) stipulates that where the Board proposes
to elect or re-elect an INED (who will be holding their seventh (or more)
directorship, the Board should explain why such individual would still be
able to devote sufficient time to the board in the relevant shareholders’
circular.

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen has served as directors for more than seven
listed companies. He has maintained his profession in various directorships
of listed companies he served, and has actively participated in the Board
meetings and various committees held by the Company in the past, and so
his time committed for his director’s duties is not affected. The Board agreed
that he has devote sufficient time to perform his director’s duties.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules as its code of conduct for dealings in securities of the
Company by the directors. Based on a specific enquiry of the Company’s
directors, the directors have complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code throughout the year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
DEERRE ()

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Group adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) and is
disclosed as below.

The Dividend Policy is to allow its shareholders to participate in the
Company’s profits whilst to retain adequate reserves for future growth.
The Company may consider whether to pay dividends, if any, twice a year,
which are the interim dividend and final dividend. The Board may declare
special dividends in addition to such dividends as it considers appropriate.

Factors for consideration

In determining/recommending the frequency, amount and form of any
dividend in any financial year/period, the Board shall consider the following
factors:

the actual and expected financial results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”);

economic conditions and other internal or external factors that may
have an impact on the business or financial performance and position
of the Group;

the Group’s business strategies, including future cash commitments
and investment needs to sustain the long-term growth aspect of the
business;

the current and future operations, liquidity position and capital
requirements of the Group; and

any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The Board may, based on the above criteria, declare interim dividend (as
it considers appropriate) and recommend final dividend (subject to the
approval by the shareholders in a general meeting). The Company considers
that the dividend payout ratio may vary from year to year and there is no
assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular amount for any given
period.

Subject to the Bye-laws and applicable laws and regulations, dividends may
be paid in cash or be satisfied wholly or partly in the form of allotment of
shares of the Company. The Board may also consider the issuance of bonus
shares on a basis permitted by the applicable laws and regulations.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERRE (R)

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS'
RIGHTS

Information of the Company and the Group are delivered to its shareholders
through a number of channels, which includes annual report, interim report,
announcements and circulars. The latest information of the Company and
the Group together with the published documents are also available on the
Company's website.

The Company's annual general meeting provides a useful platform for direct
communication between the Board and shareholders. Separate resolutions
are proposed on each substantially separate issue at the general meetings.

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general meetings or to
appoint proxies to attend and vote at meetings for and on their behalf if
they are unable to attend the meetings.

The process of the Company’s general meeting will be monitored and
reviewed on a regular basis, and, if necessary, changes will be made to
ensure that shareholders'needs are best served.

The annual general meeting in 2021 (“the AGM") was held on 27 May 2021.
All directors and the Company's external auditor attended the AGM (in
person or through electronic means of communication).

According to Section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the “Act”)
and Bye-law 58 of the Bye-laws of the Company, shareholders holding
in aggregate not less than 10% of the paid-up capital of the Company
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the
Company, to request a special general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition, and
such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition.

Any number of shareholders representing not less than 5% of the total
voting rights of the Company on the date of the requisition or not less than
100 shareholders of the Company are entitled to put forward a proposal for
consideration at a general meeting of the Company. Shareholders should
follow the requirements and procedures as set out in Section 79 of the Act
for putting forward such proposal at a general meeting.

In relation to the shareholders communication, the shareholders can
contact the Company Secretary or the Senior Vice President of Corporate
Development and Communications by email to InvestorRelation@ctil.com
or by mail to Level 10, Cyberport 2, 100 Cyberport Road, Hong Kong.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the Company’s constitutional documents during
the year of review.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Group and have adopted the accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and complied with the requirements of
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (which include all Hong Kong
Accounting Standards and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

During the reporting year, the management has provided such explanation
and information to the Board as necessary to enable the Board to make
an informed assessment of the financial information and position of the
Group put forward to the Board for approval. The directors are not aware
of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s independent auditors are
set out in the Independent Auditors'Report on pages 63 to 71.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal controls of the Company, including
material financial, operational and compliance controls, risk management
functions and particularly the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programs and budget of the accounting and financial
reporting function. The Board, assisted by the Audit Committee and the
Risk Management Committee, is required to assess the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems on an ongoing basis.
Appropriate policies and control procedures have been designed and
established to ensure that assets are safeguarded against improper use or
disposal, relevant rules and regulations are adhered to and complied with,
reliable financial and accounting records are maintained in accordance with
relevant accounting standards and regulatory reporting requirements, and
key risks that may impact on the Group'’s performance are appropriately
identified and managed. These control procedures are designed to manage,
rather than eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and
such procedures can only provide reasonable, and not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or losses.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONTINUED)

Effective risk management is a fundamental part of the Group’s business
strategy. Recognising and managing risk is central to the business and to
protect the shareholders’interests and value. The Company operates within
overall guidelines and specific parameters set by the Board. Each transaction
is comprehensively analysed to understand the risks involved. Responsibility
for managing risks lies initially with the business functions concerned,
working within the overall strategy and risk tolerance established by the
Board, in conjunction with the Audit Committee and the Risk Management
Committee.

The Board meets quarterly, or more often if necessary, to review the
Group's operations and financial performance. The Board also reviews
the risks to the assets and operations of the Company, and acts upon any
comments from the internal and external auditors. The Board considers the
economic environment and the industry risk in assessing business risk. The
management also meets at least monthly to review the operations of the
Group and discuss any identified issues.

Key risks, control measures and management actions are continually
identified, reviewed and monitored by the management as part of the
Group's enterprise wide risk management framework. The internal auditor
assists and guides the management in the formulation of risk policies and
processes to effectively identify, evaluate and manage significant risks. The
management has established a risk identification and management process.
The risk profiles are reported to the Risk Management Committee, the Audit
Committee and the Board on a regular basis to highlight changes in the risk
assessment, quantitative and qualitative factors affecting the inherent risks
and effectiveness of respective controls. The ownership of these risks lies
with the respective business functions with stewardship residing with the
Board. Action plans to manage the risks are continually being monitored
and refined by the management and the Board. The internal auditor
conducts audits to review the risk management framework and processes
and assess the effectiveness of the internal controls of the Group, including
material financial, operational and compliance controls. Any material non-
compliance or lapses in internal controls together with corrective measures
are reported to the Risk Management Committee and the Audit Committee.

In performing its audit of the financial statements, the external auditors
perform tests over operating effectiveness of certain controls that they
intend to rely on which are relevant to the Group’s preparation of its
financial statements. The external auditors report any significant deficiencies
in such internal controls to the Risk Management Committee and the Audit
Committee.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONTINUED)

In addition to the review of risk management and internal controls
undertaken within the Company, from time to time, the Board and/or the
management will engage professional third parties to assess and comment
on the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal
controls and, where appropriate, recommendations will be adopted and
enhancements to the risk management and internal controls will be made.

Based on the framework established and the reviews conducted by the
internal and external auditors, the Board opines, with the concurrence of the
Audit Committee, that there are adequate and effective risk management
and internal control systems in place within the Group in addressing
material financial, operational, compliance and information technology
control risks in its current business environment.

Risk management framework

The Group has established an effective risk governance and management
framework in line with the requirements set out by the Listing Rules and
other regulations. This framework was built around a structure that enables
the Board and the management to discharge their risk management-related
responsibilities with appropriate delegation as well as checks and balances.
These responsibilities included defining risk appetite in accordance with
the Group’s business strategies and objectives, formulating risk policies that
govern the execution of those strategies, and establishing procedures and
limits for the approval, control, monitoring and remedy of risks.

The members of the Risk Management Committee positioned at the highest
level of the Group’s risk governance structure under the Board. Members
included three executive directors and an INED. The Risk Management
Committee had direct involvements in formulating the Group’s risk appetite,
and determined the levels of risk that the Group is willing to undertake
with reference to its financial capacity, strategic direction, prevailing market
conditions and regulatory requirements.

The Risk Management Committee will continuously ensure the Group'’s
risk appetite is realistically reflected in the policies and procedures that
the management adopted in executing its business functions. The Risk
Management Committee will regularly review the Group’s risk management
framework and ensure that all important risk-related tasks are performed
according to established policies and with appropriate resources.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONTINUED)

Inside information
Regarding procedures and internal controls for the handling and

dissemination of inside information, the Company:

(i) is aware of its obligations under the SFO and the Listing Rules and
the overriding principle that inside information should be announced
immediately if it is the subject of a decision;

(i) conducts its affairs with close regard to the applicable laws and
regulations prevailing in Hong Kong;

(i) has included in the Code of Conduct a strict prohibition on the
unauthorised use of non-public or inside information;

(iv)  has established a policy and implemented guidelines for monitoring,
reporting and disseminating inside information to our shareholders,
investors, analysts and media. These policies and guidelines also
identify who are the Company’s authorised spokespersons and their
responsibilities for communications with stakeholders; and

(v)  has communicated to all relevant staff regarding the implementation
of the policy and the relevant trainings are also provided.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Ernst & Young has been re-appointed as the independent auditors of
the Company by shareholders at the last annual general meeting. The
remuneration in respect of services provided by Ernst & Young to the Group
in 2021 is summarised as follows:
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HK$’000
TERx

Auditing services EZARTE 1,420
Non-auditing services (which included agreed upon procedures and IEFZRT (BT
other professional services) B RAMEZERS) 170
Total #Et 1,590
COMPANY SECRETARY REME

The company secretary, Mr. Ng Kwok Keung, was appointed as the
Company Secretary of the Company on 18 May 2007 and is a full time
employee of the Group. Mr. Ng is a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has confirmed that he
has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional trainings during the
reporting year.
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The directors present their report and the audited financial statements of
the Company and the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the
financial statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of the
Group's principal activities during the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year under review and
a discussion on the Group's future business development and important
events affecting the Company occurred during the year ended 31
December 2021 are provided in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement”
on pages 7 to 18 of this annual report.

An analysis of the Group's performance during the year ended 31 December
2021 using financial performance indicators is provided in the section
headed “Chairman’s Statement” of this report and other key performance
indicators are set out below.

Strategies
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Key Performance Indicators (“KPIs”)

b BEAYER (BREMERD

Maintain the Group’s liquidity for future development

REBAEENESRBDEAERRER

Net cash flows from operating activities in 2021: HK$56.4 million
(2020: HK$78.3 million)
RIZB - —FHREEHME

SIS MEFH 1 564085

—ZE-TF 78308 BT

Cash and cash equivalents as of 31 December 2021: HK$298.4 million
(31 December 2020: HK$295.6 million)

RIBZ—F+_A=+—HNBRERERARSEE
2084 BB (ZTE_TF+-A=+—8 : 295 EHT)

Enrich and enhance the Group's product portfolio

LERRAAEENERMAS

Keep the Group's staff turnover rate with no material
adverse change

HRAEEE I RAFREERTHED

Number of new product/module launched: 11

HER/RABRGHE - 11(ZE-F4F :10)

(2020: 10)

Staff turnover rate, representing number of resigned and terminated staff
during the year divided by number of staff of the Group as at the year
end date, in 2021: 31% (2020: 20%)
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations, businesses and
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties. The key
risks and uncertainties identified by the Group are discussed in this section.
There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to those shown
below, which are not known to the Group or which may not be material
now but which could become material in the future. Furthermore, risks can
never be eliminated completely due to inherent limitations in measures
taken to address them. Also, risks may be accepted for strategic reasons or if
it is deemed not cost-effective to mitigate them.

Strategic Risk
The business strategy may require the Group to develop its business both

organically and through new business combinations, strategic investments
and acquisitions. If market conditions change or for any other reasons, the
Group may decide to delay, modify or forgo some aspects of its growth
strategies.

Business Risk
The Group constantly faces the challenge of gauging and responding

promptly to market changes within the industry it operates in. Any failure
to interpret market trends properly and adapt its strategy to such changes
accordingly may have a material adverse effect on the Group'’s business,
financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

The Group has been looking into different kinds of business and investment
opportunities to broaden the revenue sources of the Group in order to
manage the associated risk and to create greater value for the shareholders.

The Board meets quarterly, or more often if necessary, to review the
Group’s operations and financial performance. The Board also considers the
economic environment and the industry risk in assessing the strategic risk as
well as the business risk. The management meets at least monthly to review
the business developments of the Group and keeps the Board informed on
any issues identified.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(CONTINUED)

Operational Risk
Operational risk is the risk of financial loss or reputational damage resulting

from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems.
Responsibility for managing operational risks in the Group rests with every
function at both divisional and departmental levels.

Key functions in the Group are guided by standard operating procedures,
limits of authority and a reporting framework. The Group will continuously
identify and assess key operational exposures and report such risk issues
to the Board and/or senior management as early as possible so that
appropriate risk responses can be taken.

Technology Obsolescence
The Group's operations depend on its ability to innovate and the successful

deployment of continuously evolving technologies, particularly its response
to technological and industry developments, as well as its ability to foresee
and/or rapidly adapt to the emergence of disruptive technologies. The
Group cannot be certain that technologies will be developed in time to
meet changing market conditions, that they will perform according to
expectations or that they will achieve commercial acceptance. The Group
has made relentless efforts in producing and delivering premium products
and high quality services. Looking forward, the Company will continue with
its research and innovation to enrich and enhance its products portfolio.

Manpower and Retention Risk
The Group's success and ability to grow depends largely on its ability to

attract, train, retain, and motivate highly skilled and qualified managerial,
sales, marketing, administrative, operating, and technical personnel. The
loss of key personnel, or the inability to find additional qualified personnel,
could materially and adversely affect the Group’s prospects and results of
operations.

The Group recognises the employees as one of our most valuable assets
and will keep on providing competitive remuneration package to motivate
the employees and to attract any suitable candidates in the market. The
Group also regularly reviews the remuneration package of employees and
makes necessary adjustments to conform to the market standard.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial Risk
In the course of its business activities, the Group is exposed to various

financial risks, including market, liquidity and credit risks. The currency
environment and interest rates cycles may significantly affect the Group’s
financial condition and results of operations.

The Group's earnings and capital or its ability to meet its business objectives
may be adversely affected by movements in foreign exchange rates,
interest rates and equity prices. In particular, any depreciation in the Group's
functional currency may affect its net profit margin. The Group closely
monitors the relative foreign exchange positions of its assets and liabilities
and allocates its holdings of different currencies accordingly in order to
minimise foreign currency risk.

The Group may also be subject to liquidity risk if it is unable to obtain
adequate funding to finance its operations. In managing liquidity risk, the
Group monitors its cash flows and maintains an adequate level of cash and
credit facilities to enable it to finance its operations and reduce the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows.

The Group is also subject to exposure to credit risk from its customers. New
customers are subject to credit evaluation while the Group continues to
monitor its existing customers, especially those with repayment issues. Cash
is deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

The financial risk management policies and practices of the Group are
shown in note 37 to the financial statements.

Hazard Risk

The Group’s business had been, to a certain extent, affected by the
recent global outbreaks of COVID-19. The global epidemic has resulted
in lockdowns and disruptions of transportations in various countries and
regions as well as a downward pressure in the global economy. In the event
that the outbreak of COVID-19 is not contained in Hong Kong, China or
globally in the near future, the economic activity across many industries in
the PRC, Hong Kong or worldwide, can be further adversely affected, which
could in turn have negative impact on the overall economy in the PRC,
Hong Kong and worldwide. Any economic downturn may adversely affect
the customer sentiment, weakening the demands for our products, and
in turn result in the reduction or even cessation of purchase orders for our
products, or delay in payment by our customers.

Further details are provided in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement”
on pages 7 to 18 of this annual report.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(CONTINUED)

Climate Risk
Climate risk is firstly classified as the Group’s material risk during the

financial year and was further evaluated from the impact of physical risk and
transition risk. The Board and the management were involved in managing
such risk with objective to reduce the impact from climate change.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group has established procedures in place to ensure that its operations
comply with applicable laws, rules and regulations. The Board is responsible
to monitor the Group’s policies and practices for achieving compliance with
legal and other regulatory requirements, and such policies and practices
are regularly reviewed. Any changes in the applicable laws, rules and
regulations are brought to the attention of relevant employees and relevant
operating units whenever necessary.

As far as the Board is aware, the Group has in all material respects complied
with laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group's
business and operations.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

Employees are valuable assets to the Group. The Group provides equal
employment opportunity and competitive remuneration packages to
attract and retain employees. In addition, the Group subsidises employees
to attend job-related training courses to enhance their career progression
and provides occupational health and safety information to employees to
raise their awareness. The Group prides itself on providing a safe, effective
and congenial work environment and it values the health and well-being
of its staff. Adequate arrangements, training and guidelines have been
implemented to ensure its working environment is healthy and safe. The
Group provides communications on health and safety matters and other
programmes to employees in order to raise their awareness of such issues
and enhance their related behaviour.

To suppliers and customers, the Group values mutually beneficial long
standing relationships with them by providing high quality services to
customers and developing mutual trust with suppliers.

Details of the Group’s trade receivables and trade payables are set out in
notes 19 and 24 to the financial statements, respectively.

There was no material dispute between the Group and its business partners.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group does not operate in an environmentally sensitive business
and is predominantly service-oriented. However, the Group is committed
to the long term sustainability of the environment and communities in
which it operates. As a supporter of environmental protection, the Group
endeavours to comply with laws and regulations regarding environmental
protection and adopt effective measures to achieve efficient use of
resources, energy saving and waste reduction. The Group also strives for a
greener future by eco-friendly practices in various aspects of our operations.
Efficient and effective use of energy and resources are encouraged in the
operation and management level of the Group. “Green Guidelines and
News"” are formulated and launched on a continuous basis via intranet or
email to promote the concept of “"Reduce, Reuse and Recycle”and to arouse
the employee’s awareness of the importance of environmental protection.

The Company will issue Environmental, Social and Governance Report in a
separate manner and publish the report on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited'’s (the “Stock Exchange”) website (www.hkexnews.hk) and the
Company's website (www.ctil.com).

DONATIONS

The Group's charitable donations during the year amounted to HK$6,000.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2021 and the Group's
financial position at that date are set out in the financial statements on
pages 72 to 205.

An interim dividend of 6 HK cents per ordinary share was paid on 15
September 2021. The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend
of 11 HK cents per ordinary share in respect of the year to shareholders on
the Register of Members of the Company on 9 June 2022.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited financial
statements, is set out on pages 207 to 208. This summary does not form
part of the audited financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTIONS AND AWARDED
SHARES

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital, share options and
awarded restricted shares of the Company during the year are set out in
notes 27, 28 and 29 to the financial statements, respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws or
the laws of Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in which the Company is
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year, the trustee of the Company’s restricted share award
scheme had, pursuant to the terms of the rules and trust deed of such
scheme, purchased from the market a total of 1,000,000 shares of the
Company being the awarded restricted shares. The total amount paid to
acquire these shares during the year was approximately HK$2,707,000.

Except as disclosed above, neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2021, the Company’s reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, amounted to HK$94,722,000, of which HK$27,180,000 has been
proposed as final dividend for the year. In addition, the Company's share
premium account, in the amount of HK$53,104,000, may be distributed in
the form of fully paid bonus shares.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest customers
accounted for 37.6% of the total sales for the year and sales to the largest
customer included therein amounted to 28.0%. Purchases from the Group's
five largest suppliers accounted for 47.5% of the total value of external
supplies purchased and services consumed for the year and purchases from
the largest supplier included therein amounted to 25.2%.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the
Group’'s five largest customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive directors:
Ng Cheung Shing (Chairman)

Cheung Wai Lam
Leung King San, Sunny
Ng Kwok Keung

INEDs:
Chan Yuen Shan Clara (appointed on 28 January 2022)

Ha Shu Tong
Lee Kwok On, Matthew
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 16 March
2022 in relation to the retirement of Ha Shu Tong as an INED. Ha Shu Tong
has notified the Company that he will retire and will not offer himself for re-
election as an INED at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

In accordance with bye-law 86(2) & 87 of the Company’s bye-laws, Chan
Yuen Shan Clara, Cheung Wai Lam, Lee Kwok On, Matthew and Ng Kwok
Keung will retire by rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

All INEDs of the Company renewed their appointments with the Company
for specific terms of three years but are subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the provisions of the Bye-laws.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from
Chan Yuen Shan Clara, Ha Shu Tong, Lee Kwok On, Matthew, and Ting
Leung Huel, Stephen, and as at the date of this report still considers them to
be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 19 to 22 of the annual
report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors'fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general meetings.
Other emoluments are determined by the Company’s board of directors
with reference to directors’duties, responsibilities and performance and the
results of the Group. In addition, the directors’ remuneration is reviewed by
the Remuneration Committee annually.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, every director shall be entitled to be indemnified
out of the assets and profits of the Company against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them may
incur in or sustain or about the execution of the duties of their office or
otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the directors and officers of the Group throughout
the year.

DIRECTORS’INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No director nor a connected entity of a director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance to the business of the Group to which the Company, or any
of the Company’s subsidiaries was a party during the year.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year and up to the date of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests of the directors in the share capital
and underlying shares of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
"SFQ"), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

EEEN

REARBEERFRABIL BB LHFAE
TAEBARRZHBREFNEAF D EBHE
B RITHEH

%i%ﬂﬁﬁ&*ﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁﬁZEé&

RZEZ—F+ZA=+—H FBFRAEA
AIREBABEE (EERBHFRBEKR (T7E
MG RG] EXVED) 2 B R AR R A i A
BEARRRBREREZFRIE GO E 352168
EFEZECMPAESENBRE ETETAE
FETEFRGNBETASTHEARARA R
B Pc ERRAn T

ARAEBERZHER

Number of shares held,
capacity and nature of interest

FEROBE - FoREREE

Percentage of

Directly Through the Company’s

beneficially controlled issued share

owned corporation capital

LERAN

=k ZEB BEITRA

Name of director BERER ZEH QA BatE
Ng Cheung Shing REB (a) 5,014,000 114,614,000 119,628,000 47.95
Cheung Wai Lam RIER 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 040
Leung King San, Sunny ~ Z2= % 1,030,000 - 1,030,000 041
Ng Kwok Keung R Bl 250,000 - 250,000 0.10
7,294,000 114,614,000 121,908,000 48.86
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN BEENROREERD ZERZR
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (CONTINUED) RE (E)

Long positions in shares of an associated corporation: R—EHRBEEIERGZHFE

Number of shares Percentage of
BRAHE the associated
Name of Relationship Directly Through  corporation’s
associated with the Classof  beneficially controlled issued
Name of director corporation Company shares owned corporation share capital
1 =2 A
=8 BHAAT HiE 7B ZEERT
EEpgE HB 2% % 13 %8 5l BERER FEH AT &Nl
Ng Cheung Shing Computer And Company's Non-voting 1,750,000 3,250,000 N/A
REB Technologies subsidiary deferred (note Pf{ 3 (b)) TE A

International ARFZ BREERLE

Limited YN
R 2R ER LA

Notes: e -

@@  The 114,614,000 shares were held by Chao Lien Technologies Limited (“Chao Lien”), @) CS. (BVI) Limited 2 2 B M B A RlEH R G R A A
a wholly-owned subsidiary of CS. (BVI) Limited. Mr. Ng Cheung Shing was entitled (T8 1) #578 114,614000 B B 1 - RERBs R E B
to exercise or control the exercise of one-third or more of the voting power at FACS. (BVI) Limited Z BRER A& AT i HIfTE =
general meetings of C.S. (BVI) Limited, which in turn was entitled to exercise or P2 —sk A EZRERE - M CS. (BVI) Limited Bl /5 48
control the exercise of one-third or more of the voting power at general meetings REBRRERE LITFEHRIESITE=9 22— A
of Chao Lien. Accordingly, Mr. Ng Cheung Shing was deemed, under the SFO, to be TERE#E-AL BREESFRBEGL REE
interested in all shares held by Chao Lien. FAERRANBHTISE ZMAROPHEEER -

(b)  The 3,250,000 non-voting deferred shares were held by Chao Lien. (b)  §%3,250,000 IR EIGCEREEIEAR D RBHRHA -

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the directors had BREXEREEN RZEBEZ_—F+=A=+—

registered an interest or a short position in the shares or underlying shares B BESEERERQ A KEERMBEER 2%

of the Company or any of its associated corporations that was required to S ERERD T - HAEREZF KRB IRNE

be recorded pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified 32 7B T RREE - KRB EM T AEREITH
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for 5RXHMEETASITASEEARR B2

Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers. RERHKE ©
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DIRECTORS’RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sections “Share option scheme” and “Restricted
share award scheme” below, at no time during the year were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company granted to any director or their respective spouses or minor
children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company,
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors
to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the
primary purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Further details of
the Scheme are disclosed in note 28 to the financial statements.

No share option of the Company was granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed during the year.

RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company adopted a restricted share award scheme (the "Award
Scheme”) on 22 May 2008 and renewed the Award Scheme on 31 May
2017 (the “Renewed Date”"). Pursuant to the Award Scheme, shares of
the Company (the "Awarded Shares”) are granted to eligible employees
(including directors) of the Group until the 10" anniversary from the
Renewed Date. The Company shall also pay cash to the appointed trustee
company for its acquisition and holding upon trust of the Awarded Shares
for the benefit of these employees and directors. The Awarded Shares will
then be transferred to these employees and directors upon vesting. The
aggregate number of shares to be awarded under the Award Scheme
throughout its duration shall not exceed 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company from time to time or such other percentage as notified to
them by the Board (provided that the overall limit on the number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under any other incentive or share option schemes
and under the Award Scheme must not exceed 30% of the shares of the
Company in issue from time to time).

Details of the Award Scheme and the shares awarded thereunder are set
out in note 29 to the financial statements.
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RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME BRI RO RS (F)
(CONTINUED)

The following table illustrates the number and movements of the Awarded TREJINEE_T_—F+_A=T—HLF
Shares under the Award Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2021. [ENZ R EIE T ZE R < 88 REEH -

Number of Unvested Awarded Shares

ABRRBRAEA
Weighted
At Awarded Vested Forfeited At average
Name of category of 1 January during during during 31December Vesting period of fair value
participant 2021 the year theyear the year 2021 Award date Awarded Shares per share
BRENA RZB=-% RZB=-% ShmE
FRER =f=f ERERR ERERE ERERN t=A=t-H RIEZRES RRRGGRE THATE
HKS$
BT
Directors
Bz
Ng Cheung Shing 150,000 - (50,000 - 100,000 14May 2018 30 April 2019to 30 April 2023 243
2R 505 “E-NEMA=TAZ
AATEA ZECCEMASTA
Cheung WailLam 50000 - (50,000) - - 14 October 2016 30 September 2017 to 243
FER N3 30 Septernber 2021
TRTHE ZEtENAZTRE
“R--ERAZTH
Cheung WailLam 150,000 - (50,000) - 100,000 14May 2018 30 April 2019 o 30 April 2023 243
FRR ZE-)\E ZZ-NEBAZTRE
AR ZTCCEMASTA
Ng Kwok Keung 150,000 - (50,000) - 100,000 14May 2018 30 April 2019 to 30 April 2023 243
RE% ZE-)\f “Z-NENA=THE
AR ZEICFMA=TA
Sub-total
U5y 500000 - (200,000) - 300000
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EEEHE ()
RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME AR R0 EREE S (&)
(CONTINUED)
Number of Unvested Awarded Shares
*EREBRAYA
Weighted
At Awarded Vested Forfeited At average
Name of category of 1January during during during 31 December Vesting period of fair value
participant 2021 the year theyear theyear 2021 Award date Awarded Shares per share
SRENS RoB=-% R-R=-F Shing
il k3 -A-A FRERE ERERE FRERK T-A=t1-H RIEZREH ERROEES YHOVE
HK$
BR
Other employees
EfifEE
In aggregate 24000 - (24,000 - - 14 October 2016 30 September 2017 to 1483
GHI S 30 Septernber 2021
TATER ZE-tENR=THE
TR -FAA=TH
In aggregate 795,000 - 265,000 - 530,000 14May 2018 30 Apri 2019to 30 April 2023 243
aif “2-\% “2-N\EMAZTRE
BAtRA ZRZZEMAZTH
In aggregate 336000 - (84,000) - 252000 4 July 2019 30 June 202010 30 June 2024 EAll
ait ZE-nE ZZ-TERAZTAE
tAmA ZRCRERRZTH
Sub-fotal
It 1,155,000 - (373000 - 782000
Total
it 1635000 - (573000 - 1082000
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ (NOT BEING A DIRECTOR OR CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OF THE COMPANY) INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

NZEBE-—F+-A=+—HB U TAKQT
AR EREFESMBEEIIFE3B61KERE
BFEZREZEZELMAGARAEEITRARE

As at 31 December 2021, the following interests of more than 5% of the
issued share capital and share options of the Company were recorded in
the register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to

section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions:

Name of shareholder
of the Company

FRARARREE BB

Capacity and nature of interest

EoRERME

Pt 5% A b2 #E s

wR:

Number of
ordinary
shares held

Fir
EERHEA

Percentage of
the Company's
issued share
capital
EART
ERTRA
BAl

Number of
share options
held

Fir i
BRERE

Chao Lien Technologies Limited @ Directly beneficially owned 114,614,000 45.94 -
BHHEERAR ERELR
CS. (BVI) Limited @ Through a controlled corporation 114,614,000 45.94 -
BBEMHAT
Puttney Investments Limited (‘PIL") (b) Directly beneficially owned 29,148,938 1168 -
EREREAR
Hutchison International Limited (‘HIL") (b) Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 1168 -
BBRIHAT
Hutchison Whampoa Limited (‘HWL") (b) Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.68 -
MEEHBRAR(HME]) BBXEHIAF
Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited (‘CKH") (b) Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.68 -
RICEZERBRAR(RE]) BBXEHIAF
CKHutchison Holdings Limited (‘CKHH ") (b) Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.68 -
RIMCEXZBRAA (&AM BBXEHIAF
Hui Yau Man Directly beneficially owned 26,782,000 10.73 -
FiEIDe EREREAR
Webb David Michael Directly beneficially owned 5,564,605 223 -
EREREAR
(@] Through a controlled corporation 9,397,335 377 -
FEBZEHRA
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ (NOT BEING A DIRECTOR OR CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OF THE COMPANY) INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (CONTINUED)

Long positions: (continued)
Notes:

(a) The interest was also disclosed as an interest of Mr. Ng Cheung Shing in the section
"Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and underlying shares” of this
report.

(b) PIL is a wholly-owned subsidiary of HIL, which in turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of HWL. CKH is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CKHH and subsidiaries of CKH are
entitled to exercise or control the exercise of more than one-third of the voting
power at the general meetings of HWL. By virtue of the SFO, CKHH, CKH, HWL and
HIL were deemed to be interested in the 29,148,938 shares of the Company held by
PIL.

() The 9,397,335 shares were held by Preferable Situation Assets Limited ("PSAL"). PSAL
was 100% directly owned by Mr. Webb David Michael and accordingly, Mr. Webb
David Michael is deemed to be interested in the said shares held by PSAL.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, no person, other than
the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in the section
"Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and underlying shares”
above, had registered an interest or a short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company that was required to be recorded

pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, there was no connected transaction nor continuing
connected transactions which need to be disclosed pursuant to Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of the contingent liabilities of the Company and the Group are set
out in note 33 to the financial statements.

FTERRREMAL (XHFEARF
EEWETETHRAR) RRMOKRME
ARG ()

e (&
fi s -

@  REZTRARSE[ESNRO RAERN ZEa
RRRI—EBARBERRRB AL 2 -

b)) PLAHLZZEWBAR HLAAMEZZ2EN
BRA -REAENZ2EMBRAR MEEZ
WBARGERMEZBRRERE EHAITESRIE
FIBB =92 — IR - RBEHFRPE K -
R RE - MNMERHLEARER PILETHF 29,148,938
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHE (@)

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
share capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed in the report, there is no other material subsequent event
undertaken by the Company or by the Group after 31 December 2021 and
up to the date of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the corporate governance of the Group are set out in the section
headed “Corporate Governance Report”in this annual report.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment as auditors of
the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Ng Cheung Shing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 March 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZHENHRE

EY zx

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
COMPUTER AND TECHNOLOGIES HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Computer And
Technologies Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 72 to 205, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
By B E#RE ()

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

BZBERE ()

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter

HEEZER

Revenue from contracts with customers

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recognised
certain contract revenue from application services over time,
generally using the input methods, by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the services. Input methods
recognise revenue on the basis of the efforts or inputs to the
satisfaction of a performance obligation relative to the total
expected inputs to the satisfaction of that performance obligation.
The determination of the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the services involves significant management judgements and
estimates, including various factors affecting the total expected
inputs to the complete satisfaction of the services.

We focus on this matter due to the significance of some of the
underlying contracts, the relative duration of some of those
contracts and the significant accounting judgements and
estimates required in estimating the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the services. Changes in the underlying estimates
could have a significant effect on the amounts of contract
revenue, costs and gross profit recognised for the year.

The related disclosures about significant accounting judgements
and estimates are included in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FEREM 2 BT NAREREERSE

We obtained an understanding and performed testing of the
Group's controls over its processes to record contract costs
and contract revenue from application services, including the
measurement of the progress towards complete satisfaction of
application services. We selected a sample of contracts entered
into during the year to understand their key contract terms, such
as contract price, scope of services and deliverables. We checked
to their project status reports and related supporting documents
showing, for example, costs incurred to date and compared to the
total budgeted costs to evaluate the measure of progress used by
management for revenue recognition. We have also checked the
project revenue calculations prepared by management.

Apart from the above, we assessed the significant judgements
and estimates made by management through the examination
of a sample of project documentation, including, inter alia, the
total budgeted inputs, by checking to relevant internal records
and/or the invoices or quotations provided by subcontractors/
other suppliers; and discussion of the status of those projects in
progress and relevant factors affecting the total expected inputs
to the complete satisfaction of the services with management.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

BZBERE ()

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter

HAEEREE

Gooadwill impairment assessment

As set out in note 16 to the financial statements, the Group
had goodwill acquired through business combinations with a
carrying amount of approximately HK$133 million allocated to the
application services cash-generating unit (the “CGU"). Goodwill
is tested for impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that its carrying amount may
be impaired.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the CGU to which the goodwill relates and whether the
recoverable amount of the CGU is less than their carrying amount.
For the year under review, the recoverable amount of the CGU
has been determined based on the CGU’s value in use using cash
flow projections specific to the CGU and applying a discount rate
which reflects specific risk to the CGU.
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BEELEE (E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ARz BT NAEERREEZSE

We evaluated management’s impairment assessment of goodwill
and the key audit procedures we performed included, inter alia,
the following:

assessing the key assumptions and estimates used
in management’s discounted cash flow projections,
including, inter alia, budgeted/forecasted revenue and
margins, growth rate and discounted rate, taking into
consideration the historical accuracy of the prior year’s
assumptions and estimates made by management, as
appropriate;

obtaining an understanding of the current and expected
future developments of the CGU and factors that might
affect key assumptions and estimates of the cash flow
projections and discount rate applied;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

BZBERE ()

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter

HEERER

The impairment testing of goodwill required management to

make certain significant accounting estimates and assumptions
that would affect the reported amount of goodwill and related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

We focus on this matter due to the magnitude of the balance
involved and the significant judgements and estimates required
in determining the recoverable amount of the CGU.

The related disclosures about significant accounting judgements
and estimates and impairment testing of goodwill are included
in notes 3 and 16 to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

AEREM BT NARERRERSEE

involving our internal valuation specialists to assist us
in evaluating the methodology used and certain key
assumptions and estimates made by management in
their goodwill impairment assessment, including, inter
alia, the specific discount rate and long term growth rate
applicable to the CGU, with reference to market and other
relevant information;

evaluating management’s assessment about reasonable
possible changes in certain key assumptions and
estimates, as appropriate; and

assessing the adequacy of related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
By B E#RE ()

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
By B E®RE ()

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
alsor

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
By B E#RE ()

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
By B E®RE ()

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor's report is Chan Yat Fai, Peter.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

27/F, One Taikoo Place
979 King's Road
Quarry Bay

Hong Kong

16 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
mERER

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #{Z—ZF——4#+_-A=+—HIFE

2021 2020
—B_—F —TTHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT T
REVENUE WA 5 265,504 256,265
Cost of sales and services §HE M AR FS AKX AN (113,073) (111,477)
Gross profit E7 152,431 144,788
Other income and gains, net B A B W a0 R 5 5,367 22,279
Foreign exchange differences, net VE W 2 R0 ER (403) (625)
Fair value gains/(losses), net: A EWE (E518) F58 -
Financial assets at fair value through BAFELER AR5
profit or loss BE 163 (2,755)
Investment properties "EYE 500 (941)
Selling and distribution expenses HE RDHMAX (33,068) (32,812)
General and administrative expenses, net — M RITE A FRE (60,626) (60,906)
Finance cost %5 & A 7 (245) (1,155)
Other expenses HimAx (6,492) (6,233)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX RR B A 3 Al 6 57,627 61,640
Income tax expense FrBHiA X 10 (4,634) (1,726)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REE T 52,993 59,914
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: T AL
Owners of the parent ISYNEIEZZEPN 53,844 60,125
Non-controlling interests FE T2 611 e 2 (851) 2171)
52,993 59914
2021 2020
—B=—F e
HK cents HK cents
Al &L
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLETO & AR BERKRREML
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE BREF
PARENT 12
Basic AR 21.76 2431
Diluted e 21.67 2419
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

meEEERER

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z—Z——4%+-_A=+—HIFE

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Other comprehensive income that may be
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:

Exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR
THE YEAR

ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

REEEA

=GN

RERBE  EtemEl AR sEEH

DRERER

BEBINEBREEZELZR

FEEZHEHBALE

PPN S

BREERA
FEFEHI MR

e 25

2021 2020
—®R-—F —T-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FHET
52,993 59914
1,535 2,608
54,528 62,522
55,379 62,733
(851) @11)
54,528 62,522
GEEARRT T —FEFR

73



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BRI R

31 DECEMBER 2021 —_E_=_—f+_-_A=+—H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties

Right-of-use assets

Goodwill

Other intangible assets

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss — debt investment

Deposits

Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Trade receivables

Contract assets

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

Tax recoverable
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss — listed equity investments
and derivative financial instruments
Pledged bank deposits
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade payables, other payables and accruals

Contract liabilities
Lease liabilities
Tax payable

Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES
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18
19
21

20

22
23
23

24
25
15(b)

2021 2020
—E-_—F —E_FTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FET
1,212 1,987
66,790 66,290
18,142 4,983
135,001 135,001
56,358 60,956
2,100 2,100
2,419 628
2,061 2,320
284,083 274,265
36 7
45,601 44,498
25,628 20,248
15,041 19414
3,772 5,155
7,546 7,383
1,193 666
298,397 295,632
397,214 393,003
63,718 66,581
54,222 58,708
7,923 4614
7,428 3,973
133,291 133,876
263,923 259,127
548,006 533,392




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

e MR R (E)

31 DECEMBER 2021 —ZE_-_—4+_A=+—H

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other payables

Contract liabilities

Lease liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Net assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to owners of the parent

Issued capital

Share premium account

Shares held under the restricted share award
scheme

Other reserves

Proposed final dividend

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Ng Cheung Shing & &
Director 2%

FRBEE
Hofth &5 5RIR
BHAR
HEAE
ELEBARE
FRBAERE
BEFE

s

BATRERARGER

EBHITHRA

RIBE R BID EBE B A
Z BAn

Ho At {7 5

R R BB S

FEIEH R
Mg

24
25
15(b)
26

27
27

27

11

75

Leung King San, Sunny 2 £ %

Director &%

e 25

2021 2020
—B-—F —EETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FATT
- 537
1,850 2,309
10,325 2424
12,202 12,563
24,377 17,833
523,629 515,559
24,949 24,949
53,104 53,104
(6,011) (4,480)
422,919 409,945
27,180 29,702
522,141 513,220
1,488 2,339
523,629 515,559
SEBARAT B FFR



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEEnBER

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z—Z_-_—4+_A=1+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

Shares held
under the
Share-based X Proposed Non-

lssued ~ premium d payment  Goodwil ve fluctuation Retained final controlling

capital account scheme reserve reserve profits dividend inte

R

SRRt
R LRI G
Notes 51000 500 ( HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
Thr  TEn

At T January 2020 2F-f-H 24949 53104 (5462) 5386 (7.227) 746 (3,191) 393314 19760 481379 - 481379
Profitfor the year REEET - - - - - - - 60125 - 60,125 @) 59914
Othercomprehensiveincome ~~ AEEEMRERA :
for the year:
Exchange differences on BEBNEBRELL
translation of foreign ERER
operations - - - - - 2608 - - 2608 - 2608
Total comprehensieincome  AFE2EMALE
for the year - - - - - - 2608 60,125 - 62733 n) 62522
Acquisition of a subsidiary hE-AHEAR 31 - - - - - - - - - - 2550 2550
Purchase of shares held under the B E AR 1k 7 5 BT &
restricted shareaward scheme 8 TR {7 29 - - (239) - - - - - - (239) - (235)
Vesting of shares held under the AR IR {3 2@ EIAT
restricted share award scheme R BE 2 = - 1217 1217) - - - - - - - -
Share award anangements R RER S 0 - - - 1504 - - - - - 1,504 - 1504
Final 2019 dividend declared ER-F-NFRERE = = = = = = = 9 (9760 (19789 - (19789
Interim 2020 dividend “TTEMARS 1 - - - - - - - -1
Proposed final 2020 dividend BR-Z-ZERERS n = - - - - - - (29702) 29702 = = =
At31 December 2020 R-Z-%%
+=A=+-A 24949 53,104 (4480) 5673 (7220 746 (583) 411,336 29702 513220 2339 515559
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)
REERSBR(R)

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #{Z —ZF - — 4+ _-A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRREHARLE

Other reserves

Aot

Shares held
under the
Share  restricted Share-based Exchange Proposed Non-
Issued  premium shareaward  payment  Goodwill  Reserve fluctuation  Retained final controlling

capital  account scheme reserve reserve funds reserve profits  dividend Total interests
REARH
RH%R
B&f Rt wEKE  RHAR ik fiff  EXRE RE  BRAH FiRRM
k& Bk 2kf e s £¢ ffE aAl RE a7 B ERAE
Notes HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
i Tén TEn Tz TEnr TEx TER TEx TEr TEx TR TEn  TEn
(note30)  (note30)
(Wik3o)  (HfsE30)

At T January 2021 24,949 53,104 (4,480) 5,673 (7,227) 746 (583) 411,336 29,702 513,220 2,339 515,559
Profit for the year REERT - - - - - - - 5384 - 5384 (851) 52993
Othercomprehensiveincome ~~ AEEEMRFMRA :
for the year:
Exchange differences on BEBNEBRELL
translation of foreign EXES
operations - - - - - - 1,535 - - 1,535 - 1,535
Total comprehensive income AEER2ERALE
for the year - - - - - - 1,535 53,844 - 55,379 (851) 54,528
Purchase of shares held under the  EEE AR IR {7 £ H 2l
restricted share award scheme 8 Tk {7 29 - - (2,707) - - - - - - (2,707) - (2,707)
Vesting of shares held under the BRIk {3 L@ EIAT
restricted shareaward scheme ~ RIDRE 2 - - 1,176 (1,176) - - - - - - - -
Share award arrangements Pk e 29 - - - 838 - - - - - 838 - 838
Final 2020 dividend declared ER-F-RERFRE - - - - = = = (42 (29702)  (29744) - (2974)
Interim 2021 dividend “R-FhHRE 1 - - - - - - - (1485) - (14845 - (14885)
Proposed final 2021 dvidend R =F=—F KBRS 1 = - - - - - - (27180) 27,180 = - -
At31 December 2021 KZE=-%
+-A=t+-H 24,949 53,104 (6,011) 5,335 (7,227) 746 952 423113 27,180 522141 1,488 523,629

MERSREEERAR B —FFH
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERTRER

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #{Z—ZF——4#+-A=+—HIFE

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax
Adjustments for:

Finance cost

Bank interest income

Dividend income from listed investments at
fair value through profit or loss

Gain on disposal of items of property, plant
and equipment, net

Fair value losses/(gains), net:
Financial assets at fair value through profit

or loss

Investment properties

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of
trade receivables, net

Amortisation of other intangible assets

Equity-settled share-based payment expense

Gain on lease modifications

Decrease/(increase) in inventories
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables
Increase in contract assets
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables,
other payables and accruals
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities

Cash generated from operations
Hong Kong profits tax refunded/(paid), net
Overseas taxes paid

Net cash flows from operating activities

ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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HEWE  BFERREERE
Z W as 5 RR
RFEER () FE
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MBEE
REME
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EREEEZHE
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GRERRE S
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Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

2021 2020
—¥-——F —E-FHF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FAT
57,627 61,640
245 1,155
(2,508) (3,400)
(505) (480)
(12) (1,999)
(163) 2,755
(500) 941
1,413 1,437
6,125 4,885
(123) 408
6,492 6,233
838 1,504
(574) =
68,355 75,079
(29) 590
(1,015) 5,544
2,582 (3,042)
(5,380) (22)
(3,400) 1,480
(4,945) 4823
56,168 84,452
247 (4,709)
(64) (1,400)
56,351 78,343




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
mERERER(E)

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #{Z —ZF - — 4+ _-A=+—HILFE

2021 2020
—EBE_-—F

—ZETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH T T T

Net cash flows from operating activities KEEBFB R REFHE 56,351 78,343
CASH FLOWS FROM/(USED IN) INVESTING R EEEFE (FiA)28E

ACTIVITIES RE
Bank interest received B UERITH B 2,508 3,400
Dividends received from listed investments at ~ EAFELEBZIE AR 2 £/

fair value through profit or loss &R B A 505 480

Purchases of items of property, plant and

BEYE BELREHERB

equipment (641) (777)
Additions to other intangible assets REHMEREE (1,894) (4,843)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEWE - WE REHEE

plant and equipment FTiS 38 15 2,655
Proceeds from disposal of an investment e —IHIRE WS HIE

property = 2,860
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at HEZRATELEBSARZ

fair value through profit or loss B 75 & EEFT S 58

— debt investment —EBHRE - 2,535
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at HERATFELSERZARZ

fair value through profit or loss B & EFTS 3IE

— money market certificate —BEmIFE - 43,267
Acquisition of a subsidiary and call options W B — M B A B )RR BE ER e 31 - 208
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank deposits 2 IR T FORM A~ (38 0) (527) 1,875
Increase in non-pledged bank deposits with WEERREISABA=EAZ

original maturity of more than three months EE A RITERIL N

when acquired (113,979) (14,361)
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities & EBFT1S, (FTH) 2R &

MEFH (114,013) 37,299
CASH FLOWS USED IN FINANCING METHRAZHERE

ACTIVITIES
Purchases of shares held under the restricted & B A IR $ll i {7 2ZEB) 5T 211E T

share award scheme &) (2,707) (235)
Principal portion of lease payments HENKHASE D (7,432) (4,018)
Dividends paid B E (44,589) (32,161)
Interest paid ERAE (245) (1,155)
Net cash flows used in financing activities BB EBFACRESREFHE (54,973) (37,569)

RBFGREERAT —F-—55H
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
%:AIE%/JHIE%(II‘E)

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #{Z — T~ —F+ - A=+—HItFE

2021 2020
—B-—F —E-FHF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) INCASHAND RE&RZRBRSEE M,

CASH EQUIVALENTS (D) F8 (112,635) 78,073
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year E?}]Zﬁ%&%ﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁ 227,711 147,170
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net FE o BFE 1,421 2,468
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS fF%ziﬁﬁ&% BREEE

AT END OF YEAR 116,497 227,711
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND RERERAREEELEBRIM

CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the HEMBHRARMT RS R

consolidated statement of financial position ZRBEEE 298,397 295,632
Non-pledged bank deposits with original WERREBEBBA=@A 2

maturity of more than three months when AR IR IRITE R

acquired (181,900) (67,921)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the HRERERERMTZEHAER

consolidated statement of cash flows =) % BE 116,497 227,711
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 ¥R R B o

31 DECEMBER 2021 —Z_-_—4+_A=+—H

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of the
Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM11, Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company is
located at Level 10, Cyberport 2, 100 Cyberport Road, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following principal
activities:

provision of enterprise applications software and e-business
services for enterprises including the provision of enterprise
applications software with implementation and ongoing
support services; the Government Electronic Trading Services
(“GETS"), cloud services and other related value-added services;

provision of information technology (“IT") solutions
implementation and application software development;
provision of IT and related operation/infrastructure outsourcing
services; business process outsourcing (‘BPO") services; and
provision of IT systems and network infrastructure with related
design, implementation and ongoing support services; and

property and treasury investments.

NGIE=¢

MEBASREEAERARIIRABRES
ks 2 BR AR - HFEMiltERALRN
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton

Bermuda KRBT ELEMIN
%5 %{E% B 1005 B A 2B 1042 o

FAAEEREEATERERR

AT ERECEERSGLEFE
BRS  RRERESEERRFE
STEREHCERBRME  HFE
FB SR ([GETS)) ~ B BB R
H i AARE S E AR TS

REEBMBI ((BEARE]) @BRE
£ Em&ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ#?‘)ﬁ RHEM
ﬂ&&*ﬁ%ﬁ B E RN AR
% EBREINA ([EFRZINAD)
R RIEHEMBIERER R
A BARBRT  BER
BEYERERS &

MERBBRE -

81
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
5o 55 e Y o ()

31 DECEMBER 2021 —_E=_—f+_-A=+—H

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of incorporation/

Issued ordinary/

1. AFEHR A

ol pNCIbA e
AAREEHBARZFBMT :

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Computer And Technologies

registration and
business

MM R

BEMH

British Virgin Islands/

registered
share capital

BRTEE/
MR A

Ordinary US$1,000

(BVI) Limited Hong Kong @AY 1,000 T
ERELEE/BA

Computer And Technologies Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2
International Limited B Non-voting deferred ©

MBERERAR HKS5,000,000

ERR2ET
EREEELO
500000078 70

Computer And Technologies PRC/Mainland China US$200,000
International Trading (Shanghai) FR B /#f B Fa it 200,000 7T
Company Limited @

RBRGERERE S (LE)
ARREE

Computer And Technologies PRC/Mainland China US$3,500,000
(Shanghai) Company Limited © R //#h Bl fu it 3,500,000 7T

TEMBERRRARARY

Computer & Technologies British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$1
Investment Limited Hong Kong LTERIET

RERLEE/BE

C&T (Guangzhou) Investment Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2

Limited BB ERR2ET

B (BN REBRAA

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company

ERAEERE
BHEAIL

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

Principal activities

TEXRH

Investment holding

RAEK

Provision of IT solutions
development and
implementation services,
investment holding and
treasury investments

REZARBRBERTRER

Bk - REERK
BEBRE

Sale of computer networks and
system platforms

HEEHBRLZRTE

Provision of system and network
integration services

RERFRBE SRR

Investment holding and treasury
investments

REZBRREBRE

Property holding
RENE



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 DECEMBER 2021 —E_-_—f+_A=+—H

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Place of incorporation/

Issued ordinary/

83

1. AREH (&)
MEAR &R (E)

registration and
business

i) A 31D

registered
share capital

BRTEE/

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company

Principal activities

EEHHY A mRA

C&T (Hong Kong) Investment British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$1
Limited Hong Kong L@Ek1ET

R (BE)REBRAA ERELER/BE

Computer And Technologies Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000
Solutions Limited BB 3B 100007 T

HBRHERAR

Computer And Technologies PRC/Mainland China US$1,128,000

Solutions (Shenzhen) Company 7 B,/ F B X3t 11280003 7T
Limited ©

Bzt (RIDBRRFY

Computer And Technologies Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000
Resources Limited BB 3B 100007 T

HBERERERAR

Computer And Technologies Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000

Software (Hong Kong) Limited &7 L 3BA% 10,0007 7T

R R mat (BR)ARAR

Global e-Business Services (BVI) British Virgin Islands/ Class AUS$1,600
Limited Hong Kong Class B US$400
KBRAME /BB AHI60ET
BAE400E T

AR REMAERAE
BEED FEXEH
2021 2020
—-F ZZ-TF
100 100 Property holding
RENE
100 100 Provision of IT solutions
development and
implementation services
REEANBEBRRAIRER
RE iR
100 100 Provision of IT solutions
development and
implementation services
RUEEARBRBARAT RBRE
RE iR
100 100 Provision of human resources
management
REANERER
100 100 Provision of enterprise
applications software and
related operation
RELETHEAR
HEEE
100 100 Investment holding

RERK

MERSREEERAR B —FFH
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 DECEMBER 2021 —_E=_—f+_-A=+—H

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Global e-Business Services Limited

BREFHERKEBRAA

Global e-Trading Services Limited

BEARBEARAF

IPL Research Limited

Platinum China Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Place of incorporation/
registration and
business

MR R R

BRI

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

B

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Issued ordinary/
registered
share capital
BRTEE/
E N

Ordinary HK$1,010,000
AR 1,010,000/ 7T

Ordinary HK$2,501,000
T FI% 2,501,000 7T

Ordinary HK$3,000,000

Non-voting deferred ©
HK$300,000

3% A% 3,000,000 7T

ERZERT
300,000/ 7

Ordinary HK$10,000
LB 100005 T

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

1. 2FEH(HE)
MR Z2E ¥ (&)

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company
ERAEERE
BEEDL

2021 2020
—¥--F | —2-2F
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100

Principal activities

TERH

Provision of enterprise
applications software services

REDREIER RS

Provision of e-business related
services, including government
electronic trading services

RUESTEZRERE - £
EERETE SRS

Provision of enterprise
applications software and
related operation outsourcing
services and investment
holding

RECRAMHEANIEEE
BN PR DA IR AR B PR AR

Trading of computer software
licences, provision of
training, implementation
and maintenance of software
services, and investment
holding

BEETMEM TR  RE
Yl B kg ER
BARKREER
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NAER (&)
MR Z2E R (&)

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 1.

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Place of incorporation/

Issued ordinary/

registration and
business

) A 531D

BEMY

registered
share capital
BRTEE/
R A

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company
ERAEERE
BEEDML
2021
—&

2020
“T-ZF

Principal activities

TEXRH

Platinum Software Systems PRC/Mainland China Ordinary US$200,000 100 100 Trading of computer software
(Shanghai) Company Limited ® R //#h B fuith % 200,000% 7T licences, provision of training
He8EZRG(LE) and implementation,
BERARO maintenance and support
services
EESHEM SR 74
BIREmAREERX
B R
Sanyo Extended System Services  Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000,000 100 100 Provision of computer support
Limited BB I BAY 100000074 7T and programming services,
SHEARZGERAA and investment holding
REBR IR REF R R
BARKREER
Sanyo Extended Data Systems Hong Kong Ordinary HK$180,000 100 100 Provision of computer support
Limited BB I BA% 180,000 T and programming services
ZHRRERBRAA RESHIERER
Rt RS
LARREtERARO PRC/Mainland China Ordinary US$450,000 100 100 Provision of enterprise
B/ hE R, 37 A% 450,000 F T applications software and

R R R R E AR QA

related operation outsourcing
services

RELRERZMG EEE
ENNHIRT

—T——FFIR
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1. CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

1. AFEHR A

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

BRI CRFT) BR AR Macau Ordinary MOP25,000
RF AR 25,0008 T

CISC Limited @ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2,202,950
G LI 2202950 T

Place of incorporation/
registration and
business

MM R

Issued ordinary/
registered
share capital
BROTEE/

EENY EUTEN

The subsidiary is registered as a Sino-foreign equity joint venture under PRC
law.

The subsidiaries are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under
PRC law.

The non-voting deferred shares, which are not held by the Group, carry no
rights to dividends or to receive notice of or to attend or vote at any general
meeting. In the winding-up of the subsidiaries, the holders of the deferred
shares carry the rights to receive a return of capital after the holders of the
ordinary shares have received a sum of HK$1,000,000,000 per ordinary share.

CISC Limited, a Hong Kong incorporated company, is accounted for as
a subsidiary of the Group even though the Group has only 40% equity
interest in this company based on the factors explained in note 31 to the
financial statements.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

MR Z2E ¥ (&)

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company  Principal activities
AR R RA
BZADL TREKR
2021
100 100 Provision of enterprise
applications software and
related operation
RECEERARM R
HREE
40 40 Provision of products, solutions

and consulting services on

cyber intelligence, and cyber

security
REBEEENBEL D

Em BRAARK

i A BR 7%

@ EMBARNRETEEEZMATING
B

b)) ZEMBRRDREDBEIEZEMAIE
BELE -

(O ZEUIBAEEREZERZRETR
DHEZEERBRE 2R TEEZS
KWERFWREASBEREFEFBAT N
REERBZEF - MEBARER BT
BROFBEANEEREBRFEARTRE
38 A% U BL A ££1,000,000,00078 T 1 © 1A E R
BEN -

d)  EEARNEERASC Limited (—E BB EM A
F]) (B8 40% B AN FE 25 - tEE R B R KT
HNFTEENEER % ARNIEALRER
Mo B AR AR ©



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)
Except for Computer And Technologies (BVI) Limited, all of the above

subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the
year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group
or of particular importance to the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars
of excessive length.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("“HKFRSs”) (which include
all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
investment properties and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars ("HKS$") and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial

statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2021. A subsidiary
is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee (i.e,, existing rights that give the Group the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

2.1

NREH (&)
MELR &R (&)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power

over an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the

investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated

until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on

consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control described above. A change in
the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is

accounted for as an equity transaction.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 $R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2021 —Z_-_—4+_A=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill and other intangible assets) and liabilities
of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in
equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(ii) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis
as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related

assets or liabilities.

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the first time

for the current year's financial statements.

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
Phase 2

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs are described

below:

(@ Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and
HKFRS 16 address issues not dealt with in the previous
amendments which affect financial reporting when an existing
interest rate benchmark is replaced with an alternative risk-free
rate ("RFR"). The amendments provide a practical expedient
to allow the effective interest rate to be updated without
adjusting the carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities
when accounting for changes in the basis for determining the
contractual cash flows of financial assets and liabilities, if the
change is a direct consequence of the interest rate benchmark
reform and the new basis for determining the contractual
cash flows is economically equivalent to the previous basis

immediately preceding the change.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 $R 2% B (AR
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(@)

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

(continued)

In addition, the amendments permit changes required by
the interest rate benchmark reform to be made to hedge
designations and hedge documentation without the hedging
relationship being discontinued. Any gains or losses that
could arise on transition are dealt with through the normal
requirements of HKFRS 9 to measure and recognise hedge
ineffectiveness. The amendments also provide a temporary
relief to entities from having to meet the separately identifiable
requirement when an RFR is designated as a risk component.
The relief allows an entity, upon designation of the hedge, to
assume that the separately identifiable requirement is met,
provided the entity reasonably expects the RFR risk component
to become separately identifiable within the next 24 months.
Furthermore, the amendments require an entity to disclose
additional information to enable users of financial statements
to understand the effect of interest rate benchmark reform on
an entity’s financial instruments and risk management strategy.
The amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group.

Amendment to HKFRS 16 provides a practical expedient for
lessees to elect not to apply lease modification accounting
for rent concessions arising as a direct consequence of the
covid-19 pandemic. The practical expedient applies only to
rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the
pandemic and only if (i) the change in lease payments results in
revised consideration for the lease that is substantially the same
as, or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately
preceding the change; (ii) any reduction in lease payments
affects only payments originally due on or before 30 June 2021;
and (iii) there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

The Group elected to apply lease modification accounting for
all rent concessions granted by the lessors as a result of the
covid-19 pandemic during the year ended 31 December 2021.
The amendment did not have any impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

B EERKE

E2 28 ()

BN R EERT A RF A R ERE
FT#8E qﬁT/ﬁ?HE&ﬁT/ﬁ”Y{#LTT
B MAEFEE R BE
R EEENTRESYBERS
B TR EERE R IEE R EE
TR - Mﬁgﬁﬁwﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁo
i 42 2, B ) = 4% 5 E 4 B B 4B B 2B
“h ZEBINEFRETES
WAZE R B T B5 18 ik Bl 0 2 Sk B BB o
Thﬁ%ﬁ'ﬁ/\ﬁﬁﬂi‘ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁ I =& [ B
4B B 2B D AR 2R 24 18 B A 8 85 15 A]
BEHA  AZREATERBRIE
EE T RBTE MmEAEBEHER 2
T ZEBFT MR EER
AWBEBEINER - NEHTBHHRED
FREEMTHANEREEREHNE
BN TARRKREERENE
2 - ZEZBIHASENTBARR
RERBTETMEATE -

EREMBHRELERE 165 (BRI A)
ETABARITERE R A OJ#EE
NER R 8 B R AR = R 15 A8
WHSRRNEEGER] - ZE
ﬁf’%—ﬁﬂgﬁjﬁjﬂ BAREEER
SHEEMNESRE  BATEAT
B OHEENRESRNLENR
HE ﬁﬁ'wﬁﬁﬁﬁlﬁ ER DR
%Fmﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁ (i) &
ROERIREFERIBER
'*'__ﬁz/\ﬂ T HZ BRI
Ko (i) 70 & B B A IR R R I B R
BEE -

REE_ZTE_—F+-_A=+—H
EFE AEEEERAMBLE
ARFAERESEBEmETFTHA
CRENETHEBE - ZF1E5]
ﬁ$ﬁlmW%#R&%ﬁIﬁE
BEDN-Z



91

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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Amendments to HKAS 12

Deferred Tax related to Assets and

(EFTA)

xSl

VAN

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG 23 EHEMEERERZE BT B
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS ¥ & ZE 2
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG 2.3

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

8 As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong Kong Interpretation
5 Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower of
a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised
in October 2020 to align the corresponding wording with no change in
conclusion

As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October 2020,
HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption that permits
insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning
before 1 January 2023

’ The HKICPA amends HKFRS 17 in February 2022 to permit a classification
overlay for financial assets presented in comparative periods on initial
application of HKFRS 17

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference to
the previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of
Financial Statements with a reference to the Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting issued in June 2018 without significantly
changing its requirements. The amendments also add to HKFRS 3
an exception to its recognition principle for an entity to refer to the
Conceptual Framework to determine what constitutes an asset or
a liability. The exception specifies that, for liabilities and contingent
liabilities that would be within the scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int
21 if they were incurred separately rather than assumed in a business
combination, an entity applying HKFRS 3 should refer to HKAS 37 or
HK(FRICO)-Int 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify that contingent assets do not
qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. The Group expects to
adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January 2022. Since
the amendments apply prospectively to business combinations for
which the acquisition date is on or after the date of first application,
the Group will not be affected by these amendments on the date of
transition.
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B35 $R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2021 —E——§+_-_A=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28
(2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture. The amendments require
a full recognition of a gain or loss resulting from a downstream
transaction when the sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a
transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business, a gain
or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in the investor's
profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor's interest in
that associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be applied
prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date of amendments
to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA in
January 2016 and a new mandatory effective date will be determined
after the completion of a broader review of accounting for associates
and joint ventures. However, the amendments are available for
adoption now.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current
or non-current. The amendments specify that if an entity’s right to
defer settlement of a liability is subject to the entity complying with
specified conditions, the entity has a right to defer settlement of the
liability at the end of the reporting period if it complies with those
conditions at that date. Classification of a liability is unaffected by the
likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement
of the liability. The amendments also clarify the situations that are
considered a settlement of a liability. The amendments are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and shall
be applied retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group's financial statements in the period of initial application.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies require
entities to disclose their material accounting policy information
rather than their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together with other
information included in an entity’s financial statements, it can
reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users
of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements. Amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2
provide non-mandatory guidance on how to apply the concept of
materiality to accounting policy disclosures. Amendments to HKAS 1
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
and earlier application is permitted. Since the guidance provided in
the amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 is non-mandatory,
an effective date for these amendments is not necessary. The Group
is currently assessing the impact of the amendments on the Group's
accounting policy disclosures.

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes
in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies.
Accounting estimates are defined as monetary amounts in financial
statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty. The
amendments also clarify how entities use measurement techniques
and inputs to develop accounting estimates. The amendments are
effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023 and apply to changes in accounting policies and changes in
accounting estimates that occur on or after the start of that period.
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group's financial statements in the
period of initial application.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial recognition
exception so that it no longer applies to transactions that give rise
to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences, such as
leases and decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities are
required to recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability
for temporary differences arising from these transactions. The
amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied to transactions related
to leases and decommissioning obligations at the beginning of the
earliest comparative period presented, with any cumulative effect
recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
profits or other component of equity as appropriate at that date.
In addition, the amendments shall be applied prospectively to
transactions other than leases and decommissioning obligations.
Earlier application is permitted.

The Group has applied the initial recognition exception and did
not recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for
temporary differences for transactions related to leases. Upon
initial application of these amendments, the Group will recognise
a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for deductible and
taxable temporary differences associated with right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities, and recognise the cumulative effect of initially
applying the amendments as an adjustment to the opening balance
of retained profits at the beginning of the earliest comparative period
presented.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting from the
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from
selling items produced while bringing that asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds
from selling any such items, and the cost of those items, in profit or
loss. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied retrospectively only to
items of property, plant and equipment made available for use on or
after the beginning of the earliest period presented in the financial
statements in which the entity first applies the amendments. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements in the
period of initial application.

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing
whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the cost of fulfilling the
contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract. Costs
that relate directly to a contract include both the incremental costs
of fulfilling that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract
(e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property,
plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as well as contract
management and supervision costs). General and administrative
costs do not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless
they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the contract.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied to contracts for which an
entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the
annual reporting period in which it first applies the amendments.
Earlier application is permitted. Any cumulative effect of initially
applying the amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment to
the opening equity at the date of initial application without restating
the comparative information. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements in the
period of initial application.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 $R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2021 —Z_-_—4+_A=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out amendments
to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples accompanying HKFRS 16,
and HKAS 41. Details of the amendments that are expected to be
applicable to the Group are as follows:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an entity
includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or
modified financial liability are substantially different from the
terms of the original financial liability. These fees include only
those paid or received between the borrower and the lender,
including fees paid or received by either the borrower or
lender on the other's behalf. An entity applies the amendment
to financial liabilities that are modified or exchanged on or after
the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the
entity first applies the amendment. The amendment is effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendment is not expected to
have a significant impact on the Group’s financial statements in
the period of initial application.

HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments from
the lessor relating to leasehold improvements in lllustrative
Example 13 accompanying HKFRS 16. This removes potential
confusion regarding the treatment of lease incentives when
applying HKFRS 16.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 $R 2% B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2021 —ZE——4#+—-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

Business combinations and goodwill
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition

method. The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition
date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each
business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the
non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net
assets in the event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when
the acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured and
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 $R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2021 —Z_-_—4+_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of

the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in
profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs
its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative value of the
operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 $R 2% B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2021 —Z=—4#+_-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESTBERBE ()
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Goodwill previously eliminated against DREGEREHHEZEE
consolidated reserves
Prior to the adoption of the HKICPA's Statement of Standard R-BEZ-FRAEEB ST AZHEM
Accounting Practice 30 Business Combinations ("SSAP 30") in 2001, LB EREANENREFSH (25
goodwill arising on acquisition was eliminated against consolidated EBERIE305]) Al - WEEEZHER
reserves in the year of acquisition. On the adoption of HKFRS 3, such W F S BAR & R 8 - SR B B 75
goodwill remains eliminated against consolidated reserves and is not HMELEREIRE  ZERENRKER
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when all or part of the B BEEFMARE D EREEH X
business to which the goodwill relates is disposed of or when a cash- BHESENEFHA RS EEBURE
generating unit to which the goodwill relates becomes impaired. RrEgRBmkER -
Fair value measurement ANEEFE
The Group measures its investment properties, debt investment, REBRSHEHAREEBZRAFEFNE
equity investments and derivative financial instruments at fair value HIZREME BBRE BREAKRERITE
at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would MBITA AT EEMS2EENTER
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly R EMRFER S A LS E E sk
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. EAEBMENZER - ATEFTETIRE
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the HEEENEREABIRINZEENE
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either BeFEMSH (WEETEMS) U2 E
in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of ERBERZANZTIGHEIT L RERHEST °
a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset FENEBN IS AAREBAEESE -
and liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must BEXBELATEDEAMS2EER
be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is BZEAEXBBENTEERSSRACR
measured using the assumptions that market participants would use BMETE  ERBEMB2EENERES
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants ERENZMITE -

act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account IV BEEZ2 A TEFEZERMS2EE
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using BRAGREARERETAZEENEB
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market BEEETEAGs RRERAGERZE
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. EZ B —Mi52EE RIS Tz 2 8
j] o

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the REBRARSBAEBEERITNGRE
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure HEBAGTE R T E 2 EHERDT - # &
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and HEEREASE s AeREEARE
minimising the use of unobservable inputs. TAIBERBABB 2 AERERD °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 $R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2021 —Z_-_—4+_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBERME (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement (continued)
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed

in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.

Impairment of non-financial assets
Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment

testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, contract
assets, deferred tax assets and investment properties), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is
the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its
fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. In testing a cash-generating unit for
impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of a corporate asset (e.g.,
a headquarters building) is allocated to an individual cash-generating
unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or,
otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-generating units.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 $R 2% B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2021 —ZE——4#+—-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESTBERBE ()
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Impairment of non-financial assets (continued) B BEERE (E&)
An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an BEBEREREEREEEAHAKE S
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the B TR - EaEEAEER g
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value ARURMMIZEREZEEEEL2E
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments IRy e 8 R B\ B P 1 BT 1 2 B0 AT BL 38 3R i 1
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An FIARRBEREMBERE - REBER
impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit or loss in the EEHEEERRANRE -

period in which it arises.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as REEFZEHAEEEBHETHEESE D
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised KRBTBECHERBRBERERNETBE
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. FERBFRD - B ERNZETR - A
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. BEFTAINE &5 - SRIEHR —HE
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than EREEE (BERMNERETCZEE
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates AU B S FE P AR 2 (A 5T ER B B ]
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not EEE%  REENSBaBRRATFE
to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have WHERZEERRBEBEMEE KA
been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no B2 85 N ERITE #iH) - BES
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A Bz BEREERAREG ABRE -

reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

Related parties BEAL
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: ETHERT  BRAATHEEREREAE
ZBEANT
(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family @ MBUATAL BIZATHZAT
and that person 2B AN B A R E
() has control or joint control over the Group; ()  PERsEEIEHAREE
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or iy HAEBEEAZE: =%
(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the (il AAEEXTEEFAE2E
Group or of a parent of the Group; EEREKE
or 54
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 $R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2021 —ZE——4#+=-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Related parties (continued)
(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions

applies:

i

)

(if)

(iif)

(iv)

(Vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 $R 2% B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2021 —ZE——4#+—-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working

condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with

specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for

this purpose are as follows:

Ownership interests in
properties held for own 2% to 4%
use and buildings

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the lease terms and

20%
Computer equipmentand  20% to 33'/,%
software
Furniture, fixtures and other  18% to 25%
equipment
Motor vehicles 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable
basis among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year

end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement
of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the

relevant asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 $R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2021 —Z_-_—4+_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
the leasehold property held as a right-of-use asset which would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property) held to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use
in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such
properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at
fair value, which reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting

period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the statement of profit or loss in the year in

which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year

of the retirement or disposal.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value as at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for
an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at

each financial year end.

Customer relationships

Purchased customer relationships are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis over

their estimated useful lives of 8 to 10 years.

Software

Purchased software is stated at cost less any impairment losses and is
amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated useful lives of 5

to 10 years.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 $R 2% B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2021 —Z=—4#+_-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)
Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate the
technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will
be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability
to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future economic
benefits, the availability of resources to complete the project and the
ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the development.
Product development expenditure which does not meet these
criteria is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised using the straight-line basis over the
commercial lives of the underlying products/services not exceeding
five years, commencing from the date when the intangible assets are
available for use.

Leases
The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or

contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach
for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments
and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying
assets.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 DECEMBER 2021 —E——§+_-_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

(@)

b)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available
for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the
end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be
paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also
include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties
for termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising the option to terminate the lease. The variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as an expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a
change in assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBERME (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

(c)  Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to its short-term leases of offices and car parking space (that
is those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
each component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental
income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to
its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis
as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the
period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an underlying assets to the lessee are accounted for as
finance leases.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 $R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2021 —E——§+_-_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset's contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group's business model for managing them. With the exception
of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out
for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it
needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (“SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at
fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are
held within a business model with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are
not held within the aforementioned business models are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention

in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their

classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains
and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the

asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

(debt instruments)

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and
impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for financial
assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes
are recognised in other comprehensive income. Upon derecognition,
the cumulative fair value change recognised in other comprehensive

income is recycled to the statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive

income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably
its equity investments as equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income when they meet the definition
of equity under HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and
are not held for trading. The classification is determined on an

instrument-by-instrument basis.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive

income (equity investments) (continued)

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to the
statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income
in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably, except when the Group benefits
from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial
asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in other comprehensive
income. Equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income are not subject to impairment assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair

value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity investments
which the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair
value through other comprehensive income. Dividends on equity
investments classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are also recognised as other income in the statement of profit or
loss when the right of payment has been established, it is probable
that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to
the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability
or non-financial host, is separated from the host and accounted for as
a separate derivative if the economic characteristics and risks are not
closely related to the host; a separate instrument with the same terms
as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative;
and the hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit or
loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Reassessment
only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract
that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be
required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value

through profit or loss category.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a financial
asset host is not accounted for separately. The financial asset host
together with the embedded derivative is required to be classified in

its entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial

position) when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control

of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of
ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that
case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects

the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that

the Group could be required to repay.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 $R 2R B (AR
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets
The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses ("ECLs")

for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss.
ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash
flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation
of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will
include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining
life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime
ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk
on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.

24 TESHBEME (F)

B EERIE

AEERLFEAFELERTBNME
ERTAERARNEEBR((BHREES
B Ak BHREEBBRNERREALN
FEM Y & K93 & i 8 EA K B TR A
PIBEREREZMOEZRMETE @ WAR
ERMEa I OUERR - BHRSRES
BREOEMSERARNASRERAKE
WEFNEMEERTERNRERE -

—BAEX

BEHEEBEBR O MERRER - HRET
THIMESIEMOEERAR - BHE
EEBRARRNREAARREKRBENS
HoRREEBE(2EARAGEESE)
miEat - HRZF BT ERRBER
MEERR  BEAREHRRNGFREL
MEEBRIFLERRE BAZRED
EHBENRRE (ZHRREEBR) -

REFERH  AEEFEEERREN
FHEBAREERE LT+ - RFFEE - &
SEeRYBTARNBREAHELEY
MERET S T AR S HER A RELE
W Rk - ELFER  AEESEES
BRASHENEN  BEBELRLE
BILBE T ERAHE W BB AT EE
o

113



114
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBERME (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

The Group generally considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases,
the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset
is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering
the contractual cash flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income
and financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under
the general approach and they are classified within the following
stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables and
contract assets which apply the simplified approach as detailed
below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not
credit-impaired financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting
date (but that are not purchased or originated credit-
impaired) and for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain a
significant financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group applies the simplified approach
in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group
has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables and contract assets that contain a significant
financing component and lease receivables, the Group chooses as
its accounting policy to adopt the simplified approach in calculating
ECLs with policies as described above.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities of the Group are classified, at initial recognition, as

loans and borrowings, or payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in the statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 $R 2% B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2021 —Z=—4#+_-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESFBERBE (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial liabilities (continued) MEa s (&)
Subsequent measurement (continued) H#&HE ()
Financial guarantee contracts I BERE R
Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts REBFEH 2 MBEREG NN ERIELT
that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a FABRFE AREEGER ARERRE
loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment 7% T E 7 & EE D B 5108 M 8 BiE Xk
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A ZEK o MBERE NV IEAFERER
financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as a liability at its R—IEBE UMBFHEREEELEZR
fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable SRAEL AR - RYI P HRIE  AEHE
to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, BRATMEzREESEWBEREL
the Group measures the financial guarantee contracts at the higher OWTEHEEBERERE MK EERE]
of: (i) the ECL allowance determined in accordance with the policy as FIEBERETE  R)VILEARLER (1
set out in “Impairment of financial assets”; and (ii) the amount initially HA) R ERKRALEE -
recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income
recognised.
Derecognition of financial liabilities RIERIABMKEE
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the PHEaERaBEE TEERER  FiHEE
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires. AR R o
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the ER—ERARFEERER ZIGFHAS
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an —IHUWBEERRREYBEER - k3R
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or EBEZBRBENENR  BARKRK
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability BRI R AR IEERRE BERER—
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the HHAE MABRAECEZRINER
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit RIER o
or loss.
Offsetting of financial instruments EKEMKTA
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount KRB IR 17 £ A O 58 il #1017 2 REF 4K
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently HEHRERE  BBEBNFBREEXRRF
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is BMBERFEEBR - FAIEEMBEE
an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle ERVEBEE  URMBKAKREV FE
the liabilities simultaneously. #H o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 $R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2021 —Z_-_—4+_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Treasury shares

Own equity instruments which are reacquired and held by the
Company or the Group (treasury shares) are recognised directly in
equity at cost. No gain or loss is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group’s own

equity instruments.

Shares held under the restricted share award
scheme

Where shares of the Company are purchased from the market for a
restricted share award scheme, the consideration paid, including any
directly attributable incremental costs, is presented as “Shares held
under the restricted share award scheme”and deducted from equity.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and, in the case
of finished goods and work in progress, comprises direct materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated

costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which

are not restricted as to use.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 $R 2% B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2021 —Z=—4#+_-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBERME (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Provisions
A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or

constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period
of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in the statement of profit
or loss.

Income tax
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating

to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 $R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2021 —Z_-_—4+_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Income tax (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary

differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 $R 2% B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2021 —Z=—4#+_-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBERME (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Income tax (continued)
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of

each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants
Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is

reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an
expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over
the periods that the costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are
expensed.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 $R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2021 —Z_-_—4+_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services.

Revenue from the sale of goods and provision of software, GETS
and BPO services is recognised at the point in time when control of
the asset is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the
goods and services.

Revenue from the rendering of solutions and integration services
and application services (other than sale of goods or the provision
of maintenance services) is recognised over time, using an input
method to measure progress towards complete satisfaction of the
service, because the Group's performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced,
or the customers simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group. The input method recognises revenue
based on the proportion of the actual costs incurred relative to the
estimated total costs for satisfaction of the services.

Revenue from the provision of maintenance services is recognised
over the contract/service period on a straight-line basis because
the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group.

Revenue from other sources
Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 $R 2% B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2021 —Z=—4#+_-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBERME (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Contract assets
A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods

or services transferred to the customer. If the Group performs by
transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer
pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is
recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional. Contract
assets are subject to impairment assessment, details of which are
included in the accounting policies for impairment of financial assets.

Contract liabilities
A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a

payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e, transfers control of the related goods or services to the
customer).

Contract costs
Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories, property,

plant and equipment and intangible assets, costs incurred to fulfil
a contract with a customer are capitalised as an asset if all of the
following criteria are met:

(@  The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated
contract that the entity can specifically identify.

(b)  The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity that will
be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy) performance
obligations in the future.

(©)  The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to the
statement of profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with
the transfer to the customer of the goods or services to which the
asset relates. Other contract costs are expensed as incurred.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 $R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2021 —E——§+_-_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Share-based payments

The Company operates two equity-settled, share-based
compensation schemes including a share option scheme and a
restricted share award scheme for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success of
the Group's operations. Employees of the Group (including directors
of the entities comprising the Group) receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render services
as consideration for equity instruments (‘equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants
after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to the fair value at

the date at which they are granted.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the vesting
date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit or
loss for a period represents the movement in the cumulative expense

recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but
the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the
Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within
the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award,
but without an associated service requirement, are considered to
be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in
the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an
award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no

expense is recognised.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 $R 2% B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2021 —Z=—4#+_-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBERME (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Share-based payments (continued)
Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a

minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification, that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to
the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options and unvested shares held
under the restricted share award scheme is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

The Group has adopted the transitional provisions of HKFRS 2 in
respect of equity-settled awards and has applied HKFRS 2 only to
equity-settled awards granted after 7 November 2002 that had not
vested by 1 January 2005 and to those granted on or after 1 January
2005.

Other employee benefits
Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under their
employment contracts on a calendar year basis. Under certain
circumstances, such leave which remains untaken as at the end of
each reporting period is permitted to be carried forward and utilised
by the respective employees in the following year. An accrual is made
at the end of each reporting period for the expected future cost of
such paid leave earned during the year by the employees and carried
forward.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 $R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2021 —Z_-_—4+_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Other employee benefits (continued)
Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
those employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group's employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme, except for the Group's employer
voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the Group when the
employee leaves employment prior to the contributions vesting fully,
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central retirement
benefit scheme operated by the local municipal government.
These subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage
of their payroll costs to the central retirement benefit scheme.
The contributions are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the central
retirement benefit scheme.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and when the
Group recognises restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Group

incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds, and they are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBERME (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors, excluding those relating
to the Company’s own shares held under the Company’s restricted
share award scheme, are classified as a separate allocation of retained
profits and/or other distributable reserves within the equity section
of the statement of financial position, until they have been approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. When these dividends
have been approved by the shareholders and declared, they are
recognised as a liability. Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because
the Company’s bye-laws grant the directors the authority to declare
interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies
These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,

which is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in
the Group are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of
the item (i.e, translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (continued)
In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related

asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration,
the date of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising
from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction date for
each payment or receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period and their statements of profit or
loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates that
approximate to those prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

Judgements
In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,

management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group concluded that certain contract revenue from solutions
and integration services and application services is recognised over
time because the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced or
the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group. The fact that another entity would not
need to re-perform the services that the Group has provided to
date demonstrates that the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits of the Group's performance as it performs.

The Group determined that the input method is the best method in
measuring the progress of the services for certain contract revenue
from solutions and integration services and application services
because there is a direct relationship between the Group's effort or
inputs (i.e., actual costs incurred) and the transfer of services to the
customer. The Group recognises revenue on the basis of the actual
costs incurred relative to the estimated total costs to complete the
services.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Judgements (continued)
Property lease classification - Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property and industrial
property leases on its investment property portfolio. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions
of the arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a
major part of the economic life of the commercial property and
the present value of the minimum lease payments not amounting
to substantially all the fair value of the commercial property, that it
retains substantially all the significant risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of these properties which are leased out and accounts for
the contracts as operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment
property, and has developed criteria in making that judgement.
Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of the other
assets held by the Group. Some properties comprise a portion that
is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion
that is held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold separately
or leased out separately under a finance lease, the Group accounts for
the portions separately. If the portions could not be sold separately,
the property is an investment property only if an insignificant portion
is held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. Judgement is made on an individual
property basis to determine whether ancillary services are so
significant that a property does not qualify as an investment property.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Judgements (continued)
Income taxes

Significant judgement is involved in determining the provision
for income taxes. Determining income tax provision requires
management to make estimates and assumptions and involves
judgement on the tax treatment of certain transactions, assessment
of the probability of tax uncertainties and interpretation of applicable
tax rules. These estimates, assumptions, judgements and assessments
affect the amounts that are reported in these financial statements
and accompanying disclosures. The Group carefully evaluates tax
implications of transactions and tax provisions are set up accordingly.
The tax treatment of such transactions is reconsidered periodically to
taken into account any changes in tax legislation and/or underlying

assumptions.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are

described below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on
an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value-in-use
of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating the value-in-use of each relevant cash-generating unit
requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash
flows from the cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December 2021 was
HK$135,001,000 (2020: HKS$135,001,000). Further details are given in

note 16 to the financial statements.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets at the end of each reporting period. Non-
financial assets with finite useful lives are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying value of an
asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its
value-in-use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is
based on available data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s
length transaction of similar assets or observable market prices
less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When value-in-
use calculations are undertaken, management must estimate the
expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit
and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present

value of those cash flows.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at their fair values. The fair value
at the end of each reporting period was based on a valuation on
these properties conducted by an independent firm of professionally
qualified valuers using property valuation techniques which involve
making assumptions on certain market conditions. Favourable or
unfavourable changes to these assumptions would result in changes
in the fair value of the Group's investment properties and the
corresponding adjustments to the gain or loss are recognised in the

statement of profit or loss.

Further details, including the key assumptions used for fair value

measurement, are given in note 14 to the financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables and

contract assets

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables and contract assets. The provision rates are based on days
past due.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust
the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information.
For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic
products) are expected to deteriorate over the next year which can
lead to an increased number of defaults in the sector, the historical
default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default
rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate.
The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and
forecast economic conditions. The Group's historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be
representative of a customer’s actual default in the future. The
information about the ECLs on the Group's trade receivables and
contract assets is disclosed in notes 19 and 21 to the financial
statements, respectively.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises certain contract revenue from solutions and
integration and application services by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the services at the end of the
reporting period. The progress towards complete satisfaction of
the services is generally measured by reference to the actual costs
incurred relative to the estimated total costs to complete the services.
Significant assumptions such as the duration and other project
specific factors are generally required to estimate the total costs to
the complete satisfaction of the services. The estimates are made
based on past experience and knowledge of management and/or
relevant project personnel.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a
lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate (“IBR")
to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the
Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a
similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment.
The IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would have to pay’, which
requires estimation when no observable rates are available (such as
for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing transactions) or when
it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the
lease (for example, when leases are not in the subsidiary’s functional
currency). The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such
as market interest rates) when available.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and services and has three reportable
operating segments as follows:

(@)  the application services segment that primarily engages in the
provision of enterprise applications software and e-business
services for enterprises including the provision of enterprise
applications software with implementation and ongoing
support services; the GETS, cloud services and other related
value-added services;

(b)  the solutions and integration services segment that primarily
engages in the provision of T solutions implementation and
application software development; provision of IT and related
operation/infrastructure outsourcing services; BPO services;
and provision of IT systems and network infrastructure with
related design, implementation and ongoing support services;
and

(©) the investments segment that primarily engages in various
types of investing activities including, inter alia, property
investment for rental income and/or for capital appreciation
and treasury investment in securities for dividend income and
interest income and/or for capital appreciation.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance
is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/loss, which is a
measure of adjusted profit/loss before tax. The adjusted profit/loss
before tax is measured consistently with the Group’s profit before
tax except that unallocated interest income, unallocated other
income and gains, net, unallocated foreign exchange differences, net,
corporate and other unallocated depreciation, and corporate and
other unallocated expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, tax recoverable, pledged
bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents, and other unallocated head
office and corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group
basis.

Segment liabilities exclude tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and
other unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as these

liabilities are managed on a group basis.

There were no material intersegment sales and transfers during the
current and prior years.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REFIER (EF)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Operating segments (@) BEDH

Solutions and Integration
Application Services Services Investments Total
EREH BANRRRRRH k& 2%
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

Z8--% -—3°%F CZB--f _"5°%F CEBC-F |“3°%%F Cg--F _Z°%F
HK$'000 HS000 HK$'000 HKS000  HK$'000 HKS000  HK$'000 HK$1000
TiEn Tin TiEn Tiin THT Tiin THT Tiin

Segment revenue: PHHA
Sales to external customers HETIRRE
(note ) (B3£5) 166,175 1593 97,469 102,668 1,860 674 265504 256265*
Otherincome and gains, net HA RS 1,860 1743 2 % 561 2502 2,453/ 4331
Total ek 168,035 154666 97,501 102,754 2,421 3,176 267,957 26059%
Segment results PHEE 55,578 47205 24,483 28010 3 (184 8110 75031
Reconcilation: -
Unallocated interest income AAEFHEHA 2,508 34000
Unallocated otherincome and AAREMUARYE
gains, net FE 4064 145480
Unallocated foreign exchange APEERZEEE
differences, net (403) (625)
Corporate and other unallocated PEREMRARSE
depreciation (618) (524)
Corporate and other unallocated LERABRIERS
eXDENses (27,438) (30,190)
Profit before tax B AR A 57,627 61,640
Segment assets PTHEE 217,319 209,503 67,729 76581 76,444 75726 361,492 361,810
Reconcilation: ik
Comorate and other unallocated assets  SEREMADBEE 319,805 305458
Totalassets BELE 681,207 667,268
Segment liabilities 8% 98,930 097949 16,738 26950 685 693 116,353 125592
Reconciliation: -
Corporate and other unallocated PERERAEER
liabilities 41,315 26,117
Tota liabilties BREE 157,668 151,709
o This represents the consolidated revenue of HK$265,504,000 (2020: % EREABRERZEARA
HK$256,265,000) in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. 265,504,000 L (ZTE =T F :
256,265,000587C) ©
A These comprise the consolidated other income and gains, net, of A BIEEGAESRRAZEFEAHEMIK
HK$5,367,000 (2020: HK$22,279,000) in the consolidated statement AR 588 /53670008 T (ZF
of profit or loss. =T 1 22,279,000/ 7T) °

MERSREEERAR B —FFH
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
5o 55 e Y o ()

31 DECEMBER 2021 —_E=_—f+_-A=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REFIER (E)

(CONTINUED)
(a) Operating segments (continued) (a) &R&E 2 (&)

Solutions and Integration

Application Services Services Investments Total
ERRH BARRRERRH kg ag
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
Z%--F ZRCZ2F CRC-f ZRCFF CB--f ZB0%E Cg--F ZBCZE
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HKS000
ThT Thn TER TR ThR TR TR TR
Other segment information: EAHER !
Net far value gains/losses) on RENERTENR/
investment properties (BiE) 58 - - - - 500 (41) 500 (941)
Netfarvalue gainsflosses) on financial ~ RATELERAEZ

assets atfairvalue through profitorloss BT EER Ffﬁ
Wit/ (B18) 3% (61) (30) - - 224 (2,725) 163 (2,755)
Amartisation of other intangiole assets M%é@@iﬁ 6,492 6233 - = - - 6,492 6233
Depreciation ik 2,981 218 612 547 - 3 3,593 2758
Corporate and other unallocated EEREMA EHE
depreciation 3,945 3564
7,538 632
Impairment losses recognised)reversed) 1MFA BRF R,/
inthe consolidated statement of profit ~ (B1) Z BB
orloss, net* R (19) 403 £ 5 - - (123) 408
Capital expenditure™ BAR% 2,066 2802 132 4963 - - 2,198 7765
Corporate and other inallocated captal - CEREBASEER
expenditure*® Fx* 337 308
2,535 8073
o Including impairment losses recognised in the consolidated * BERGEESERTERREER

X

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

statement of profit or loss attributable to the application services
segment of HK$328,000 (2020: HK$815,000) and the solutions and
integration services segment of HK$146,000 (2020: HKS$73,000),
respectively, and impairment losses reversed in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss attributable to the application services
segment of HK$524,000 (2020: HK$412,000) and the solutions and
integration services segment of HK$73,000 (2020: HK$68,000),
respectively.

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and
equipment and other intangible assets including assets from the
acquisition of a subsidiary.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

*%

RS BRERTRRERRE D
B2 B ET R 5 Bl A 328,000 7T (=
T =T : 81500078 7T) & 146,000 78
T (T T :73000/87T) * UKk
&R A 18 75 2 FT B 2k & & A AR %5
DBRBAFRREKRE D B2
BB 5 Bl A 5240008 T (ZF =
T4F 1 412,000/ 7T) K& 73,0007 7T (=
T 68000/87T) ©

BERRAXBRREYE  BERR
VAT B 4 17 B E (8 35 Wi — )
BRARMBENEE) -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
5o 35 e 7 Y o ()

31 DECEMBER 2021 —Z_-_—4+_A=+—H

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

(b) Geographical information
Revenue from external customers

(i)

(ii)

Segment revenue:
Sales to external customers

AHWA
HEFIREF

4.

(b) HEEHR

ReEsHER (&)

The revenue information is based on the locations of the

customers.

Non-current assets

Hong Kong
Mainland China

The non-current asset information above is based on the

i) REIREFZWA
Hong Kong and other
countries/regions Mainland China Total
FARLMEAZR/HE HER 45
2021 200 2021 2000 2021 200
ZE--f  -B-%F  ZEC-f -2-TE ZEC-F Z3C%F
HK$'000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HKS'000
THR ThT THT TR THT ThL
209,647 206472 55,857 49793 265,504 256,265
WABR AR FREAE
2% o
(i) FERBEE
2021 2020
—E-—F ZETF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FER AT
BA 160,247 146,237
AR A 117,256 122,980
277,503 269217
L RBEEER NIREE
FREM 25 - B I ARET R

locations of the assets and excludes financial instruments

and deferred tax assets.

R 2

FSES

BTARREHRBEE -

EAR AR

—T——FFIR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
5o 55 e Y o ()

31 DECEMBER 2021 —_E=_—f+_-A=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, BEFWER (B)

(CONTINUED)

(c) Information about a major customer (0 —BEXFEXFZEHR
Revenue from transactions with an external customer KE —BINABTPR G ZBWAER
amounting to 10% or more of the Group's total revenue: SEBUA10%3K A £ -
For the year ended 31 December 2021, revenue from a BHE-ZT-—F+=-A=+—H
major customer of HK$74,337,000 (2020: HK$73,171,000) was EFE - RE—RBEXTEXF 2K
derived from transactions with the customer reported in the ANB743370008 T (ZEZZF ¢
application services segment and the solutions and integration 731710008 7T) - EHEREIIRE 2
services segment. SR FER IR o BRI fRR T 5= R &

RIRE DR E PR S °

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 5. WA - Htt A R W358
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WADITT

2021 2020

—E-—fF —ZEETF

HK$’000 HKS'000

FHET FET

Revenue from contracts with customers REEEFSHHWA 263,644 255,591

Revenue from other sources R B HARA KA

Gross rental income from investment properties &Y% 2 Fl & WA 4858 &

and interest income from treasury investments ~ BIEIRE 2 B UA 1,860 674

265,504 256,265

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
5o 35 e 7 Y o ()

31 DECEMBER 2021 —Z_-_—4+_A=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 5. WA HMKARKZFEE)
(CONTINUED)
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEFEHHBA
() Disaggregated revenue information i) DHFBEAER

Solutions and

Application Integration
Services Services Total
BRFRR
P& A BR 7 & B¢ BR % wa
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT THET FET
For the year ended BE-Z-_—F+=AH
31 December 2021 =t+t—BLEFE
Segments -

Types of goods or services & 7 =% IR 75 48 5l
Sale of goods and provision  $H%E & fn RIBHEF - BUT
of software, GETS and BPO EFEFREREBRIZ

services SNHI AR 7S 40,280 2,335 42,615
Provision of software IR E i AR RS
implementation and BB BBATRER R

related services, IT solutions 48 B8 R 7%
implementation and related

services 65,501 41,230 106,731
Maintenance services HEERRTE 60,394 53,904 114,298
Total revenue from contracts KRB B & XA AR A

with customers 166,175 97,469 263,644
Geographical markets i & i 35
Hong Kong and others &8 KEAM 114,724 93,295 208,019
Mainland China FR B A 51,451 4,174 55,625
Total revenue from contracts KRB B & XML A

with customers 166,175 97,469 263,644
Timing of revenue PN

recognition
Goods and services transferred A FE—BfEE S B K&

at a point in time AR 7% 40,280 2,335 42,615
Services transferred over time 1A — E& B3 5] (A 4 538 AR 7% 125,895 95,134 221,029
Total revenue from contracts KRB B & 4RI A

with customers 166,175 97,469 263,644

MERSREEERAR B —FFH
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
5o 55 e Y o ()

31 DECEMBER 2021 —_E=_—f+_-A=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 5. WA -HWARKERFEE (&)
(CONTINUED)
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEFESHHA (F)
(continued)
() Disaggregated revenue information (continued) (i) DIFBAERE)

Solutions and

Application Integration
Services Services Total
R R R
J& A AR 7% & A BR 15 R
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET
For the year ended BE-_Z-_ZF+=A
31 December 2020 =t+t—HLFE
Segments -

Types of goods or services & i 5 Bk 75 48 5
Sale of goods and provision  $H%&E & fn RIBHEE - BUT
of software, GETS and BPO EFEFREREBRIZ

services SN AR TS 36,644 9,736 46,380
Provision of software TR E i AR AR S
implementation and B BHRBRR T B R

related services, IT solutions 48 78 AR 7%
implementation and related

services 57,533 45,571 103,104
Maintenance services HEE R 58,746 47,361 106,107
Total revenue from contracts KRB B & KA AU A

with customers 152,923 102,668 255,591
Geographical markets i & 1 35
Hong Kong and others BB KA 107,905 98,081 205,986
Mainland China R B AT 4 45018 4,587 49,605
Total revenue from contracts KRB B & LM AU A

with customers 152,923 102,668 255,591
Timing of revenue AN S|

recognition
Goods and services transferred MR E — B EEES MmN

at a point in time i3 36,644 9,736 46,380
Services transferred over time 7 — EX B i8] N 835 2 AR 75 116,279 92,932 209,211
Total revenue from contracts KRB B & KA AU A

with customers 152,923 102,668 255,591

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
5o 35 e 7 Y o ()

31 DECEMBER 2021 —Z_-_—4+_A=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers

(continued)
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (continued)

The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised
in the current reporting period that were included in the
contract liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period:

5. WA

- ELAt U R W 55 7 58 ()

REEFEHNBA (&)

(i

DIFWAE R (F)
TRETHTABSHINENEE
RARENHCERRBASHE

2021
B —fF

2020
—EEF
HK$'000
FET

HK$’000
FEx

Revenue recognised that was included in contract T ASRE B AL ABBENE

liabilities at the beginning of the reporting
period:
Sale of goods and provision of software, GETS and

L ONE

HESmMRERET - BF

BPO services BETEHRBEREBRIE
SN AR 75 5,898 2,801
Provision of software implementation and related 42 f & {4 & jts X 48 B8 AR 75
services, IT solutions implementation and BB BRATRER R
related services 188 AR 75 21,229 18,430
Maintenance services HERE 33,890 34,481
61,017 55,712

(ii) Performance obligations
Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sale of goods and provision software, GETS and BPO services

The performance obligation is satisfied upon product/service
delivery, where payment in advance is normally required, and
the balance is generally due within 30 to 60 days from the date
of delivery.

Provision of software implementation and related services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services are
rendered and payment is generally due within 30 to 60 days
from the date of billing.

(ii)

BHEE
EBEASEROE RN ER B
Ve

HEEmRIEREN  BTEFE
Z R REFEREINHIRE
BROBEERE R,/ IR MIREK
—RE\EZELNR MEHR—KB
R HEEF30E 60 B RNE|H -

IEHR B B R G R

B4 B ERE R AR S A B i X
M — /% B 5 AR B H#B 530
Z60BREIH -

R R R R E AR QA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
5o 55 e Y o ()

31 DECEMBER 2021 —_E=_—f+_-A=+—H

5.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

(ii)

Performance obligations (continued)
Provision of IT solutions implementation and related services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services
are rendered and payment is generally due within 30 days
from the date of billing. A certain percentage of payment is
retained by customers until the end of the nursing period as
the Group's entitlement to the final payment is conditional on
the satisfaction of the service quality by the customers over a
certain period as stipulated in the respective contracts.

Maintenance services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services
are rendered and payments in advance are normally required
before rendering the services. Maintenance service contracts
are in general for period of one year.

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as
at 31 December are as follows:

Amounts expected to be recognised as revenue:
Within one year
After one year

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations which are expected to be recognised
as revenue after one year relate to maintenance services, of
which the performance obligations are to be satisfied within
five years. All the other amounts of transaction prices allocated
to the remaining performance obligations are expected to
be recognised as revenue within one year. The amounts
disclosed above do not include variable consideration which is
constrained.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

5. A

- EAtb U R W 55 3 A8 ()

REEFEHNBA (&)

(ii)

TREEMERSEA
—&FR
Hia—F

BHEE (&)

TEHE AP RAFR T RE S K AE
V%

& %) B {1 8 12 1 AR 755 4 B ) 2 A -
MR — AR E HRERMER30R
NEB - EFERERENETAE
DHEE#EHR TS BAKER
BRANFNENBURREF 26
BHFTHNETHEAREREER
HimERE -

aEIRT

& %) B (T 18 $2 0 AR 755 ) B 5 A -
i 8 A BRI — AR ZA IR B2 1 R 7% Al 32
- HERBAEN—RASH—F -

Rt-A=1T—HoREZHRTEH
BEECREBITXBOREIT) XS
EBRSBEWT :

2021 2020
—E-—F —ZEEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx T
54,222 58,708
1,850 2,309
56,072 61,017

ENEEHRTENETHNRSER
THRBARER —FRERB[BAY
KRR A FRERMNEERT - 7
BEEMENEERTENEENR
ZEREREHRBER —FAER R
WA b BN SBRLNBHER
PRI AT EEME -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
5o 35 e 7 Y o ()

31 DECEMBER 2021 —Z_-_—4+_A=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 5. WA - HtWA KW FEE (&)
(CONTINUED)
2021 2020
—E-—F ZEETF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET FET
Other income and gains, net H WA R W= 558
Bank interest income RITA B A 2,508 3,400
Government subsidies* I8 #e B * - 14,548
Value-added tax refund received W =] 12 B TR R A 963 935
Dividend income from listed investments at fair ~ #Z A FELBZFE AR 2 FH
value through profit or loss & BB 505 480
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEWME  WEREKHEE 2
plant and equipment, net g 2% % 58 12 1,999
Gain on lease modifications MEBE < W 574 =
Others Bl 805 917
5,367 22,279
@ The subsidies in the prior year were granted under the Employment Support * ZEMUNBEFEHBBERTHRRERK
Scheme by the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative 1T (TE B RI1TE & BUT ) MR 5 51 &)
Region (the “HKSAR Government”). There were no unfulfilled conditions or 5 o 52w Bh 0 B A R B E R I
contingencies, relating to the subsidies. RREEM

MERSREEERAR B —FFH
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
5o 55 e Y o ()

31 DECEMBER 2021 —ZE——4%+=-A=+—H

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. PBRBLATEF
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): REBZBBANSEMSHER, GIA) T
FIE=3E
2021 2020
—E--F —ZTTF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FTET Tt
Cost of inventories sold BEHEFEKAE 35,080 43,945
Cost of services provided IR AR A A 77,881 67,410
Depreciation of property, plant and M - BB R ITE
equipment*® 13 1,413 1,437
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEZTE 15(a) 6,125 4,885
Amortisation of other intangible assets** Efh i & g 17 6,492 6,233
Gain on disposal of items of property, plant u“.: EW*  WEKEHEEE
and equipment, net 2 Was F (12) (1,999)
Lease payments not included in the TeErEHEaE s HE
measurement of lease liabilities (BN 15(c) 594 301
Gain on lease modifications MEEFT 2 W (574) =
Auditor's remuneration =AD& 1,420 1,320
Employee benefit expense (excluding EERAMAXZ (TRIEES
directors' remuneration — note 8)": N —BdsES) ¢
Wages, salaries, allowances and other I8 Fe  EAREM
benefits B 137,470 133,703
Equity-settled share-based payment [ e 45 55 LA RR 19 32 A5 2
expense 616 1107

Retirement benefit scheme contributions

ﬁ'ﬁ(z\fﬂ%lju-l_gu{/\ﬂ' ()q:_gg

(defined contribution schemes)*** HEFRETE]) *** 7,272 4,306
Less: Amount capitalised in other intangible  J& 1 REAMEF EEE AN
assets ez &% (1,894) (4,598)
143,464 134,518
Impairment of financial assets, net: 75 & R BT
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of FEWE 5 RFORE,
trade receivables, net (B REIRE) F58 19 (123) 408
Direct operating expenses (including repairs ~ P] BREXAE & < & & ¥ 3
and maintenance) arising from rental- HEEREERYT (B
earning investment properties HIERHAEE) 67 54
Fair value losses/(gains), net: AFEEBE (W) F5E
Financial assets at fair value through profit BEATFELESARZ
or loss 7% & & (163) 2,755
Investment properties wEYE 14 (500) 941

Interest income from treasury investments

ERIRE 2 M BHA

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MM (AR)

31 DECEMBER 2021 —Z—

—F+=HA=+—H

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (CONTINUED)

*%

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment for the year of HK$112,000
(2020: HK$122,000) is included in “Cost of sales and services” on the face of
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Amortisation of other intangible assets for the year of HK$6,492,000
(2020: HK$6,233,000) is included in “Other expenses” on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

At 31 December 2021, the Group had no forfeited contributions available to
reduce its contributions to the pension scheme in future years (2020: Nil).

Inclusive of research and development cost for application software
products of HK$18,999,000 (2020: HK$19,241,000) and utility billing system
of HK$8,308,000 (2020: Nil), respectively.

Inclusive of an amount of HK$77,881,000 (2020: HK$67,410,000) classified
under “Cost of services provided”above.

FINANCE COST

Interest expense arising from discounted lease liabilities of an amount
of HK$245,000 (2020: HK$1,155,000) has been recognised and
classified under finance cost in the consolidated statement of profit
and loss for the year ended 31 December 2021.

6.

BRBE AR A (&)

* RNEZERYE - BB K& 2HTE 112,000
BT (ZE =T F 11220008 L) MALGE
BaRZ[HERRBEERAIA -

* ANEE N E A A E E# H 6,492,000 87T (=
T T H 162330008 7T) MAGREEBIRR

ZIEMFR A -
R B —F+_A=1+—B AKEY
O Y #E TJKTFH)?’\M’JVEE{&iEE’J

KREFERR(ZF_FF &) °

A BIEEHERSTEMRABEBKE R
2T R A 5 Bl A 18,999,000 7 7T
(ZZ =T £ 19,241,000 7T) & 8,308,000
BT (ZE=ZF &) -

o BEIEALMBRERBKA] 2 &H5E
77,881,000 7T (Z T =T £ : 67,410,000 4
JT) °

BB

BRIATE & B EE A 2 F B R X 245,000%
T (ZZ=ZF : 11550008 7) EREZE
T —F+— H +—BUEFEZEE
BarkNERIADBELAUBER -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
5o 55 e Y o ()

31 DECEMBER 2021 —_E=_—f+_-A=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8. E=HM
Directors’' remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Rules FRESTHREBEE AR ERIFABRA
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong AIEAF LR EmRAD - BEQF
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of EBIE383()@)  b) O RDWIEREBA
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Hong Kong AIRBRESM=ER) RAIF 2B EEN
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefit of Directors) ™

Regulation, is as follows:

2021 2020
—E-—F ZEETF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FHT
Fees: B -
Executive directors HITES - =
Independent non-executive directors (“INEDs") MBI IEHITE F
(MBILIEMITEED) 780 780
780 780
Other emoluments: H S -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e FRMEREDH&= 5,189 5,151
Bonuses* TEAT* 1,206 1,097
Equity-settled share-based payment expense* RS i 45 E LARS 9 S S RS2 ¢ 222 397
Retirement benefit scheme contributions R ET B
(defined contribution schemes) (ERRHRETE)) 72 72
6,689 6,717
7,469 7,497
o Certain directors of the Company are entitled to bonus payments which are * AARETESERENNIBERE LA
determined on a discretionary basis. 5K o
§ In prior years, certain directors were awarded restricted shares of the g RBEFE - BIBEARRQ R ZARGIKRG &
Company, subject to certain vesting conditions, in respect of their services Bt RETHBIKREZERT  &TE
to the Group, under the restricted share award scheme of the Company, ZEARSERAEEMREEREERAA
further details of which are set out in note 29 to the financial statements. R ARG - BREE— P FBRR TG
The fair value of such restricted shares, which has been recognised in the WA T2 - ZZFARGIRG 2 X FET
statement of profit or loss over the vesting period, was determined as at the RELBHEE  YEREBHANEER
date of grant and the amount included in the financial statements for the RER Mt ARFEHBHREXZSFN
current year is included in the above directors' remuneration disclosures. ERER EXEEZHHEER -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
5o 35 e 7 Y o ()

31 DECEMBER 2021 —Z_-_—4+_A=+—H

8. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

(a) INEDs

The fees paid to INEDs during the year were as follows:

8.

INEDs: BIYFRTES:
Ha Shu Tong R
Lee Kwok On, Matthew FE%
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TRE

Save as disclosed above, there were no other emoluments
payable to the INEDs during the current and prior years.

EEHM (&)

(@) BYFHTES
FR XN FBIFNTEE 2
ST

2021 2020
—B-—F ZEETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET T
240 240

240 240

300 300

780 780

BREXBEEN RAFERBHE
FREVEHGBENTRELFENTE
EZME -

MM ZAGEEARAR —T-—FFR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
5o 55 e Y o ()

31 DECEMBER 2021 —_E=_—f+_-A=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONTINUED) 8. EEHFHM(E)
(b) Executive directors (b) HITESE
The emoluments paid to executive directors during the year FAN - EINTFROTESZMESOT :

were as follows:

Equity-settled  Retirement

Salaries, share-based benefit
allowances and payment scheme Total
benefits in kind Bonuses expense  contributions remuneration

#e BER RESEN  BAER
LRk A BfxfiEx  HE#R HelE
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TR TR TiEn T TR

2021 —8=-f
Executive directors: #EE:
Ng Cheung Shing REH 2,751 706 68 18 3,543
Leung King San, Sunny 225 360 - - 18 378
Cheung WaiLam RIER 360 - 86 18 464
Ng Kok Keung 2@% 1718 500 68 18 2,304
5,189 1,206 222 72 6,689
2020 bt St 22
Executive directors: BIEE:
Ng Cheung Shing RER 2751 537 115 18 3421
Leung King San, Sunny 2EH 360 - - 18 378
Cheung WaiLam RIER 360 - 162 18 540
Ng Kwok Keung REIE 1,680 560 120 18 2378
5151 1,097 397 72 6,717
The directors’ emoluments paid to Mr. Ng Cheung Shing ("Mr. SHFREBEE((REED2E
Ng") included a housing allowance of HK$2,471,000 (2020: =M e BEAE2471,0008 T (=
HK$2,471,000) which was remunerated by way of rental T 1 2471,0007870) 2 X ERL -
reimbursement. The rentals of the related property were paid DHEeBEZ ARSI - B
directly by Mr. Ng to the landlord, which is a company jointly ZHEHAREEEEINTEE
controlled by Mr. Ng and one of his family members. MZzFEFARAREERKEHEF —
BRIEKE HERIESH 2 AF]
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or RAFERBAFE  EFWENR
agreed to waive any remuneration during the current and prior 2 ok A B EMEE eI 2 B 2 28 -
years.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
5o 35 e 7 Y o ()

31 DECEMBER 2021 —Z_-_—4+_A=+—H

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included two (2020:
two) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in note
8 to the financial statements. Details of the remuneration for the
year of the remaining three (2020: three) non-director highest paid
employees for the year are as follows:

¥ KORR
PrE B AR D IR
TEAL
EARBHET SR

CER T8

Salaries and allowances

Equity-settled share-based payment expense

Bonuses

Retirement benefit scheme contributions
(defined contribution schemes)

The number of non-director highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

IEREHNES

FA IEESFMEERERE (2T
“EF MBES REZFHABSE
REERERMES =R (T T4 :
ZR)BRRFMIFEFTRBEZFAFIF
BT

2021 2020
—E-—F ZEEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx T
4,904 4,688

224 389

654 689

54 54

5,836 5,820

HFNTFUATHRZz e FMNEESREE
ZAEIT

Number of employees

EEAH
2020
ZETF
HK$1,000,001 to HKS$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 % 7T & 1,500,000 /%8 7T 1 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7 7T 2= 2,000,000 7% 7T 1 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7 7T 2 2,500,000 7 7T 1 1
3 3

In the prior years, certain restricted shares of the Company, subject
to certain vesting conditions, were awarded to non-director highest
paid employees in respect of their services to the Group, under the
restricted share award scheme of the Company, further details of
which are set out in note 29 to the financial statements. The fair value
of such restricted shares, which has been recognised in the statement
of profit or loss over the vesting period, was determined as at the
date of grant and the amount included in the financial statements for
the current year is included in the above non-director highest paid
employee’s remuneration disclosures.

RBEFE  REARRZ2ERH I
BF e RETEBHREZRRT &&
PO FEEREECAREAASEMEHR
R EEARRETHRFIKD - B
—SHBERN P BERRME29 - ZFEER
HIRRD 2 AFETIRFE L BHEE ¥
REBRAERERER - Mt ARFE
MHBEBRZEBNERN EXRSHMIEE
ERBFHMARE

MERSREEERAR B —FFH
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
5o 55 e Y o ()

31 DECEMBER 2021 —_E=_—f+_-A=+—H

10. INCOME TAX 10. FRfE#H
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2020: BEBMNERIIRBERFEAREBBEELEZ
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong AR R AR E165% (Z T _FF
during the year, except for one subsidiary of the Group which is 16.5%) 1E B 5 - MEZR SR B — PRI P9 /&8 2 )
a qualifying entity under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. AT E RSB AR 8B - %M B
The first HK$2,000,000 (2020: HK$2,000,000) of assessable profits of N EH) B E2,0000008 T (ZE-_FF:
this subsidiary are taxed at 8.25% (2020; 8.25%) and the remaining 2,000,000 7T) FE& 3% i g A 16 32 8.25% (=
assessable profits are taxed at 16.5% (2020: 16.5%). Taxes on profits T T F 1 825%) BIF - i H R E R R
assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax A BIZ165% (—Z T —TF : 165%) 205 °
prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions in which the Group operates. E fth 30 [ FE ER A0k A 2 B IR TIAR IR AR &
KEEBMERR AEEERERRE
TE -
2021 2020
—E-—F —ZEEF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FEx T
Current - Hong Kong BVER— &
Charge for the year FAZIM 5,071 2,485
Overprovision in prior years TFEEZIRES (410) (1,669)
Current - Elsewhere BVER — E b (=
Charge for the year FRZH 196 482
Underprovision/(overprovision) in prior years TFEEDR(ZR) BE (195) 515
Deferred (note 26) BEIE (MT5E26) (28) (87)
Total tax charge for the year FAMIBX HATE 4,634 1,726
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

MR (E)
31 DECEMBER 2021 — = ——4F+_A=+—H
10. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at
the statutory profits tax rate for Hong Kong in which the Company
and the majority of its subsidiaries operate/are domiciled to the tax

charge at the effective tax rate is as follows:

Profit before tax

Tax at the Hong Kong statutory tax rate of 16.5%

(2020: 16.5%)

Effect of withholding tax of 5% on the
distributable profits of the Group's PRC
subsidiaries

Lower tax rates for overseas subsidiaries

Adjustments in respect of current tax of
previous periods

Income not subject to tax

Expenses not deductible for tax

Effect of additional tax deduction enacted by
tax authority

Tax losses not recognised

Others

Tax charge at the Group's effective tax rate

Under the income tax laws of the PRC, enterprises are subject to
corporate income tax (“CIT") generally at a rate of 25% (2020: 25%).
In the current and prior years, certain of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries
operating in specific development zones of the PRC were granted

10. G (&)

B 35 A A

REBEEHRER165%(ZF_F

F 1 165%) ;T E 2 5B
ﬁdm%@ﬂh Bl =NCTAE]
DR A Z 5% FEFF 2 & &

TGN B A AR

BT AR 2 B EATE IR
YELH T E

B ERBBA

A% B 2

T %5 2B PR M B SNR IE R

A

fkﬁE RIEIAEE

EHofth,

REEREENETE

BRAREARARMEXRBOMBR
At BB R TE M E
AE A 2 BIA H - B ERRERAE L

ﬁ«« g_‘_f /

STEFTERSFBRHR

HIES RN

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET FAT
57,627 61,640
9,508 10,171

5 148
(187) 61)
(605) (1,154)
(469) (3,992)

470 934
(4,906) (4,706)

671 254

147 132

4,634 1,726

Z BB

preferential CIT rates of 2.5% to 15% by the relevant tax authorities.

(TEMBHRL -

R R e eR

RIBREIATEEE - B —MRBEZ25% (=
T T F 25%)Z%R$@M¢%Fﬁ SH
REAFERBEFE -
AEEE TR B E 5 5% @ A A BB
BRREHBRBHEELS T 25% = 15%EF
BEREMEHMERNTR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
5o 55 e Y o ()

31 DECEMBER 2021 —_E=_—f+_-A=+—H

11. DIVIDENDS 11. RE

2021 2020
—E-—F ZEEF

HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TAET

Interim — HK$0.06 (2020: HK$0.05) per ordinary AR HARZ B — & B & 38 A% 0.06 75 7T

share —ETF 00587T) 14,969 12,474
Less: Dividend for shares held under B IRIR AR BB PR 6% ) 526
the Company’s restricted share award FHEIFE 2R FTBR A
scheme (124) (102)
14,845 12,372

Proposed final — HK$0.11 (2020: HK$0.12) per BRR-—SREERNBT

ordinary share (ZZEZZHF :01287T) 27,444 29,939
Less: Proposed dividend for shares held under W AREBEARQ R AR $I IR 52ED
the Company’s restricted share award STEIR A 2 R 5 TS HK
scheme A% S (264) (237)
27,180 29,702
42,025 42,074
The proposed final dividend for the year will be payable in cash REFEZRERAREBUR S &
and is subject to the approval of the Company's shareholders at the AR N RIRE R EEREBF RS I E
forthcoming annual general meeting. & FRIEE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
5o 35 e 7 Y o ()

31 DECEMBER 2021 —Z_-_—4+_A=+—H

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 12. BAEIEEBRRREMERE

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
247,477,113 (2020: 247,292,542) in issue during the year, as adjusted
to exclude the shares held under the restricted share award scheme
of the Company.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amounts is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent. The weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the
calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue during the year,
as used in the basic earnings per share calculation, and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued
at no consideration on the deemed vesting of all dilutive restricted
shares of the Company awarded under the restricted share award
scheme of the Company.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based on:

Earnings
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based on
profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent.

Shares

A

BEREAEFSENBEFARLEEBR
BREEMFRNRMNRFANEETE B
DORE T G 24747711308 (ZE B £
247292502 8%) 5t E - WL FIBR AR E G R
HIR% 1D 22 Eh a1 S E T Fr s I a EH SR % -

BRETRNSEIRES AR EEBR
REGRFRRNFAE - EARZER
BNEFH RS EERERRNAZ
FABBTEBEREE URBRIRME
RERARBEL A ABEER GRS
B BARIERER  ARATEREESRA
BT EBRNEFOEGTE -

HESREAREERAFAEENT -
B

GFREA R EE R IR A 78RR
RIS o

&)

Number of shares

R4 B E

2021
—E-—F

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in FEEREARBFAAFEAE

issue during the year used in the basic earnings BT AR NAE T8

per share calculation 247,477,113 247,292,542
Effect of dilution — weighted average number of e s T RRMETrHEc:
ordinary shares:
Restricted shares awarded under the Company's RIRE A 7B BRI A% ) 526
restricted share award scheme FTEIR H 2 BRI G5 1,038,541 1,269,160
Number of shares used in the diluted earnings per =15 & B% # 5% 2 7| £7 F
share calculation Mefn 25 B 248,515,654 248,561,702
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 $R 2% B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2021 —Z=—4#+_-A=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. 1% - BWERRKE
Furniture,
Computer fixtures
Leasehold equipment and other Motor
improvements  and software equipment vehicles Total
HENE EERER R £EBR
£ it HitRk AE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THER TER TR THER TR
31 December 2021 “B--%+tZA=t-H
At 1 January 2021; RZZZ—5—-H—F:
Cost A 6,848 7,076 2,431 647 17,002
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (6,735) (5,472) (2,161) (647) (15,015)
Net carrying amount REFE 113 1,604 270 - 1,987
At 1 January 2021, net of RZZEZ—5—-F—H"
accumulated depreciation MR REE 113 1,604 270 = 1,987
Additions NE - 564 77 - 641
Disposals HE - (3) - - 3)
Depreciation provided during FRMERE
the year (102) (1,181) (130) - (1,413)
Exchange realignment B X R 2 (5) 3 = =
At 31 December 2021, net of RZZEZ—%+ZA
accumulated depreciation =t+—8 MK
e 13 979 220 - 1,212
At 31 December 2021: RZE_—%+_HR
=t—H:
Cost A 6,890 6,910 2,523 647 16,970
Accumulated depreciation ZEHTE (6,877) (5,931) (2,303) (647) (15,758)
Net carrying amount REFE 13 979 220 - 1,212
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B A5 ¥ M o ()

31 DECEMBER 2021 — &=

—F+-A=1—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

Ownership
interestsin
properties held
for own use and

buildings
BERMERA
BRELET
HKS'000
TBT

31 December 2020

At 1 January 2020:
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

At T January 2020, net of
accumulated depreciation

Additions

Acquisition of a subsidiary
(note 31)

Disposals

Depreciation provided during
the year

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2020, net of
accumulated depreciation

At 31 December 2020:

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

“E-E+ZH
=t+-H

RZZ-ZF—F—H:
W$
2itE
REHE

W_ZE-FF—f—
B NBREHE

NE
WiE—RM B AR
(FtzE31)

HE

FRTERE

EH
A\ZE-TF+ A
=t-B Ak Z:t
&

e e
==
AR

ZitiE
EEFE

Leasehold
improvements
HEMZ
£

HK$'000
T

13. 1% - BERZRE ()

Fumniture,
Computer fixtures
equipment and other Motor

and software equipment vehicles

EMRER KA RER

wt B FiEE
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TBT THBT TET

155

Total

it
HK$'000
TAL

1213 6,781 5776 2312 647 16,729
(551) (6,555) (3801) (1,992) (647) (13,546)
662 226 1,975 320 = 3183
662 226 1,975 320 = 3,183

= = 701 76 = 777

= = 105 1 = 106
(633) = (19) (4) = (656)
(29) (123) (1,154) (131) = (1437)
= 10 (4) 8 = 14

= 13 1,604 270 = 1,987

= 6,848 7076 2431 647 17,002

= (6,735) (5472) (2,161) (647) (15015)

= 13 1,604 270 = 1,987

MR R RE AR QA —FFR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 DECEMBER 2021 —_E=_—f+_-A=+—H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. REY=
2021 2020
—E-—F ZEEF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FEx T
Carrying amount at 1 January R—HA—RZKRHEE 66,290 70,091
Disposal HE - (2,860)
Net gain/(loss) from fair value adjustments AT EFAE Z Kz~
(B 18) # 5 6 500 (941)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+t A=+—RHBZKHEE 66,790 66,290
The Group's investment properties consist of one (2020: one) AEBEZREMERE—H(ZEZ-E
commercial property in Mainland China and one (2020: one) F—EH)URPBAM 2 EEMER—
industrial property in Hong Kong. The directors of the Company B(ZEZZF: —B)URBEBZIEY
have determined that the investment properties consist of two X -ARREFCRESEME LS -
classes of asset, i.e., commercial and industrial, based on the nature, FHRERBRETIREMEAMEER (B
characteristics and risks of each property. The Group’s investment MERIH)EE - R_T=-Z—F+=-H
properties were revalued on 31 December 2021 based on valuations =t—H AEEZREMFERBURE
performed by Landscope Surveyors Limited, independent BERMEMEE I Z/MITER A A#T
professionally qualified valuers, at HK$66,790,000. Each year, the 2 1H B E iy 566,790,000 7% JT © 2N & B Bf
Group's Chief Financial Officer decides, after proper approval, to BRBERE PRBREBHEEMER BFE
appoint which external valuer to be responsible for the external FHNERBERMB EAEBE Y 2 INEBEE o
valuations of the Group’s properties. Selection criteria include market HESEREMSEANG B2 BUMK
knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional TR MR EFKE o NEE I 5B HEE
standards are maintained. The Group’s Chief Financial Officer has BEMEFERPEARFEFEMBRER 2HE
discussions with the valuer on the valuation assumptions and FRER A 2 BRa& R 45 RAETT RN 5158 ©

valuation results twice a year when the valuation is performed for
interim and annual financial reporting.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under operating BREMEEREBELEHELBETE=7 -
leases, further summary details of which are included in note 15 to HE—TSFBEMEIH N Y EIRERMIFES ©

the financial statements.

At 31 December 2021, one of the Group's investment properties RIBE_—F+_A=+—8 XEBE

situated in Hong Kong with a carrying value of approximately R EE 2 B — I8 8RHE {E 4 463,500,000

HK$63,500,000 (2020: HK$63,000,000) was pledged to secure general BT KEWME (ZZEZFF : 63,000,000

banking facilities granted to the Group. BT ERBERTAEE 2 —RIRTTH
BEHEA -

Further particulars of the Group’s investment properties are included REBREYE 2 — PFFHBEHRE 206

on page 206. =R
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 DECEMBER 2021 —Z_-_—4+_A=+—H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of

the Group’s investment properties:

14. HEY = ()

A EERER
TREFAEEREYE T ATEHES
LESTE

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2021 using
W=®=—£+=A=+-B2AFERAUTRENE

Significant

Quoted prices
in active
markets
(Level 1)

S R T i
BE
(E18)
HK$'000
FTET

Significant
unobservable
inputs

(Level 3)
BEATAEE
[oPN ¢
(%38)
HK$’000
FHET

observable
inputs
(Level 2)
EATEER
BAHE
(%28)
HK$’000
FET

At
HK$'000
TEx

Recurring fair value KEUATENE:
measurement for:
Commercial property [HES/ES - - 3,290 3,290
Industrial property IEMZE - - 63,500 63,500
S S 66,790 66,790

Fairva

lue measurement as at 31 December 2020 using

R-ZB-ZFEF-_A=t+—HZRAVERAUTEEFE

Quoted prices

Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

(Level 1) (EYE W) (Level 3)

&R % BERAHE BRATIHE

wE AR LN €7
(F1/E) (B20) (B3E) et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FET FET FET

Recurring fair value BEMEDFEE
measurement for:

Commercial property [EEX/ES - = 3,290 3,290
Industrial property TEME - = 63,000 63,000
- - 66,290 66,290

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3
(2020: Nil).

RAFEE F1BEFIBEZELENTF
Bt EER M ENFEFSEASE R
FEIB(ZE_ZTFE: |) o

MERSREEERAR B —FFH
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 DECEMBER 2021 —_E=_—f+_-A=+—H

4. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 14. REYE (E)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NEESRERE (,%?)
Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within Level 3 %‘;tﬁ,t;@$@ BEBEIB A TFER
of the fair value hierarchy: SHER
Commercial Industrial
Property Property
[GEX/ES TEYE
HKS'000 HK$'000
T T
Carrying amount at 1 January 2020 R-E_EF-—H—-—BZEREHE 5,891 64,200
Disposal HE (2,860) -
Net gain/(loss) from fair value adjustments NiEmP BRI A T ERAE
recognised in profit or loss Was/ (E518) F 8 259 (1,200)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2020 and RZBEZEF+-A=+—HBK
1 January 2021 T HF—-A—AZKEE 3,290 63,000
Net gain from a fair value adjustment RIERFPER AT EAR
recognised in profit or loss Iz F 58 - 500
Carrying amount at 31 December 2021 RZEZ—F+=ZA=+—HZ
fRmEE 3,290 63,500
Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the key TRAHKEMEGERAZEEAER
inputs to the valuation of investment properties: FEHABBHE
Fair value Significant
hierarchy Valuation techniques unobservable inputs
ALEER HEFE EATUEE
R BABE
Commercial property Level 3 Market comparable method Prevailing price per square foot RMB1,301 to RMB1,301 to
BENE E3E ML BERRZBTER RMB2,138 RMB1,765

AR#1301 52 ARE1301TE
AR®2138T ARM1765TT

Industrial property Level 3 Market comparable method Prevailing price per square foot HK$9,083 to HK$9,863 to
IEM=E F3E TS EE BYHRZBTER HK$14,023 HK$13,000
9,083 BT E 9863 BT E
14,023 B2 13,000 7T
Under the market comparable method (or market comparable MR HE T 4% Al L BOE (k% Al Lh 87 81) -
approach), a property’s fair value is estimated based on comparable WERNFETIAATERR 5 ABEEMET ©
transactions. The market comparable approach is based on the TS A LLER 7 AR R R I A AR - &t -
principle of substitution under which a potential buyer will not pay BEERBITERMEINREEZME
more for the property than it will cost to buy a comparable substitute ZALBRERMERZ 2S5 AEEH
property. The unit of comparison applied by the Group is the price Az BREMATFHTRZERE -
per square foot.
A significant increase/decrease in the estimated market price per BN s BFEARMGEHEREEN
square foot in insolation would result in a significant increase/ L g @I?xﬁ%% FEKEEMN
decrease in the fair value of the investment properties. B e
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 DECEMBER 2021 —Z_-_—4+_A=+—H

15. LEASES 15. HE
The Group as a lessee AEEEREHEA
The Group has lease contracts for various properties used in its REEEARNEERFERNSEYENHE
operations. Leases of properties generally have lease terms between EE6H - MEHE—ROMEPE—ZE=F -
1 and 3 years. Generally, the Group s restricted from assigning and —RME ARERSE LEHEEEEE
subleasing the leased assets outside the Group. BB TAREEAIINGAL
(@) Right-of-use assets (a) FHAEEE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and FRASEFTAREENEREER
the movements during the year are as follows: ZHMT
Properties
LES
2021 2020
—B-—F —E-FF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FTEx T
As at 1 January n—H—H 4,983 8486
Additions NE 17,034 3,701
Remeasurement on lease modifications HEEE 2 EE 1,720 (2,303)
Depreciation charge e (6,125) (4,885)
Exchange realignment bE 5 & 530 (16)
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—H 18,142 4,983

MMAGEBARAT —FT-—FFR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 DECEMBER 2021 —_E=_—f+_-A=+—H

15. LEASES (CONTINUED) 15. HE (&)
The Group as a lessee (continued) AEBEEREABEA (HE)
(b) Lease liabilities b) HESME
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements FAHEEENRAERESHNOT

during the year are as follows:

2021 2020
—B-—F ===
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FER T
Carrying amount at 1 January R—H—RBZERHEE 7,038 9,674
New leases MEE 17,034 3,701
Remeasurement on lease modifications HERE 2 EHMAE 1,146 (2,303)
Accretion of interest recognised during the year ~ FRNIERF| BIE & 245 1,155
Payments e (7,677) (5173)
Exchange realignment bE 5 & 462 (16)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+-ZA=+—HZEKEE 18,248 7,038
Analysed into: DT
Current portion mENE S 7,923 4614
Non-current portion IEmBNEB S 10,325 2424
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 37 HE B8 ER DB ST 5 BRI R
to the financial statements. =MIFE37 ©
()  The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases () EHBEEMRIEBERERNSHNAT :

are as follows:

2021 2020

=B —F —TFF

HK$’000 HKS'000

FET AT

Interest on lease liabilities HERBEZFE 245 1,155

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets ERAEEECTE 6,125 4,885

Expenses relating to short-term leases EHEHEE s AT 594 301

Gain on lease modifications HEEFT 2 W= (574) =

Total amount recognised in profit or loss RIEEERNES T 6,390 6,341
(d) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 32(c) to (d) FTEERIR SR HLER SRR

the financial statements. 320 WE -
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31 DECEMBER 2021 —Z_-_—4+_A=+—H

15. LEASES (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessor
The Group leases its investment properties (note 14) consisting of

one (2020: one) commercial property in the PRC and one (2020:
one) industrial property in Hong Kong under operating lease
arrangements. The terms of the leases generally require the tenants
to pay security deposits. Rental income recognised by the Group
during the year was HK$1,860,000 (2020: HK$633,000), details of
which are included in note 5 to the financial statements.

At the end of the reporting period, the undiscounted lease payments
receivable by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenants are as follows:

Within one year —F R
After one year but within two years —FRERMFEA

15. & (&)

AEBEAEHBEA

AEERBELELHELTHE  BHEEME
(H3E14) B BEMRPEN—E (=
ToTF:—H) AAMERMREEN
—H(ZZEZEF: —|H) ILExAYWE-H
EMER—MERBEIMEHRZE - &
EBRF ARSI A A 1,860,000
TT(ZZT -4 : 633,000/87T) © BRAES
BRI SRR FES ©

RBESHRGEER  AEEREEEES
RIS Z AR BUR R 2 HE N AR R M e
Wz KRR SEBRERNKNAT -

2021 2020
—E-—F ZETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T T
1,224 1,858

= 1222

1,224 3,080

MERSREEERAR B —FFH
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31 DECEMBER 2021 —_E=_—f+_-A=+—H

16. GOODWILL 16. B&
HKS$'000
T
31 December 2020 :§_§$+_H_+—E
Cost and carrying amount at 1 January 2020 RZETF—A—HXAREERE 134,485
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 31) e i — T B A &) (M 5E31) 516
Cost and carrying amount at 31 December 2020 RZZE_ZTF+_A=+—HEAEAR
fREE 135,001
HK$’000
FEx
31 December 2021 —E-—%+=ZA=+—H
Cost and carrying amount at 1 January 2021 and RZEB-Z—F—HA-—HBR-ZZT_—F
31 December 2021 TZA=+—BEAREEE 135,001
As further detailed in note 2.4 to the financial statements, the Group BB IR R W 24 AT R AEEE
applied the transitional provisions of HKFRS 3 that permitted goodwill XA E}% ﬁﬁ‘%i&% AE RN 28 3 5% 2 3B I {5
in respect of business combinations which occurred prior to 2001 to X BRHR_ET—FRIMEERBEER
remain eliminated against consolidated reserves. é{ﬂZﬁ%ﬂzﬁEﬁiﬁ & ET e o
The amount of goodwill remaining in consolidated reserves, arising 2T —FHEMNETE ?ﬁzi’% Bl %8 305%
from the acquisition of subsidiaries prior to the adoption of SSAP 30 Al HSZ BB AR MTEENRE NGRS FE
in 2001, was HK$7,227,000 as at 31 December 2020 and 2021. ZEBLE RT_TFER-_T_—F

+=A=+—H%7227,000%&7T °

Impairment testing of goodwill [N 5
Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated to the E‘JE/ﬁZTE BRME  ESREBEWE A
following cash-generating units for impairment testing: SEEETINRESEEBN

Application services cash-generating unit; and . FERRBREEESNT

Solutions and Integration services cash-generating unit. . FRRTT R R K AR TSIA B EEE BT o
The carrying amounts of goodwill allocated to each of the cash- PRERRSEEBM B REBELNT

generating units are as follows:

Application Solutions and
Services Integration Services Total

FE R R % R RR SRR nE

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

—E--% ZT-T§ CZEBE--f ZT-TF ZBE--F <ZZT-TH

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TET TR FEL TR FEL

Carrying amount of goodwill HERAEE 132,978 132,978 2,023 2023 135,001 135,001
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16. GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)
Application services cash-generating unit

The recoverable amount of the application services cash-generating
unit has been determined based on a value-in-use calculation using
cash flow projections approved by management covering a five-year
period. A zero (2020: zero) growth rate is used to extrapolate the cash
flows of the cash-generating unit beyond the five-year period. The
discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 12% (2020: 12%).
The cash flow projections are determined by management based on
past performance of the cash-generating unit and management’s

expectations for market development.

Solutions and Integration services cash-generating unit

The recoverable amount of the solutions and integration services
cash-generating unit has been determined based on a value-in-use
calculation using cash flow projections approved by management
covering a five-year period. A zero (2020: zero) growth rate is used
to extrapolate the cash flows of the cash-generating unit beyond
the five-year period. The discount rate applied to the cash flow
projections is 12% (2020: 12%). The cash flow projections are
determined based on past performance of the cash-generating unit

and management's expectations for market development.

Assumptions were used in the value-in-use calculation of the
application services and the solutions and integration services cash-
generating units for 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020. The
following describes each key assumption on which management has
based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing of

goodwill:

Budgeted/forecasted revenue

The basis used to determine the value assigned to the budgeted/
forecasted revenue is the revenue achieved in the year immediately
before the budget/forecast year, adjusted for management’s

expected change in market demand and customer base.

Budgeted/forecasted gross margins

The basis used to determine the value assigned to the budgeted/
forecasted gross margins is the average gross margins achieved
in the year immediately before the budget/forecast year, adjusted
for any expected efficiency improvements and expected market

developments.

Discount rates

The discount rates used are before tax and reflect specific risks

relating to the relevant cash-generating units.

16. F& (&)

EE R E R (&)

ERREREELEN

FERRBREEELESBL 2R EEEDR
BERAEENET  ZERAEEAUNAE
BEFMMECAFHRERNETEN - HE
ReELBEMBEAFTNHEERER £
ANEEREXAT(ZT_ZFF: %) - BHE
MEBAMANRE S 12%(ZE_FF :
12%) - REREBAAREEEEE + K
BRARESEABM I BAERE URER
BYmnER2EH -

BRERRERBREASELEN
R Ty 5= &‘iﬁﬁzﬁ&ﬁ&fﬁﬁﬁi 5 i 2 AT I
CeRERBEEREEETE  %EBEE
Jﬂﬁﬁ E@%tt/ﬁzjiﬁzﬁﬁﬁ%mbéf'ﬁ;ﬂu"
IERSEFEUBHAFNRESRER
ERANERERT(ZTE_ZTF: i) = EE
emEBAMERTRERI2%(ZE=
TE12%) HReERSEAREEEEE
HEBRAESEABUZBERER UK
EREBHMBERTEL -

R-B_—FT_A=+—HBER=F=F
Frt-A=1+—8 FERAREANE
RTBRNRERRBZREELEEN 2EH
BEREEAZETRR EEENER
SRERAETHRERENAMKEZE
AT EREBBMT

BHFHYA

B EARAZ BEDRESEERE
HRE R A2 FRAEEE Y AR -
LR ERAT SRR RE PR
B{E B -

ﬁé %*/ TRHBE FE

8 RRENE 2 BEDRIBEERE
i%i AFEERZFERNEER 2 FHEME
BE UIMBEKRRELRBEMSER
fEH AR -

HrHE R
Frie eIl X BRI ATITIR X - 2R
RNMIEEIR S ELEM 2B ERR -

MERGREERAR T —FFH%
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17. Htt B EE

Deferred
development

17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Customer

costs*

IEFER B A A
HK$'000
TER

relationships

EFBE%
HK$'000
TEr

Software
nH
HK$'000
FTHET

Total
Fok ]
HK$'000
FTHET

31 December 2021 —E-_—%5+=H8
==
At 1 January 2021: RZE-_—4%—H—RH:
Cost %N 44,337 14,767 46,028 105,132
Accumulated amortisation and BiEHENRE
impairment (13,026) (9,101) (22,049) (44,176)
Net carrying amount REEE 31,311 5,666 23,979 60,956
Cost at 1 January 2021, net of RZEZ—4%—H—Az
accumulated amortisation and BN+ 0Bk RETEESE K
impairment BME 31,311 5,666 23,979 60,956
Additions NE 1,894 = - 1,894
Amortisation provided during the 7N 4F [& 2k §5 18 55
year = (1,656) (4,836) (6,492)
At 31 December 2021 RZZ=Z—%+=R
=9=g 33,205 4,010 19,143 56,358
At 31 December 2021: RZEZ—5%+=A
=9=M8":
Cost B AR 46,231 14,767 46,028 107,026
Accumulated amortisation and R ERRE
impairment (13,026) (10,757) (26,885) (50,668)
Net carrying amount REFE 33,205 4,010 19,143 56,358
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17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 17. Htt B E=E (&)
Deferred
development Customer
costs* relationships Software Total
iR R B Y AR KPHE /e ok
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHT FAT T
31 December 2020 —E_ZH+4+_H
Er=1¢
At 1 January 2020: RZZE_ZTF-—H—H:
Cost %N 39,494 14,767 43,681 97,942
Accumulated amortisation and 2R EHENRE
impairment (13,026) (7,445) (17,472) (37,943)
Net carrying amount REEE 26,468 7322 26,209 59,999
Cost at 1 January 2020, net of RZZEZTH5—-—H—HA2
accumulated amortisation and BCAS - 0Bk RETEESE K
impairment HIE 26,468 7322 26,209 59,999
Additions NE 4,843 = = 4,843
Acquisition of a subsidiary Sl =N
(note 31) (Bf&E31) - = 2347 2347
Amortisation provided during the  ZN4F & 2 $5 B¢ s
year - (1,656) (4,577) (6,233)
At 31 December 2020 RZEZZTE+-A
== 31,311 5,666 23,979 60,956
At 31 December 2020 and RZZE-ZEF+=A
1 January 2021: =t+—HBRZZE=—F%
—H—R:
Cost AR 44,337 14,767 46,028 105,132
Accumulated amortisation and BETEHENRE
impairment (13,026) (9,101) (22,049) (44,176)
Net carrying amount RESEE 31311 5,666 23,979 60,956
o During the year, additions of deferred development cost of HK$1,894,000 p FR - EERERARE 18940005 7T (=
(2020: HK$4,843,000) were from internal development. T =T 4F 1 4843,000747T) J2R B N EFFIE o
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18. INVENTORIES 18. 7 &

2021 2020

—E-—F ZEEF

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FEx T

Work in progress ERE 36 7

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES 19. BWE Z KX

2021 2020

—E-—F ZEEF

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FTEx T

Trade receivables FEWE 5 AR 5K 48,778 48,359
Impairment A (3,177) (3,861)

45,601 44,498
The Group’s trading terms with its customers vary from contract to REE 2R 515K E EER & 2547 T 6
contract or depending on the specific arrangements with individual BERIEFZHAIRHEME - AlgeBEEE
customers, and may include cash on delivery, advance payment and I BENRRRE - BZEARER
on credit. For those customers who trade on credit, the overall credit NETRHGZEFLME BREEH K
period is generally within 60 days, except for certain projects with NEZR60K « MHEMME TIEE i THRE
longer implementation schedules or for major or specific customers, IREBLAFERS  IEREFEEH - &
where the period may be extended. The Group seeks to maintain SE—EBRBEGNEREREZEKRE SR
strict control over its outstanding trade receivables and overdue o EEENEREM A HAKIELLR o K
balances are reviewed regularly by management. The Group does SEYTERLSZERKRESRFERFTEE
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade AEFmBELEMEESESH - BIK

receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing. B SRRLETFE -
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19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss allowance,
is as follows:

Within 1 month —(EARA

1to 3 months —E={EA
410 6 months M= 5@ A

7 to 12 months +tE=+={@A

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

19. BKWE 5 R (&)

RBEHREEER  RUEZERFRER
BRI S HBEIERE R T

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
THET FAT
26,626 34,828
13,269 6,163
3,740 2,548

1,966 959
45,601 44,498

FEWE BN REBBREBEESH T

BE, (B EDRE) B BT

At beginning of year READ
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) losses, net
(note 6) (FffzEe)

Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 31)

Amount written off as uncollectible W 8H = A IR B R IE
Exchange realignment HE H B
At end of year £

Yo — BB 2 &) (PR EE31)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using
a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision
rates are based on days past due. The calculation reflects the
probability-weighted outcome and reasonable and supportable
information that is available at the reporting date about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

2021 2020
—E-—F —EF
HK$’000 HKS 000
FTHET FHET
3,861 3,395
(123) 408

- 3

(595) -

34 55

3,177 3,861

REHE HRRAREEEETRED T
UEtEBRMEEEE - Eﬁ?ﬁ%)’ﬁ%ﬁ’é@%ﬁ
BEET - gt ERBRAARMELR
RE RSN ARBESR - EA Hﬁi
AR ARREB GRS R SEER -

M ZAEEERAR —T-—F4FH
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19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the

Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix:

Current

19. B E 5 R (&)

TREIIANEEE AR EEETE R
BHERFNEERRER :

Past due
okt

Less than 1to3 Over
1 month months 3 months

Credit-
impaired
receivables
FERE
FE ik
At 31 December 2021 R-B=-F
+=A=t+-H
Expected credit loss rate BHEEERE 100%
Gross carrying amount EmeE
(HK$'000) (FET) 2,958
Expected credit losses BHEEER
(HK$'000) (FET) 2,958

B

0.03%

30,650

—fEAR ZEARL

0.07% 0.19% 5.45% 6.51%
7,303 4,255 3,612 48,778
5 8 197 3,177

Current

A

Past due

Less than Tt03 Over
T month months 3 months

—fEAR =EAKE

Credit-
impaired
receivables
EERE
e FRIA
At 31 December 2020 R-B-2F
t=ZA=t-H
Expected credit loss rate BHEEEERX 100%
Gross carrying amount REAE
(HK$'000) (&) 3,585
Expected credit losses BHEEER
(HKS'000) (&) 3,585

0.00%

34,891

0.00% 0.00% 11.26% 7.98%
5029 2403 2451 48359
= = 276 3,861
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20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 20. ENRIE  RERHEMEW
RECEIVABLES A
2021 2020
—B=—F —T_FTHF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHEx FHET
Prepayments T 5RIE 13,286 15,710
Deposits and other receivables & K H b FEUGRIE 4,174 4332
17,460 20,042
Portion classified as current assets DEARBEERD (15,041) (19,414)
Portion classified as non-current assets DERIIERBEELS 2,419 628
The financial assets included in the above balances relate to BIER Ll 568N < B 75 & B B AR A%
receivables for which there was no recent history of default and past HERES 2 EWFIBERBHSEERE - ©®
due amounts. As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the loss allowance R FRIZF-FFFA=F+—8H"
was assessed by the management to be minimal. ERETHEERERBE -
21. CONTRACT ASSETS 21. BREE
31 December 31 December 1 January
2021 2020
—E-—fF T=F ZEETF
+=A=+—H —A—H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
FTET FHET FHETT
Contract assets arising from: BREERGATNEIE:
Sale of goods and provision of software,  $H%& & f KIR
GETS and BPO services % BNEFES
AR 7% I S 7 AR SN
H IR 222 3,060 3,130
Provision of software implementation B E i R A
and related services, IT solutions PR - BRI AR
implementation and related services RTTRE R AR
B 7% 20,201 16,448 16,645
Maintenance services HEARTS 5,205 740 451

25,628 20,248 20,226

MMAGEBARAT —FT-—FFR
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21. CONTRACT ASSETS (CONTINUED)

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Contract assets are mainly initially recognised for revenue earned
from the provision of software implementation and related services,
and IT solutions implementation and related services as the receipt
of consideration is based on the billing process. Included in contract
assets for provision of software implementation and related services,
and IT solutions implementation and related services are unbilled
amounts of revenue. Upon completion of the billing of the revenue
from contract customers, the amounts recognised as contract assets
are reclassified to trade receivables. The increase in contract assets in
2021 was mainly due to an increase in the provision of maintenance
services near the end of the year. The increase in contract assets in
2020 was mainly due to an increase in the provision of maintenance
services near the end of that reporting period.

The expected timing of recovery or settlement for contract assets as
at 31 December is as follows:

Within one year —F R

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using
a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision
rates for the measurement of the expected credit losses of the
contract assets are based on those of the trade receivables as the
contract assets and the trade receivables are from the same customer
bases. The provision rates of contract assets are based on days past
due of trade receivables for groupings of various customer segments
with similar loss patterns. The calculation reflects reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date about
past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. There was
no recent history of default for the contract assets. Since the contract
assets are still current and the payment is not yet due, the expected
credit loss rates of contract assets are assessed by the management
to be minimal.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

21.

BHREE (A)

RRARENKRERT EZERRAHRENE
B RS EEMAAERSE - AREA
R R R 77 = B s M A8 B AR 75 P 15 W A7)
RERBANEE - sLEEHEM B LA
BAARF - A R B AR AR T R E i M AE
ARG ABRNEETDAFRERASE -
TRENTPWAFRHKRER  ZFCHE
RBANEENSHSEN T BERKE
SRR KRB - —FNANEELNT
E B BN ERATFRATHR (L 4 RTS8 b0 AT
B-R-ZB_ZFHNANEERNDNER
BRI AT 5% 3R 5 4R TR P R 4 A o AR 75548 A0
FER °

R+ZA=+—8 aKEENFEHKE
SEERENT

2021 2020
—E-—fF

—E-TF
HK$'000
TAT

20,248

HK$’000
TR
25,628

REHE B PR BEBREETREDN -
Ut BRMEEBR -sfEANEERY
EEBENREXRTDENERE 5 RRTE
HEEBRBRRBXZFAEMNGH  RAR
BHEEREBEESREFIKEHREFE
B-ANEENBRBXNERBHAH
REERUBBEANTRAZTR S EH2E
RIMETE ° At EERRR IS B HA]
SOARRBESZE - AR R ARREE
R FERNAIE R AT AR -

LHEEREBRIRE - GHEELH
WHEELRLE - ARAHENEERKRE
B HERENGaNEENTRMERES
BERRWEK -
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22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT ORLOSS

Debt investment, at fair value BRATEFE ZEBRE 2,100
Listed equity investments, at fair value BEATEFE 2 ERAERE 7,546 7322
Derivative financial instruments, at fair value* BRAFEFEZITENBIA -
9,646 9,483
Portion classified as current assets DERREBEES D (7,546) (7.383)
Portion classified as non-current assets DERIERDEENS 2,100 2,100
@ The derivative financial instruments represented call options to acquire @ PTHE % T B 5 W e — R T B8 2 Bl 58 1N 40%

additional 40% equity interest in a subsidiary, further details of which are
included in note 31 to the financial statements.

The listed equity investments were classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss as they were held for trading.

The debt investment was mandatorily classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss as its contractual cash flows are not
solely payments of principal and interest.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's listed equity investments with
a carrying value of approximately HKS$7,546,000 (2020: HKS$7,322,000)
were pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to the
Group.

22. BAFELEBEZ AR
BE

2021 2020
—EB-—F —E-F

HK$’000 HK$'000
FTEx TET

BAESNREDRE EZHBHARYHB

HRMEE3

EHERAFRERBRIEEEMES B AR

NP ERBHEARZIMBEE -

ﬁ%%?xéfﬁ%ﬁ w1 D B ARIR AT ELER
s ARZHBEE REAOREREY

FELNINAERFE -

R=-ZE=-_—F+-_fA=+—8 AEEZ
R AIE B BRE{E 4 /4 7,546,000 78 7T (=
T F 17320008 L) B ARBRTF

AEEZ —RIBITREFEM

M ZAEEERAR —T-—F4FH
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23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

23. BEREFRSEEUAREE
HRITER

2021 2020
—E-—F —TE-TF

HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAT

Cash and bank balances & RIRTTA R 89,930 87,077
Time deposits TE HATF 5K 209,660 209,221
299,590 296,298

o RRITELE ZBORE
ERCHETERFR (685) (666)
Pledged deposit for banking facility granted PRITE B ZRITHE
by a bank* Fi R 77 50 ¢ (508) =

Less: Pledged time deposits for performance
bonds/guarantees issued by banks

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position ZRBEEE
* The bank facility has not been utilised as at the end of the reporting period.

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
and time deposits of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”)
amounted to approximately HK$56,281,000 (2020: HK$55,972,000).
The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on relevant bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods
of between one and six months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short
term time deposit rates. The bank balances and time deposits are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

AFABRAEMBEIRARZERE R

298,397 295,632

* RREHRREER WLBEBHAZRITHE -

RIFEHBLEER  REBUARBE (TA
REDFEZESRBITEH LTS
R4 556,281,000 7T (ZE T F :
55972,000/70) - AR EARLIRA
H i EE - BRI R R INE S 2 &)
MEEE EERMESERTE  ~AEEE
BB EITINEER 2 RITHEAREK
HinBHEAINE o

RITRESRIFAABBRITERM R LI H
KB - RHEMERNERANF—=
NEATE  REARKEEKRESF KM
E o WIRAREHERE R KL - R
TRBEERFFAFEREERFRL
HAY B RS 8k 2 BRTT o
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24. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUALS

Trade payables FETE 5 IR

Other payables Lt FE A FRIE

Accruals JEETFIE

Portion classified as current liabilities PEAERBEEISY
Portion classified as non-current liabilities DERIERBEEES

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the reporting
period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

Within 1 month —(@AR

1to 3 months —Z=={@A
410 6 months MENEA
Over 6 months 7~E A LA E

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled
on 30-day terms.

24. BENEZ R - HtEARE

R EFTRIE
2021 2020
—E-—F ZEETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFET TAT
11,257 18,094
27,327 26,709
25,134 22,315
63,718 67,118
(63,718) (66,581)
- 537
RBEHBEER  ENEZEREFIREE
AZEREDITAT
2021
—E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFET FAT
8,417 10,008
2,155 7,181
429 216
256 689
11,257 18,094

ENESERAL TS —RIZ0KRHR

lzf:tu/ﬁ 2

MMAGEBARAT —FT-—FFR
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25. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 25. EHEE
Details of contract liabilities are as follows: EHBEFBET
31 December 31 December 1 January
2021 2020 2020
—E-——F —E-THE —T-THF
+=—A=+—-8 +t=A=+—H —A—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET T T
Advances received from customers B EF#H
Sale of goods and provision of software,  $5%% & 5 K& IR 4 &k
GETS and BPO services % BNEFES
Rk 75 K2 2 75 m AR S0
#I AR 2,715 5898 2,801
Provision of software implementation RGBS
and related services, and IT solutions R - REFMBHE
implementation and related services fR T RE i & A8
7R 75 24,384 21,229 18,430
Maintenance services i T 28,973 33,890 34,481
56,072 61,017 55,712
Portion classified as current liabilities DER/RRBEERS (54,222) (58,708) (55,712)
Portion classified as non-current liabilities 2 %8 & IE R B B E26D 1,850 2,309 -
The majority of the contract liabilities mainly include advances ABHENEEEECEREREMEIE
received to render software implementation and related services, RABRARTE - A AR RE i &4
IT solutions implementation and related services, and maintenance 78 AR 75 LA T2 #E s AR 755 FT W AR O B 3R o ;A =
services. The decrease in contract liabilities in 2021 was mainly due T —FHENBERIEERRERE
to a decrease in advances received from customers in relation to HEMEERSE ZEREP BT o
the provision of maintenance services at the end of the year. The RIZEZEFHNENEEEMEERRAE
increase in contract liabilities in 2020 was mainly due to an increase FEREHAHEEmIEHERY  BUTE
in advances received from customers in relation to the sale of goods FTE IR REBRIZINIRE 2 BEWE
and provision of software, GETS and BPO services at the end of the FEAFIEINATER o
prior year.
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26. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year

are as follows:

Deferred tax assets

At 1 January 2021

Deferred tax charged to the consolidated & A1k A EEE K Z

statement of profit or loss during the year

Exchange realignment

Gross deferred tax assets at
31 December 2021

Deferred tax liabilities

At 1 January 2021
Deferred tax charged/(credited)
to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss during the year
Exchange realignment

Gross deferred tax liabilities at
31 December 2021

26. EFEFIE
ER - REHELAERBECE#BHMT -

EEBREE

Losses
available for
offsetting

against future
taxable profits
AJ 445 8 R R B
EzbRil:0) F
HK$’000
THET

2021

—E-—F
Temporary
differences
arising from
contract
liabilities
REEHNEE
ZERERE
HK$’000
THET

Total

HK$’000
FTERx

RZE=—F—H—H 824 2,320 3,144
RIETR IR (824) (338) (1,162)
M 5, B - 79 79
R-ZE_—F+_H
=+ —HELERIE
BEER - 2,061 2,061
ELEHERE
2021
—E_-F
Fair value
adjustments
Deferred  arising from
Revaluation development acquisitionof Withholding
of properties costs  subsidiaries taxes
KB R A R
MEER BEHERE 2AFERE ik
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TR TR TR TER TR
R-_ZE=——F—f— 386 5,166 7,071 764 13,387
FRMB/ Gt FEBER
ZEERIA
- 312 (1,507) 5 (1,190)
5% ; - - : °
RZF-—F+-A=1+—H
ELEHBARBER 386 5,478 5,564 774 12,202
Bt Z BB R A A —EC—FFR
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26. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax assets

At 1 January 2020

Deferred tax charged to the consolidated FRAFKR LR A IBHZR 2

statement of profit or loss during the year

Exchange realignment

Gross deferred tax assets at
31 December 2020

Deferred tax liabilities

At 1 January 2020
Acquisition of a subsidiary
(note 31)
Deferred tax charged/(credited)
to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss during the year
Exchange realignment
Disposal of an investment property

Gross deferred tax liabilities at
31 December 2020

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

26. IEEHE (&)

BEEREEE
Losses Temporary
available for differences
offsetting arising from
against future contract
taxable profits liabilities Total
AEEEARRE REERNARE
AR A B B 18 LB R AR ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
TR THEIT THETT
RZZE=ZTF—H—H 1434 2,288 3,722
EIERIR (610) (134) (744)
BEE i B — 166 166
RZZ_ZTF+=A
=+—RELEHE
BEFER 824 2,320 3,144
EEREAE
2020
it Sk 323
Fair value
adjustments
Deferred arising from
Revaluation  development  acquisitionof ~ Withholding
of properties costs subsidiaries taxes Total
big - NG
WEERL REREKE 2D FEAE il BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THT THET THET THT
RZZEZTF5—-A—H 826 4367 8148 608 13,949
e — IR A )
(P3E31) - - 387 - 387
ERAG/ Gt RaBRER
ZBRREHIE
(314) 799 (1,464) 148 (831)
ERAE - - - ) 8
HE—BREME (126) - - - (126)
RN_Z_TF+_A=+—-H
EREHBAEER 386 5166 7071 764 13387
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26. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 26. IEEBIIE (88)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities
have been offset in the consolidated statement of financial position.
The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of the Group
for financial reporting purposes:

AEZIEM ETEEHREERARE
ERGEEMBARNKAEE - AT RAE
B e 15 B R B B R IR A R AT

2021 2020
=B —F —T_FF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FER T
Net deferred tax assets recognised in the RERE MR ARERZELENIE
consolidated statement of financial position BEFR 2,061 2,320
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the RERE M RR R ER ZIELETIA
consolidated statement of financial position BEFE (12,202) (12,563)
(10,141) (10,243)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the
foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied
if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction
of the foreign investors. For the Group’s subsidiaries established
in Mainland China, the applicable rate is 5% or 10%. The Group
is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed
by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

At the end of the reporting period, in respect of certain subsidiaries
of the Group established in Mainland China, no deferred tax has
been recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable on
the unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding taxes. In
the opinion of the directors of the Company, it is not probable that
these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable
future. The aggregate amount of temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred
tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled approximately
HK$2,667,000 at 31 December 2021 (2020: HK$2,601,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of
dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

RIFER R EMSHE - R B A K L
ZHONEREMBIMNEEESTIRREEIR
T0%TEMBEHF - EEREEE_ZEEN
F—A—HREN WERAR_-_ZZLF
+—A=+—HZEBMELEREF - W EH
A HE EL G INE B B PR el AR B E
TG QAT HRARE 2 BN E « R&E
BERRBERNHK Y 2B RARERARE S
5%310% ° At B=ZEF/\F—H—H
#B - NEBAERZER T B A2 Y
B AR FTE S ZFED IR 2RSS TEN
i o

R EHELEER  ARBEWEFLERF
B A B 32 2 5 T BT BB A B ok BB 2B 4K
MIENHE BN EHZ BN ERELER
He ARRAEEZRE RAIRLRE FE
MEBARTNKAREDRZSERF - R_F
——H+-A=+—H BEFRERLZ
MEARKRAHB YR EHEAEA R
#32,667,00078 78 (ZF ZZ 4 : 2,601,000
7o) MW EERECHERE -

ARRTE E [ E BRI S ME LA
/-

MESEEREEERAR B —FFR
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26. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 26. IELEBIE (&)

Tax losses not recognised REZNWHRIBEE

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unrecognised tax RFEHELEER  AEBREBEER
losses arising in Hong Kong of approximately HK$1,458,000 (2020: R IEEE 1458008 T (ZE=F
HK$570,000), subject to the agreement by the Hong Kong Inland 15700008 7T) - AIERHIEEIRE &
Revenue Department, that are available indefinitely for offsetting BEEEBARZRRERT A - HH
against future taxable profits arising in Hong Kong of the companies FREBEBRA o NEB TG ER
in which the losses arose. The Group also has estimated tax loss BlEEMFIBEIEA41370008 T (ZF =
arising in the PRC of HK$4,137,000 (2020: HK$1,089,000), subject to T 4F 11,089,000 7T) c UMEBEHER—=
the agreement by the tax authority in the PRC, for offsetting against 5 A B B 9 R R SR Y I AR A m A -
future taxable profit arising in the PRC which will expire in one to MR B SRR R - B ZEEIER
five years. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of BEE—BBFHBEBZHBARKR
these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss- S AR 2 S M B A B A 2R B SR v 1 2Rk
making for some time and/or due to the unpredictability of future TR B A] TR R LA R IR B R A AR e A JE
taxable profit streams of the companies in which the losses arose, Al A R YER SHAR TR B 18 - MO R Bt
and it is currently not considered probable that taxable profits will be ZEBERREEHIEEE -

available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. B
Shares iz 5
2021 2020
—EB-—F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET Tt
Authorised: EERA
1,000,000,000 (2020: 1,000,000,000) 1,000,000,000 f% (==& = T 4F :
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 1,000,000,000 f% ) & AX EI B 0.10
BT E B 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: EBEITREBBRA
249,488,384 (2020: 249,488,384) 249488384 M (— T T4 ¢
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 249,488,384 %) G AR EI{E 0.10
AT E B 24,949 24,949
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27. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Shares (continued)

27. B (#])

A summary of movements in the Company’s issued ordinary share
capital, share premium account and shares held under the restricted

share award scheme is as follows:

Ordinary shares

At 1 January 2020

Purchase of shares held under the
restricted share award scheme

Veesting of shares held under the
restricted share award scheme

At 31 December 2020 and
at 1 January 2021

Purchase of shares held under the
restricted share award scheme

Vesting of shares held under the
restricted share award scheme

At 31 December 2021

Share options

\ZZ-TF—-A—H
BEBRGIRM EEE
B TRH
BRHIROEZBEBET
R EE
i
=t—-8k
RZZ=Z—%—H—H
EEARIRM RE 2
RN

BR IR EREEIET
Rin 5B
RZT-—%+=A
==E

29

29

29

29

Number
of shares
inissue

E#fT
Ko E

B 4n ()

AR B BT EBBA B9 5 B RAR
12 TR AR 1 SR B =t 815 2 A1) B B
2T

Shares held

under the

Share restricted

Issued premium share award

capital account scheme

REBRH

R4 %R

2R R FHERE
B REE 2R kL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THT

249488384 24949 53,104 (5462) 72,591
S S S (235) (235)
- - - 1217 1217
249,488,384 24,949 53,104 (4,480) 73,573
. - = (2,707) (2,707)
i d . 1,176 1,176
249,488,384 24,949 53,104 (6,011) 72,042

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the share options
issued under the scheme are included in note 28 to the financial

statements.

Restricted shares

Details of the Company’s restricted share award scheme and the
restricted shares held under the scheme are included in note 29 to

the financial statements.

BB
BRAA R B EBER 8 MR B % 81 &1T
BRI ZFHBEN P HRKRME28 -

7 PR il i 43

AN B R AR5 B2t B K AR R X B
BB 2 AR IR 2B R BT 15 R A
29 °

MERSREEERAR B —FFH
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

The Company operates a share option scheme for the primary
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group's operations. The share
option scheme entitles the holders of share options granted under
the scheme to subscribe for ordinary shares of the Company at any
time during the exercisable periods of the options. Share options
do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at
shareholders’ meetings.

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “2012 Scheme”)
in prior years. Eligible participants of the 2012 Scheme include
the Company’s directors (whether executive or non-executive
and whether independent or not), other employees of the Group,
consultants or advisers of the Group, suppliers of goods or services
to the Group, customers of the Group, the Company’s shareholders,
and any other person, at the sole discretion of the directors. The
2012 Scheme became effective on 19 November 2012 and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years
from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the 2012 Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any time. The maximum number of shares issuable under
share options to each eligible participant in the 2012 Scheme within
any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this
limit is subject to shareholders'approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director or substantial shareholder of
the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject to approval
in advance by the INEDs. In addition, any share options granted to
a substantial shareholder or an INED of the Company, or to any of
their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the price of
the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of HKS5 million,
within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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28.

29.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 10 days
from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HKS1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the directors, and commences after
certain vesting period and ends on a date which is not later than 10
years from the date of offer of the share options or the expiry date of
the 2012 Scheme, whichever is earlier.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the directors,
but may be at least the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price
of the Company’s shares on the date of offer of the share options; (ii)
the average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii)
the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

No share option of the Company was outstanding, granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the current and prior years
and subsequent to the end of the reporting period up to the date of
approval of these financial statements under the 2012 Scheme.

RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company adopted a restricted share award scheme (the “Award
Scheme”) on 22 May 2008 and renewed the Award Scheme on 31
May 2017 (the “Renewed Date”) under which shares of the Company
(the “Awarded Shares”) may be awarded to selected employees
(including directors) of any members of the Group (the “Selected
Employees”) in accordance with the provisions of the Award Scheme
and an irrevocable trust (the “Trust”) was also established by the
Company for the purpose of the Award Scheme. The Award Scheme
became effective on the adoption date and, unless otherwise
terminated or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from the
Renewed Date. Further details of the Award Scheme are also set out
in circulars of the Company dated 29 April 2008 and 26 April 2017.

28.

29.

B8 ()

REFBZBREAINEZ B HEF0
BAKH MERARXNEHIEBTZ
KEARE - IRHBEREZTENHE
EET YHhETHRBHEKRAL  mER
BTSRRI 2 BAE A SR +Fk
T FFEZEHB (ARFEERE) o

BEREZITEERESETE BT ER
TH=FFZ2EEE : (A RABRDNE
Z2BBERREBR 2 WHIE () AR
AR N ERREZ B8 R AR5 B
Rz FHEHE : Ri)RNA BB Z
g °

ARRBINAFEE FBEFE AR E HE
RERAREBEHELFYERRBELM
FARITE B BT EE#EKE
RRZ —FT——FFHEIATERE -

BRI R R B E

ARARR—ZEENFRA-+-_BEHK—
IHA IR & ik () 22 B ET &) ([ SR EET &) B
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29. RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

(CONTINUED)

The aggregate number of the Awarded Shares currently permitted
to be awarded under the Award Scheme throughout the duration
of the Award Scheme is limited to 10% of the issued share capital of
the Company from time to time or such other percentage as notified
to them by the board of directors of the Company (the “Board”)
(provided that the overall limit on the number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet
to be exercised under any other incentive or share option schemes
and under the Award Scheme must not exceed 30% of the shares
of the Company in issue from time to time). Subject to the aforesaid
limit, the maximum number of the Awarded Shares which may be
awarded under the Award Scheme shall not exceed 2% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the year end date of the preceding
financial year of the Company for any 12-month period up to and
including the date of the relevant grant. The maximum number of
the Awarded Shares which may be awarded to a Selected Employee
under the Award Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the year end date of the preceding
financial year of the Company.

Pursuant to the rules governing the operation of the Award Scheme
(the “Scheme Rules”), the Board shall select the Selected Employees
and determine the number of the Awarded Shares to be awarded.
The Board shall cause to pay the trustee of the Trust (the “Trustee”)
the purchase price and the related expenses from the Company’s
resources for the shares of the Company to be purchased by the
Trustee. The Trustee is a third party appointed by the Board for the
administration of the Award Scheme. The Trustee shall purchase
from the market such number of shares of the Company awarded
as specified by the Board and shall hold such shares until they are
vested in accordance with the Scheme Rules.
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29. RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME
(CONTINUED)

When a Selected Employee has satisfied all vesting conditions, which
might include service and/or performance conditions, specified by
the Board at the time of making the award and becomes entitled
to the shares of the Company forming the subject of the award, the
Trustee shall transfer the relevant vested Awarded Shares to that
employee at no cost. The Selected Employee, however, is not entitled
to receive any income or distribution, such as dividend derived
from the unvested Awarded Shares allocated to him/her. The said
income or distributions shall be used by the Trustee for payment of
the Trustee’s fees or expenses or for purchase of further shares of the

Company for the Award Scheme.

The Trustee shall not exercise the voting rights in respect of any
shares of the Company held under the Trust, including, inter alia, the
Awarded Shares and further shares of the Company acquired out of

the income derived therefrom.

The fair value of the Awarded Shares awarded was based on the
market value of the Company’s shares at the grant date and the
Group recognised an equity-settled share-based payment expense
of HK$838,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020:

HK$1,504,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2021, 573,000 Awarded Shares
(2020: 621,000 Awarded Shares) were vested and transferred to
certain executive directors of the Company and certain employees
of the Group. During the year ended 31 December 2021, upon the
vesting of certain Awards Shares, the carrying value of the shares held
under the restricted share award scheme account of the Company
was reduced by HK$1,176,000 (2020: HK$1,217,000) and such amount
was transferred to the share-based payment reserve of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Trustee acquired for
the Award Scheme 1,000,000 ordinary shares (2020: 110,000 ordinary
shares) of the Company through purchases on the open market at
a total cost (including related transaction costs) of approximately

HK$2,707,000 (2020: HK$235,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2021, no Awarded Shares were

awarded (2020: Nil).

29. HRFIR MR B & (&)
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29. RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME
(CONTINUED)

The following Awarded Shares were awarded and outstanding under
the Award Scheme during the year:

At 1 January R—HA—H
Vested during the year FRGE
At 31 December Wt+=-A=1+—H

Out of the total of 12,465,000 Award Shares awarded, 4,250,000
Awarded Shares were awarded to the executive directors of the
Company.

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company
had 1,082,000 Awarded Shares unvested under the Award Scheme,
which represented approximately 0.4% of the Company’s ordinary
shares in issue at that date.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

29‘

BR&I R0 RBEE ()

FR BREEBFEEEERERTEZ
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2021 2020
—E--F% ZT-TF
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
fair value unvested fair value unvested
at grant date Awarded at grant date Awarded
per share Shares per share
REE B R A
SRME KEBRB Bt
FHATE  RH®E  FHATE
HK$ HKS
BT BT
2,57 1,655,000 2.56 2,276,000
2.53 (573,000) 2.54 (621,000)
2.59 1,082,000 257 1,655,000
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30. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 76 to 77 of the financial

statements.

Pursuant to the relevant PRC laws and regulations for wholly-foreign-
owned enterprises, a portion of the profits of the Group's subsidiaries,
which are established in the PRC, has been transferred to reserve
funds which are restricted as to use. The subsidiaries are not required
to effect any further transfer when the amount of the reserve funds

reaches 50% of their registered capital.

The Group’s goodwill reserve represents goodwill which arose on
the acquisition of certain subsidiaries in prior years and remains
eliminated against consolidated reserves, as further explained in note

16 to the financial statements.

31. BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 20 July 2020, the Group acquired 40% equity interest in CISC
Limited (“CISC") and call options to acquire additional 40% equity
interest in CISC (the “Call Options”). CISC is principally engaged in
the provision of products, solutions and consulting services on cyber
intelligence, and cyber security. The Group acquired CISC to further
expand its application services business and to extend its existing
product offering. The purchase consideration for the acquisition of
40% equity interest in CISC and the Call Options in the aggregate of

HK$1,700,000 was paid in the form of cash in 2020.

The Group has elected to measure the non-controlling interest in
CISC at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of CISC's

identifiable net assets.

30.

31.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 DECEMBER 2021 —Z=—4#+_-A=+—H

31. BUSINESS COMBINATION (CONTINUED)

Pursuant to a call option deed dated 8 July 2020 (the “Deed”), the
Group has the options (the “Call Options”) to require the other
shareholder of CISC (the “Grantor”) to transfer to the Group up to
a maximum of 2,000 ordinary shares of CISC (the “Option Shares”),
representing 40% of the enlarged issued share capital of CISC, at an
agreed consideration (the “Consideration’, as defined in the Deed).
The Consideration per Option Share is to be determined based on
certain formula taking into account the audited profit before tax of
CISC for the year ended 31 March 2021 less any income not generated
from normal business course and any amount of subventions from
government (subject to certain exception) as further detailed in the
Deed, provided however that the Consideration shall be subject to
certain maximum exercise price and certain minimum exercise price

as set out in the Deed.

Notwithstanding anything in the Deed, the Group shall have the
right to exercise the Call Options at the maximum exercise price at
any time after the date of the Deed. Subject to the above and other
provisions of the Deed, the Call Options shall be exercisable once or
more than once until the expiry of twelve months after the audited
financial statements of CISC for the year ended 31 March 2021 are
issued, i.e,, 15 June 2022, and provided to the Group and unless so
exercised before such prescribed time limit shall lapse and be of no
further effect. Pursuant to the Deed, the shareholders of the Grantor,
being also management of CISC, have guaranteed to the Group the
due and punctual performance by the Grantor of all its obligations

under the Deed.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 $R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2021 —E——§+_-_A=+—H

31. BUSINESS COMBINATION (CONTINUED)

To determine whether CISC is controlled by the Group, the Group
has considered all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over CISC, including, (a) the contractual
agreement with the other vote holder of CISG; (b) rights arising from
other contractual arrangements; and (c) the Group's voting rights
and potential voting rights (including arising from the Call Options).
When assessing whether the potential voting rights arising from the
Call Options are substantive, the Group has considered, inter alia, the
exercise price, relative to market terms; ability to obtain financing;
and timing and length of exercise period. Based on all relevant facts
and circumstances, including the amount of the Consideration
per Option Share (whether deeply out of the money), the financial
position of the Group and the fact that the Call Options are currently
exercisable, in the opinion of the directors, the potential voting rights
arising from the Call Options are substantive and, accordingly, the
Group has power over CISC because it holds voting rights of CISC
which together with the substantive potential voting rights give it
the current ability to direct the relevant activities of CISC, and thereby
control over CISC, and CISC has been accounted for as a subsidiary of
the Group.

31. XK &0 (&)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31. BUSINESS COMBINATION (CONTINUED) 31. (% &6t (&)
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of CISC as at the ASCRWEBBR ZAIZREERBBEZAYF
date of acquisition were as follows: BaF

Fair value

recognised on

acquisition
LT e 7 3R
ZNFEE
HKS$'000
T
Property, plant and equipment LR 13 106
Other intangible asset HimpEE 17 2,347
Trade receivables FEWE 5 BRI 291
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables AR RIE - e K& EH R EIE 443
Tax recoverable AR B IE 32
Cash and cash equivalents HehkERBEEEE 1,908
Other payables and accruals H At &5 FRIE R FE 5T RUE (615)
Contract liabilities AHEE (482)
Deferred tax liabilities BIERIAR B 26 (387)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BATEFE A #AEEFEERE 3,643
Non-controlling interests FE 12 Il 1 A 2 (2,550)
Goodwill on acquisition U b 2 16 516
1,609
Call Options R HA 9
Satisfied by cash BIRE 1,700
The fair values of the trade receivables and prepayments, deposits RUEER 2 B E BERR R TFANMFIE ~ 1%
and other receivables as at the date of acquisition amounted to & & E Y FIE A T E 2 Bl A& 291,000
HK$291,000 and HK$443,000, respectively. The gross contractual P TT [ 443,000 7T o FEINE 5 BR X R FEAT
amounts of trade receivables and prepayments, deposits and other I BEREMBUGRIAZRENSE
receivables were HK$294,000 and HK$443,000, respectively, of which 75 Bll 2 294,000 7% 7T K& 443,000% 7C © H A
trade receivables of HK$3,000 are expected to be uncollectible. U E 5 BR 7% 3,00078 o TE B~ A] Uk (O] -
The Group incurred transaction costs of HK$258,000 for this 7N &2 [ 0t T B 2 AR R 5 K 4K 258,000
acquisition. These transaction costs have been expensed and BIL e ZERXR KA IR IL N4 A B
are included in general and administrative expenses, net in the R RITHF S F R -

consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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31.

32.

BUSINESS COMBINATION (CONTINUED) 31. XK &0 (&)
Included in the goodwill of HK$516,000 recognised above is the il B R Z £ 516,0007% T B 1E A &
expected synergies arising from combining operations of the & 75 B B2 CISC 2 2 74 1 2 A 78 A 177 [ &K
Group and CISC. None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be = o BER BRG] BERAA
deductible for income tax purposes. SEIE o
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of a EHEBERNBARRRERECRERE
subsidiary and the Call Options is as follows: DT
HK$'000
T
Cash consideration RERE (1,700)*
Cash and cash equivalents ReERERBRCEE 1,908
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents included FFARBESEHEeRECHE R
in cash flows from investing activities ZRBEEERANFHE 208
o Including consideration for the acquisition of the Call Options. * BIEWERERERE -
Since the acquisition, CISC contributed HK$1,524,000 to the Group's BWEBR ACEHE=ZZT=_FTF+=
revenue and reduced the Group's consolidated profit by HK$351,000 A=+—BLEFERAEE WA B
for the year ended 31 December 2020. 1,524,000 7 7T R fF AN & B B0 47 & O K 2
351,000/ 7T °
Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the prior year, MEHEREFEITK &E Z 25
the revenue of the Group and the profit of the Group for the year F+_A=+—BHLFEAE l ZHSU\
ended 31 December 2020 would had been HK$259,063,000 and Ko 75 & [ )4 7| 53 51| 4% 259,063,000 7 TT K2
HKS$60,216,000, respectively. 60,216,000 /8 JT °
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 32. REREREKRMETE
OF CASH FLOWS
(a) Major non-cash transactions (@ ETEFRERS
During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right- FA - AEBEEMEHRERHED
of-use assets and lease liabilities of HK$17,034,000 (2020: FRAEEELRHEHEBANIERER
HK$3,701,000) and HK$17,034,000 (2020: HK$3,701,000), E N R A17,034008 T (ZEZF
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for properties. £ :3,701,0007% 7T) K& 17,034,000 % 7T

—Z - F4F :3701,000/87T) ©

MESEEREEERAR B —FFR
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32. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT EEERERME (E)
OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) METEMEEZAEED
activities

Lease liabilities

HEAE
HK$'000
FEx

2021 —E——%
At 1 January 2021 RZE_—F—H—H 7,038
Changes from financing cash flows MELEREEZY (7,677)
New leases FEE 17,034
Remeasurement on lease modifications HERE 2EHAE 1,146
Interest expense FEFHX 245
Exchange realignment bE 5 & 462
At 31 December 2021 RZBE=Z—F+=A=+—H 18,248

Lease liabilities

HEARE

HK$'000

T

2020 —E-EHF

t 1 January 2020 N _TF—H—H 9,674
Changes from financing cash flows BERSREL (5,173)

New leases FEE 3,701
Remeasurement on lease modifications HEEE 2 EHTE (2,303)

Interest expense B X 1,155
Exchange realignment HE 5, 38 B (16)

At 31 December 2020 R-E-_ZTF+_-_A=+—H 7,038

(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) HEABRSRY
The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of ARG RERNEERE SR
cash flows is as follows: A

2021 2020

—B-—F —E_FF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FEx FHET

Within operating activities BETEBN 594 301

Within financing activities BMEEBHA 7,677 5173

8,271 5474
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33. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not provided

for in the financial statements were as follows:

Guarantees have been given to certain banks by the Company for
performance bonds/guarantees issued by the banks in relation
to certain contracts undertaken by the Group amounting to
HK$31,700,000 (31 December 2020: HK$31,700,000), of which
HKS$21,116,000 (31 December 2020: HK$20,926,000) was utilised as at

31 December 2021.

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions, arrangements and balances detailed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had the following

transactions with related parties during the year:

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

Short term employee benefits
Equity-settled share-based payment expense

Post-employment benefits BB 12 2 A
Total compensation paid to key management
personnel B & 42 (&

These included continuing connected transactions exempt from the
connected transaction requirements under Rule 14A.95 of the Main

Board Listing Rules.

Further details of directors’emoluments are included in note 8 to the

financial statements.

REEERA
B B AR D TR X

XNEBEERABZ

33. AAREE

R MRGE R - BARRBHRE A
R E RABENT ;

RATERAEFEEZE ZETELAMBES
MIRTTEH 2 BHORE BERAE TRIT
R AE31,7000008 T (ZE_FF+=
B =-+—H :31,700,000% 7T ) Z &% -
HEd21,116008 T (ZE_FF+ = A
=+—H :2092600087T) EN T = —
F+-—A=+—HHH-

3. BEAEIRS

BRIt EPBHRREMBHFL RS - &
BER RN ARENFERGETT T
BALERS

AEBEFEEEASZMEAT
2021 2020
—E-—F —TEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
14,459 13,848
544 955
162 162
15,165 14,965

W ERER S BRIEEREETER L™
FRAISE 14A05 KM BER SR TE ©

EEME E— FHTHN I ERAMTEES

HBRGEEERAT —B-—FFR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 35. I TEHZ298E
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial EHEANM B TAENREHEEER 2KE
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: BaF
2021 g —fF
Financial assets MEEE
Financial assets
at fair value
through
profit or loss
RAFERER
ARZHMBEE
Mandatorily Financial
designed assets at
assuch amortised cost Total
iz 2 18 85 B A
MEEE ANREZHBEE HEE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET FHET
Trade receivables FEUE Z BRI - 45,601 45,601
Deposits and other receivables & & HE b FE YR IE - 4,174 4,174
Financial assets at fair value through BEAFELERAEZ
profit or loss WS EE 9,646 - 9,646
Pledged bank deposits EHE P RITER - 1,193 1,193
Cash and cash equivalents BeMNERIREGEE - 298,397 298,397
9,646 349,365 359,011
Financial liabilities BHEaE

Financial
liabilities
at amortised

cost

2 8 85 B A

ARZHBEERE

HK$’000

FHET

Trade payables FERE 5 R 11,257
Other payables H th & 4 5k IE 27,327
Financial liabilities included in accruals FTABRTRIBZ MG EE 8,250
Lease liabilities HEAE 18,248
65,082
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 DECEMBER 2021 —Z_-_—4+_A=+—H

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

35. W TRZH % (&)

(CONTINUED)

2020

Financial assets

Trade receivables

Deposits and other receivables
Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss
Pledged bank deposits
Cash and cash equivalents

Financial liabilities

Trade payables
Other payables

Financial liabilities included in accruals

Lease liabilities

FEY B 5 BR K

& M H A R IR
BATFELERARZ
MBEE
EHIRRITER
RekERREEE

—B-g
MBEE

Financial assets
at fair value

through

profit or loss
BATELER
AR B EE

Mandatorily
designed

as such amort

Financial
assets at
ised cost

58 R R AN
WIEE ARZMBEE

HK$'000 HK$'000
T T FHTT

- 44,498 44,498

- 4332 4332

9,483 - 9,483

- 666 666

- 295,632 295,632

9,483 345,128 354611

kA E

FEN B SR
H{th &1 5K IH
AR RIE 2 M AE
HERE

MR R RE AR QA

Financial
liabilities

at amortised
cost

Y2 B SH K R
ARG aE
HK$'000
TATT

18,094
26,709
6,468
7,038

58,309
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36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of the
Group's financial assets and liabilities reasonably approximated to
their fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, pledged bank deposits, trade receivables, current
portion of deposits and other receivables, trade payables, current
portion of other payables and financial liabilities included in accruals
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short term
maturities of these instruments or the effect of discounting is not
material.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or
liguidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used
to estimate the fair values for certain financial instruments:

The fair values of the non-current portion of deposits and other
payables have been calculated by discounting the expected cash
flows using rates currently available for instruments with similar
terms. In the opinion of the directors, the fair values of these financial
instruments approximate to their carrying amounts.

The fair values of listed equity and debt investments are based on
quoted market prices.

The fair value of a club membership debenture included in debt
investment is based on available market prices.

The fair value of the Call Options is determined using the Binomial
Model, which involves the construction of a binomial lattice which
represents different possible paths that might be followed by the
stock price over the life of the Call Options.

Below is a summary of the significant unobservable input to the
valuation of the Call Options used in Level 3 fair value measurements
as at 31 December 2021 and 2020:

Valuation technique Significant unobservable input

R EXATTRERALE
Call Options Binomial Model Volatility
RESE ~ X#HRR K&

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

36. KT EAEAFERAFEER
2B

RBEHREER  AKRBEMBEERE
B BEERLATEA B R

EEEEFHEeRERReEE  BE
HERITE R E%ﬁ%%m ﬁ% D2
&%&E@ﬁ% RIE > ENE SRR R
Ejb Zﬁ@ﬁﬁ ﬁ&?kﬁﬁmﬁz
W%ﬁﬁz NPEEEREERS T2
HRZET A7 HERENITRNEE
NI NENE

MBEERBBZAFEDNREBRR ST
ZARNERNRS 2ARZFTAGEAR
HesR Bl slB B E B SERIw © TFI700%
REBREAREFETHBTARTE
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fé’ %ZIS&%%&%SZ’AFHEBEW%?&&

AFABEBREZEMERAESZ A FETD
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m

REPRZ AFER - XHRUEFE -
WkiEN = XA KRR HE ¢

HABRERNRZRIEES -

TRAER-ZE_—FR_ZT_FTF+_A
—t+—HB F3ERATEAE2REHE
HEMAZEANTERE ASEHRE

Sensitivity of

fair value to

the input
ALEHEARE
ZHRE

51.12% When the volatility rate increases/
(2020: 51.12%) decreases by 5% (2020: 5%),
the fair value will be increased/
decreased by HK$1,000 (2020:
HK$25,000) and Nil (2020:
HK$21,000), respectively.
BRI, 5% (=5

T4 1 5%) - BIATERD R
B0,/ /10008 (Z 8=
TE 2500087 RE(ZE
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36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

36.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of

the Group's financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:
As at 31 December 2021

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
Listed equity investments

Debt investment
Call Options

As at 31 December 2020

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:

Listed equity investments
Debt investment
Call Options

Quoted prices
in active
markets

(Level 1)
BB
iz RE
(E18)
HK$'000
THT

BAVEHEBRS AR HB

MBITAQXFERRIFEER
£ AC )

DFESRRE
TRERAEEMBTAZATENES
MR

BRAFEIFEZEE
R-_ZE-_—4F+-_F=+—H

Fair value measurement using
AFERANTEEHE
Significant
observable

inputs
(Level 2)
EATEE
BAHE
($218)
HK$'000
TEx

Significant
unobservable
inputs

(Level 3)
EARTBE
BAHE
($£38)
HK$'000
THEIT

ag
HK$'000
TiER

BE

ETRAKE 7,546 = = 7,546

BRKRE - 2,100 = 2,100

BB - - = =
7,546 2,100 = 9,646

Quoted prices
in active
NELEY
(Level 1)

R
miZRE
(E1E)
HK$'000
TET

BATEEBRS AR MG

RZBE_ZEF+_-_A=+—H

Fair value measurement using
RTEFAUTREASE
Significant
observable
inputs

(Level 2)
BEARER
BARE
(£2/8)
HK$'000
THEL

Significant
unobservable
inputs

(Level 3)
BEANATEER
BAEE
(£3E)
HK$'000
THT

it
HK$'000
TR

BE:
ETRAEE 7.322 = = 7322
BREE - 2,100 . 2,100
e = = 61 61
7322 2,100 61 9483
Bt RS EEER AR B —FFTR
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36. WK TEAEAFERAFEER
2B (E)

DFESHRERE (E)
BEAVEGECEE : (H)
FRAFIENRFEFEZBAOT

36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Assets measured at fair value: (continued)

The movements in fair value measurements in Level 3 during the year
are as follows:

37.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Call Options

REBHAE

HK$'000

FHET

At 1 January 2020 RZZE-_TF—H—H =
Additions NE 91
Fair value loss recognised in the statement of profit or loss FFABmKR AT EESE (30)
At 31 December 2020 R—TE-—TE+—-HA=+—H 61
Fair value loss recognised in the staterent of profit or loss FFAERKRZATEEE (61)

At 31 December 2021

Liabilities measured at fair value:
The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value
as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for
both financial assets and financial liabilities (2020: Nil).

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments include lease liabilities,
pledged bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to finance the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities
such as trade receivables, deposits and other receivables, trade and
other payables, financial liabilities included in accruals, and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, which mainly arise directly
from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk, equity price risk and
liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

37.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

R B

Interest rate risk

37. BEMEEEEREE (&)

The Group'’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Group's cash at banks and bank deposits with

floating interest rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (through the impact on

floating rate bank balances and bank deposits).

AEEAEHISA RS MAT 2 B E
ZEANEEFRNRITRBZBF XS
ZRERRITERER -

TRENEMAEMBRGERTZZIEN
T ARE 2R AN GF&F B R

RITRE R MRTT 17 3R FR

FYE)HAES

BRI S C UBRRRE -

Increase/

Increase/
(decrease)

(decrease) in
basis points

Ensm
L)

in profit
before tax
BRBE A= F
2, G a)

2021 —E-——fF
Hong Kong dollar BIT (25)
United States dollar = (25)
RMB ARE (25)
Hong Kong dollar BIT 25
United States dollar ETT 25
RMB ARE 25
Increase/
(decrease) in
basis points
EHeie i,
ORA)

2020 —EB-EHF

Hong Kong dollar BT (25)
United States dollar ETT (25)
RMB AR (25)
Hong Kong dollar BT 25
United States dollar EViv 25
RMB AR 25

MR R RE AR QA

HK$000
TERT

(130)
(468)
(139)

130
468
139

Increase/
(decrease)

in profit
before tax

B 75 A1 g A

#m,/ ()

HK$'000
THET

(98)
416)
(129)
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 37. R REEEERBE (&)

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Interest rate risk (continued)
There is no impact on the Group'’s equity except on the retained

profits.

Foreign currency risk
The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures

mainly arise from revenue generated and/or costs and expenses
incurred by operating units in currencies other than the units’
functional currencies.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the RMB
exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s

profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets

A 2R b ()
BRREE RIS HARE RS EE AR
@,

IS LR

AEEEYEX S EWER - WEBREZR
B A (E A BT T R M A S
WIREZ AR, REEZ KA RS -

TRENEMABEMBRGRTEZIFN
T AEERBEHREE R 2GRN
MNEAEREERABRATFERE) HA
REEXTREABEH  HEIEE -

and liabilities).
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease)
exchange in profit
rate before tax
ExtH A BB A= R
(FEg) &, OF2)
% HK$'000
T
2021 —B-—F
If the Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB WA THARBEE 5 (667)
If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB WA THARBEHE (5) 667
2020 —EC-2HF
If the Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB ST H AR E 5 (723)
If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB WA THAREHE (5) 723

There is no impact on the Group’s equity except on the retained BRREBEFIIN - WA E R EE AR
profits. L

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk

The Group primarily trades on credit terms with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that most customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are to a certain extent subject to
certain credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances

are monitored by the Group’s management on an ongoing basis.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum exposure
to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which is mainly
based on past due information unless other information is available
without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification as at
31 December. The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for

financial assets.

As at 31 December 2021

Trade receivables*
Contract assets*
Deposits and other
receivables — Normal**
Pledged bank deposits
— Not yet past due
Cash and cash equivalents
— Not yet past due

JE W B 5 B 3K *
BHEE"
wa READ R
FIH—IEH
EEMRITER
— R R
RekERES
BE
— IR R 78

37.

MHEREERZERBER)

FERR

AEBETEERANEERFZE=ZNR
EEGRETRD BRAKEZHE
RO BRIZEEGTETRIZER &
ARELUBEBBETEERZERF It
S BB Z ARSI AEEEE ERE

&S EER KR4 B TR R ER
TREFERAREEERRNEEEER
EkEmEERR TENAHENRESE
(FRIFATENEEBSZKARE HHBER
THRREEMEHN) kRt -A=t+—H
FREBMREEERDE - 2N E R
BEEMKREAE -

RZEBE-_—F+=A=+—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A &4
FEER EHRAMEEEER
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F-BER HE-ER F=ZBR @BtrE i
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHERT FER FHET FHERT FHERT
- - - 48,778 48,778
- - - 25,628 25,628
4,174 = = = 4,174
1,193 - - - 1,193
298,397 - - - 298,397
303,764 - - 74,406 378,170

MERSREEERAR B —FFH
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 37. R REEEERBE (&)

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk (continued) EERRE (&)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued) BEREBRRFLEHFTEREB ()
R-B_ZF+-_A=+—H

As at 31 December 2020

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
121E A & &
EEEBE FHEREESE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
£ F[EER F=[EER ik Papz R
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
AT T T T THT THT
Trade receivables* Y E 5 AR - - - 48,359 48,359
Contract assets* AHEE - = - 20,248 20,248
Deposits and other e RAMEK
receivables — Normal** FIH— IE 5 ** 4332 = = = 4332
Pledged bank deposits IR ITER
— Not yet past due — A A% 480 A 666 - - - 666
Cash and cash equivalents  BR& & ERIE &
— Not yet past due BE
— iH AR B 295,632 - - - 295,632
300,630 - - 68,607 369,237
i For trade receivables and contract assets to which the Group applies the * MAEEERG S EATERENEKE

simplified approach for impairment, information based on the provision
matrix is disclosed in notes 19 and 21 to the financial statements,
respectively.

** The credit quality of the deposits and other receivables is considered to be
“normal” when they are not past due and there is no information indicating
that the financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is considered
to be "doubtful”

Since the Group primarily trades on credit terms with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for collateral.

Concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer/counterparty,
by geographical region and by industry sector. At the end of the
reporting period, the Group had certain concentrations of credit risk
as 16.9% (2020: 32.9%) of the total trade receivables of the Group
were due from certain departments/units of the Government of the
HKSAR, the Group's largest customer.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

FERARENEE ERBEEENER
DRI BRI B IRERMIE 19K 21 ©

= RS N E i R IR R R I R
RAPMBEAEAN L ERBRERERAR KR
En - AR ERe REMBRFANEER
BRA/IER] BRI ABRHMBEENRE
BEEZRIRE] -

AR ASEEEZRRAREERM CE=
HREEGRETRS  WEFERR -

EESHTRARBER HFHiEE K%
TESBEIDEE - RREHHEEEH -
ARAEBEREIKNE SRR BREF E169%
(ZE=TF :329%) BRERRKREBFRT
REBR (AEBEATF) S THM/
BUZHE  HAEBAR —EEEEF
R o
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk (continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group'’s exposure to credit
risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 19 to the

financial statements.

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities
decrease as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and the
value of individual securities. The Group is exposed to equity price
risk arising from individual equity investments included in financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss - listed equity investments
(note 22) as at 31 December 2021 and 2020. The Group's listed equity
investments are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong and are

valued at quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 10% change
in the fair values of the Group’s listed equity investments, with all
other variables held constant and before any impact on tax, based on

their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period.

37. BEMEEEEREE (&)

FEERRE (&)
BEEEBRERELBFTERE (&)
ANEBRABKE ZEAMELENEERR
MEZENFERE CEERMBHRE
MosE19 o

BRAS(E 5 LB
AR (B 1 B B 2 15 B PR AR 45 AN (R Al 35
FEEZ B BB AB S 2 A FERE
2R - AEEZBRABRRRIRERE=
T FRE_EF+_A=+—8#
EERATFELBESARZMEEE-h
A E (FsE22) Z @RI AT E - AN&E
Bz EmBRARERE BB Em - B
HEHHELEEHIRMBRETE -

TRENEMAEMBRGERTEZIFN
TRARFHEMBEZER - UEEREER
HE AEE ETRARERRE BEE
BRZRAFESES10%E - HEEER Z
BURRRE -

Carrying Increase/
amount (decrease)

of equity in profit
investments before tax

BRARE BR Bt AT 3 T
ZIREE &M O8d)

HK$'000 HKS$'000
T T
2021 —E——%
Equity investments listed in Hong Kong: EEB LMz BRAKRE
— financial assets at fair value through profit or loss —BAFELEEARZ

7,546 755
2020 —BoF
Equity investments listed in Hong Kong: EEB LMz BRAKRE
— financial assets at fair value through profit or loss —BATFELEEARZ
7,322 732

There is no impact on the Group's equity except on the retained

profits.

BRORER SN - BB R B B F
@ o

MERSREEERAR B —FFH
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 37. WEREZERFRRBE (&)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk REBESRRE
The Group’s objective is to ensure there are adequate funds to meet REBE 2 BERBERERZHE S AEN
its contractual payments for financial liabilities in the short and long HEHERRHAZUBEESHNK - EE
term. In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors and MBESRRF  AEEERRARER
maintains a level of cash and bank balances, and bank deposits BRARHRBEASELEMZCRER
deemed adequate by management to finance the Group's operations RITHEERKF AR ERTTIF 5K - Rk 4 AR
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. Cash flows EMERBERNIEE SRERERE
of the Group are closely monitored by senior management on an PERAEEBZRERE

ongoing basis.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the end of the R EHEGEER - AEERES LR
reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments, REARTECHMBEEIRBERAT
is as follows:

2021
—E-—F
3toless
(o])] Less than than 1to

demand 3months 12 months 5years Total

==
BEXEKE SR=@A +t=@ARA —ZE1F nE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000
TER TET TERT TEr TER

Trade payables BB SRR 10,439 532 286 = 11,257
Other payables H i JE T 0B = 27,327 = = 27,327
Lease liabilities HEBE - 1,573 6,501 10,443 18,517
Financial liabilities included in accruals 5+ A JE 5+ 308 2 B1 7%
BB - 8,250 - - 8,250
Guarantees given to banks for RAEEAEZET
performance bonds/guarantees ERBELRELD
issued in relation to certain contracts  {R#& /&R M [A]
undertaken by the Group RITIRM 2 BR 21,116 - = = 21,116
31,555 37,682 6,787 10,443 86,467
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (continued)

37. IREREEEEREBE (&)

REBEERER (&)

3toless
On Less than than 1to
demand 3 months 12 months 5 years Total
=&
RERER LR=EA +=Z@EAR —Z&F FkE
HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THET THT FTAT
Trade payables B SRR 16,574 809 711 - 18,094
Other payables H i JE T 508 = 26,172 = 537 26,709
Lease liabilities HEaE - 1,107 4527 3,022 8,656
Financial liabilities included in accruals 5+ A FE&T 7038 2 81 75
Al - 6,468 - - 6,468
Guarantees given to banks for RAEEAEZET
performance bonds/guarantees ERBLRELD
issued in relation to certain contracts R =5,/ Y& 4R M [A)
undertaken by the Group RITIRM 2 R 20926 = = = 20,926
37,500 34556 5238 3,559 80,853
Capital management BEREE

The primary objectives of the Group'’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders'value.

The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure and
makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new
shares. The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 December
2021 and 2020.

Capital of the Group comprises all components of shareholders’
equity.

AEEEAERZIZANERAREAE
EREKE NI HRRREERLE
I EER M BBRR G REAEE -

AEBRBEER L EEREREE Y
RN THEMAREEEASERERE
fH AR o ANEE [ A] DASE 1B B Y AR B R B
2B MRERBEE AN BT N
REFRFAEEALEE AEBHAEETE
AISNEBIEMN 2 BERRTE - BEZT = —F
F_E_TF+_A=+—HLEFERN"
REEZEARNEIEBZE  BURSE 7 E

REBE 2 EARHPTABRRER T D AR

MMAGEBARAT —FT-—FFR
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company

at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Investments in subsidiaries

CURRENT ASSETS
Prepayments

Tax recoverable

Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade payables, other payables and accruals

NET CURRENT ASSETS

Net assets

EQUITY

Issued capital

Share premium account

Shares held under the restricted
share award scheme

Share-based payment reserve (note)

Retained profits (note)

Proposed final dividend (note)

Total equity

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

38. A BB KA R F

RBERREERRRRFTBRAXZE

ey N
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
FIRBEE
R B R RIEE 171,029 177,584
RBEE
TE{ FIE 311 327
AR BT TE = 6
RekERBEEEE 1,256 1,129
MEEERE 1,567 1,462
REBAE
JEE SRR - Hb e IR
N FE AT R 497 501
RBEEFE 1,070 961
BEFE 172,099 178,545
s
BT 24,949 24,949
&1 & (B BR 53,104 53,104
RIE A IR HIR% D B =T 2
BAZ&m (6,011) (4,480)
F& 13 5 sk B (BT E) 5,335 5673
REB &) (FE5E) 67,542 69,597
R R BARR B (B 5E) 27,180 29,702
gD 172,099 178,545

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Note:

A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows:

At 1 January 2020 RZT-_TF—A—H

Profit for the year N

Vesting of shares held under the restricted BRI 2@ ET I T
share award scheme fi&fn 5% &

Share award arrangements & 5 22 &2 Bk

Final 2019 dividend declared ER-T-NFRERE

Interim 2020 dividend “EZTEHRBERE

Proposed final 2020 dividend RS -ZFREARE

At 31 December 2020 and RZZE_TFEF_A=+—HK
at 1 January 2021 R=F=—F—HF—H

Profit for the year ANE i A

Vesting of shares held under the restricted AR IR 2@ T EIE T
share award scheme &1 5B

Share award arrangements & 1 52 &2 Bk

Final 2020 dividend declared ER-F_TFRARES

Interim 2021 dividend ZT - —FHERE

Proposed final 2021 dividend BK—T——FRERE

At 31 December 2021 R-Z2-—F+-A=+—H

39. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

In January 2022, the Group completed the subscription of 10,000 new
shares issued by CISC Limited at a total consideration of HK$1,450,000
and increased its shareholding from 40% to 80% accordingly.

40. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the board of directors on 16 March 2022.

38. AR R MM MR T ()

B
RARFERENT
Share-based Proposed
payment Retained final
reserve profits dividend Total
8y &R 28
HRREE RE A RE BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THET FET TFHET
5,386 58,808 19,760 83,954
= 52,892 = 52,892
(1,217) = = (1,217)
1,504 = = 1,504
= (29) (19,760) (19,789)
- (12372) - (12,372)
= (29,702) 29,702 =
5,673 69,597 29,702 104,972
= 40,012 = 40,012
(1,176) - - (1,176)
838 - - 838
= (42) (29,702) (29,744)
- (14,845) - (14,845)
- (27,180) 27,180 =
5,335 67,542 27,180 100,057

39. EHE2EE
R - —F— A AEBTHRER
CISC Limited % 17 #9 10,000 i% #7 R% 10 » &1

{8 /51,450,000 7T+ I A M #% H A% # &
40% 3 2= 80% °

40. #tEF B HRR

BN _ZT__F=A+BH{ERK
RTIEITEHK -

MM ZAGEEARAR —T-—FFR
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES

YE R

31 DECEMBER 2021 —E=_—f+_-_A=+—H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Location

1. Units 1,2 and 3 on 11" Floor
Westlands Centre
No. 20 Westlands Road
Quarry Bay
Hong Kong

2. Unit No. 2601 on Level 26
South Tower
Guangzhou World Trade Centre
Complex
Nos. 371-375 Huanshi East Road
Dongshan District
Guangzhou
Guangdong Province
PRC

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

BREW=

BE

8 F208

I 2057
R L
Mg 2K3E

Industrial

T%A

F Commercial
ERE EEE!
=i

I,

IR BK 371 237558
EMNEREZHLANE

A

26122601 &

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

Long term lease

RHHEE

Medium term lease

THIHEE

Attributable
interest of the

Group
AEBEEMN
EEEDL

100%

100%
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
LEMBRE

AT RAKERAERAEAVREFERZEENRE
ENBEZHME  DREACTIEZKERY
BHE YEEEMEN DA - LB EL TE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited financial
statements and reclassified as appropriate, is set out below. This summary

does not form part of the audited financial statements. PRAS B X BT AP ML ©
RESULTS E3 ]

Year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=t-HLEE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—E--f | ZETZTHF —T-NF ZT-NF ZT—LF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHx FET FET FRET FET
REVENUE A 265,504 256,265 275,893 281427 253,915
Cost of sales and services $HE R ARFE AL A (113,073) (111,477) (120,639) (121,492) (110,424)
Gross profit EF 152,431 144,788 155,254 159,935 143491
Otherincome and gains, net  E At A K Wizt /% 58 5,367 22,279 7,875 10,084 9,264
Foreign exchange differences, [E X =58 /% %8
net (403) (625) 335 329 (905)
Fair value gains/(losses), net: AN FEUZE/ (EIE) 358 :
Financial assets at fair value BATEREERARZ
through profit or loss A E 163 (2,755) 323 (384) 1,380
Investment properties BEWE 500 (941) 3,626 4406 3,590
Selling and distribution HERDHAT
expenses (33,068) (32812) (36,631) (35,358) (34,497)
General and administrative —RRITHRASFRE
expenses, net (60,626) (60,906) (63,455) (57,788) (55453)
Finance cost % ER (245) (1,155) (1,102) - =
Other expenses HAt (6,492) (6,233) (6,024) (6,024) (6,024)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRBEATEF 57,627 61,640 60,201 75,200 60,846
Income tax expense PSR (4,634) (1,726) (4,308) (7,172) 6,517)
PROFIT FOT THE YEAR REERF 52,993 59914 55,893 68,028 54,329
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: AT AL 4G
Owners of the parent FRREE A 53,844 60,125 55,893 68,028 54,329
Non-controlling interests FEFE 1 s (851) (211) = = =
52,993 59,914 55,893 68,028 54,329
MMEAREEERAR T —FFR
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY (CONTINUED)

EFEHBEHMEER)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
As at 31 December
R+=A=+—~H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—E--% ZT-TF ZT-NEFE ZT-NFE ZT—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET FBT FHBT FHET FHBT
TOTAL ASSETS BEHME 681,297 667,268 633,965 631,345 608,150
TOTAL LIABILITIES BEHAE (157,668) (151,709) (152,586) (153,281) (155,182)
523,629 515,559 481,379 478,064 452,968

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited



computer m m _
= m technologies

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
B OoBOR & E B 8 R 2 FA

Level 10, Cyberport 2,
100 Cyberport Road,
Hong Kong

EREIEAE1005
HISHE 28510412



	COVER
	INSIDE COVER
	CONTENTS
	CORPORATE PROFILE
	CORPORATE INFORMATION
	FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
	CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
	DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
	CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
	REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
	INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
	NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES
	FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
	BACK COVER



